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Letter of
Transmittal

To

All Shareholders

Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Sub : Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Dear Sir (s)

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of United

Commercial Bank Limited together with the Audited Financial
Statements as at December 31, 2009 for kind information & record.

Yours sincerely

o

Mirza Mahmud Rafiqur Rahman
Company Secretary
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Name of the Company
Legal Status

Date of Incorporation
Date of Commencement

Registered Office
Telephone
E-Mail

Website
S.WLET

Listing with Dhaka Stock Exchange

Listing with Chittagong Stock Exchange

Chairman
Managing Director
Company Secretary

United Commercial Bank Limited
Public Limited Company
June 26,1983

June 27,1583

CWS (A)-1, Gulshan Avenue
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

PABX 02 885 2500
info@ucbl.com
www, ucbl. com

Navember 30,1986
November 15,1995

Md. Jahangir Alam Khan
M. Shahjahan Bhulyan
Mirza Mahmud Rafigur Rahman
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Board of
Directors

5.

Hajee M. A. Kalam
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Chairman
Md. Jahangir Alam Khan

Vice Chairman
Qamrun Nahar

Directors

Hajee M. A. Kalam
Hajee Yunus Ahmed
M. A, Sabur

M. AHashem
Shabbir Ahmed

Kazi Enamul Hogue
Showhkat Aziz Russell
Riyadh Zafar Chowdhury
Nur Uddin Javed

Dr. Aziza Karim
Setara Begum

Managing Director
M. Shahjahan Bhuiyan

Secretary
Mirza Mahmud Rafiqur Rahman

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD
Chairman
Hajee M. A. Kalam

Directors

Hajee Yunus Ahmed
M. A. Sabur

Kazi Enamul Hogue
Shabbir Ahmed
Showkat Aziz Russell

Managing Director
M. Shahjahan Bhuiyan

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD
Chairman
M. A. Sabur

Members

Qamrun Nahar
Kazi Enamul Hogue

07

UEB Annual Report | 2009



List of
Executives

08

uEB Annual Report | 2009



SO A
Authorised Capital
e FrA
Paid-up Capital
il i
Reserve Fund
ST

Deposits

e e
Loans & Advances

Fffe

Investments

S w
Gross Income

o T
Gross Expenditure

o e (Brrey +1édt)
Net Profit (Pre-tax)

A e
Impert Business

Fei e
Export Business

e ARRR
Foreign Correspondents

T RY
Number of Employees

i *r
Number of Branches

CHIEErSE =
Number of Shareholders

1,045

24,559

021

2877

3,188

2,036

Last 5 Years at a Glance

2006
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33016
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§101

4118
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2007 2008 2000
1,000 1,000 1,000
299 209 299
1,596 1,889 2,197
42,296 54,485 77,730
37,556 44446 61,692
5518 7201 9,345
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Credit Rating
Report

CRISL has rated the Bank based on December 31, 2009 with "A+ {pronounced as single A
Plus) in the Long Term and ST-2 for the Short Term. The date of rating was June 30,

2010.
Year Long Term Rating Short Term Rating
2009 At ST-2
2008 A ST-3

UCBL has been rated as "A+" which means Adequate Safety for timely repayment of
financial obligations. This level of rating indicates a corporate entity with an adequate
credit profile. Risk factors are more variable and greater in periods of economic stress
than those rated in the higher categories.

The Short Term rating ST-2" indicates high certainty of timely payment. Liquidity

factors are strong and supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors
are very small.
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From the desk of

Dear valued Shareholders,

It is my great pleasure and privilege
to place before you the Annual
Report along with the audited annual
financial statements of the Bank and
Auditor's Report and Directors’ Report
thereon for the year 2009,

Year 2009 is exceptionally challenging
year for the financial Industry of the
country, The gap between national
deposit and national investment was
increasing in last three years. On one
hand, low investment resulted excess
deposit in the money market. On the
other hand banking industry was
under tremendous pressure to reduce
interest rate and cut its service
charge all over the year. | am pleased
to inform you that our Bank faced all
challenges with great courage,
dedication and perseverance under
the able leadership of the members
of the Board of Directors. Despite
constraints  the Bank recorded

reasonable
of its operation and UCE's earning in
year 2009 is remarkable.

Chairman
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You are well aware that the banking
industry is facing tremendous
competition and  challenges.
Currently the main challenge for
banking industry s to successfully
implement Basal |I. Adopting Basal i
in our banking industry is a part of
financial reforms program which was
initiated in early 1990s. UCB is
actively working to make it
compliant with Basal |l as we believe
that this will help to grow in strength
and stature. Considering the fact, we
are optimistic to increase Authorized
Capital to Tk.B0O crore with the
approval of our valued shareholders.
We have recommended 30% stock
dividend for the year 2009 which
shall raise Bank's paid up Capital to
about Tk.290.99 crore.

| am also happy to inform you that
the Board of Directors is always
concerned about the compliance
issues of the regulators and the Bank
management extended their best
endeavor to ensure and confirm the
regulatory requirements of the Bank.

Year 2009 fs another year of
performance for UCB despite all
national and international challenges
in the economy. The Bank was able to
earn operating profit of about
Tk.3,125 million which is 27.56%
above of the same of previous year.
In the year, Deposits of the Bank
stood at about TK.77,730 million,
Bank handled export business of
about TK.38,519 million, import
business of about TK.58,857 million,
remittance business of about
Th.5,864 million and its total loans
and advances stood at about
TK.61,692 million. The performance
of the Bank in the year is significantly
glamorous than the preceding year.
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I would like to thank all cur valued
shareholders for the confidence and
trust reposed in the Bank. On behalf
of the Board of Directors, | wish to
pledge that through prudent and
carefully planned strategies, we will
continue to add value to the
shareholders’ wealth and achieve
UCB's goal and vision and reinforce
its value,

| also express my thanks to valued
loyal customers, who continued to
be with us despite strong pressure
from the competitors.

| further express my gratitude and
thanks to all regulators and
government  agencies  including
Ministry of Finance, Bangladesh Bank,
Securities and Exchange Commission,
Office of the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies and Firms, Dhaka Stock

Exchange, Chittagong Stock
Exchange, CBBL for their extended
support and advice.

On Behalf of the Board | would like to
thank the Management of the Bank
for their untiring efforts and

. endeavors and also thank the
il el W AT T TE R ployees for their achi In
oh 399 9gd Sugefoay o9 el e delivering  such  an  excellent
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performance in the 27th year of UCB.

My thanks go also to my colleagues
in the Board for their continued
support and guidance. We thank you
once again for your on-going
confidence in our Bank.

Thanking you.

)
Md. Jahangir Alam Khan
Chairman
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Message from

the Managing Director
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The fallout from the turmoil in global
financial markets in 2008 carried over
to 2009 as countries struggled to come
out of the economic downturn. It was
a difficult year for all financial
institutions in the country including
uCe,

Despite the crisis the Bank reported an
operating profit of Tk.3,125.17 million
for the full year registering a growth
of 27.56% over the preceding year.
Deposits, Advances and Foreign
remittance growth were 43.00%,
39.00% and 31.00% respectively. Given
the economic environment this was an
excellent result surpassing the overall
achievement of all the previous years
in Bank’s 27 years existence,

During the year the Bank has increased
its network by opening 14 branches
and 10 ATMs as a part of it's continuing

network expansion. Eight more
branches and SME centers will be
opened this year. During the same
peried 7 more branches were
relocated, refitted and refurbished.

The year 200% was a year of
transformation for the Bank and the
process s still continuing. During the
year we have adopted an fmproved
approach to risk management taking in
elements of global best practices
within the framework of Bangladesh
Bank guidelines.

Due to the inherent risks in business in
our local context, dealing with risk
assets iz difficult. Therefore, Internal
Control mechanisms were
strengthened and processes were put
into place for effective monitoring and
timely remedfal action. Rewards and
retribution have been introduced for



Internal Control officers to improve
performances and the quality of
operations and compliance in the
business units.

We have focused strongly on the
quality and development of our
Human Resources. The Bank has
recruited aver 100 entry level officers
through competitive exams in fits
efforts to infuse youth and talent to
the organization and over 500 officers

attended various in-house and
external training courses and
workshops.

The Bank is vigorously pursuing a
‘Reward for Performance’ culture and
to this extent has made important
changes to our compensation
practices. These include Car facility,
Leave fare facility, Employee house
building loan scheme and Annual
incentive bonuses.

Another key area of focus has been
retail and small & medium sized
business. In 2009 our exposure in
retail had reached Tk.1500.00 million
in just 9 months and our SME portfolio
was over Tk.25,000.00 million. We
have continued with our strong
presence in the traditional sectars of
RMG, Construction and International
Trade and we look forward to
sustained growth from  these
businesses.

‘We continue to bolster our long term
commitment to supporting the
general community through
sponsorship of arts, sports and
national institutions. For the purpose
we have also established a UCB
Foundation which is funded by a
portion of Bank’s Annual Operating

Profit. The Foundation will initially
focus on support to health care and
education whereby meritorious
students who cannot afford higher
education due to various financial and
other factors will be benefited
through scholarships to be provided
by the Foundation.

We are moving forward and making
changes wherever we believe it is
necessary to support and meet our
customers and clients needs while at
the same time protecting the
interests and future of the Bank. Qur
prudent management practices have
ensured the Bank has delivered such
strong performance and emerged
better from the global economic
slowdown.

As we continue to build on our 27
years of service to the natfon, we
look forward to an even stronger
performance given the goodwill of our
loyal customers, the strength of our
human resources and the guidance
and support from our experienced and
knowledgeable Board of Directors and
all other stake holders.

\

M, Shahjahan Bhuiyan
Managing Director
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The Board of Directors has the pleasure to
present the twenty seventh Annual Report
of the Bank alongwith the Accounts &
Auditors’ Report for the year ended
December 31,2009 with a brief overview of
the country's economic condition and the
Bank’s performance.

Bangladesh Economy

considerable resilience against global
financial meltdown because of the limited
openness and strengthened domestic
demand. Stable political situation, a good
domestic crop harvest due to favorable
weather condition, sustained level of
remittance flow together with moderate
export growth helped the economy to attain
reascnable 5.9 percent growth of GDP rate
during FY2009 against 6.2 percent in
FY2008. The domestic savings rate to GDP
was slightly down from 20.30 percent in
FY0B to 20.00 percent in FYD9. Total
domestic credit decreased by 15.9 percent
in FY09 against 21.8 percent in FY08. Total
export increased by 10.1 percent from USS
14,151 million in FY08 to US$ 15,583 million
in FY09. On the other hand the import
fncreased by 4.2 percent from US5 19,481
million in FY08 to USS 20,291 million in
FY09. Foreign exchange reserve, however,
increased by US$ 1,322 million to US$ 7,471
million at the end of FY09 from USS 6,149
million at the end of FY08. Annual average
CPl (base FY96) inflation as of end of June
2009 was 6.7 percent compared with 9.9
percent at the end of June 2008,
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The Bank

The Bank closed the year with satisfactory
performance in every sector. At the end of
the year 2009, total assets of the Bank
stood at Tk.90,484 million against Tk.64,755
million of 2008 registering an increase of
39,65 percent.

Total assets included Th.7,004 million cash
in hand, balances with Bangladesh Bank and
Sonali Bank against Tk.4,746 million in the
previous year, Total liquid assets including
investment stood at Tk.22,669 million
during the year against Tk 16,325 million in
the previous year. The liquid assets was
29.16 percent of the total deposits as at the
close of the year. Net return on equity
during the year 2009 was 16.35 percent as
against 17.44 percent in the previous year.

Network

Presently the Bank is functioning with its
country wide netwaork of 98 branches
covering all six divisions of the country. Out
of 98 branches, Dhaka Division has 38
branches, Chittagong Division has 32
branches, Sylhet Division 11 branches,
Rajshahi Division 9 branches, Khulna
Division 7 branches and Barisal Division 1
branch. The Bank has set up a Zonal Office
at Chittagong to facilitate services to the
customers. The number of Authorised
Dealer branches are 22. Besides, the Bank
currently has 274 correspondents covering
56 important countries in all the continents
of the world which is continuously
expanding to meet the growing cross-border
banking needs of the customers. Moreover,
the Bank has arrangement with a number of
Exchange Houses at U.K, Singapore, U.A.E,
Oman, Qatar, and Kuwait to facilitate

Ittances from B is.

To provide quality and prompt service to
the customers all the branches have been
computerized with the Bank providing On
Line Banking facilities from all branches.
SWIFT has been installed at all A.D.
branches to speed up and secure
international transactions.
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Management

The Management team of the Bank is
successfully led by Mr. M.Shahjahan
Bhuiyan, Managing Directoer. He is a
renowned and a dynamic banker with more
than three decades of banking experience.
Prominent and dynamic banker Mr. A.K.M
Kamal Uddin,Mr. Shafiqul Alam, Mr.Shahidul
Islam and Mr.Mamunur Rashid are the
Deputy Managing Directors af the Bank. The
Management s ably supported and assisted
by qualified executives and officers,

Capital & Reserves

During the year under report authorized
capital of the Bank remained unchanged at
Tk.1,000 million and the paid-up capital
stood at Tk.299 million. The reserve fund of
the Bank increased by 16.33 percent to Tk
2,197 million as against Tk.1,889 million in
the pervious year.

Total Capital of the Bank stood at Tk 6,035
million in 2009 against Tk 4,780 million of
2008 recording an increase of Tk 1,255
million (26.25 percent). Core capital (Tier -
1) increased by Tk.933 millien (23.91
percent) and stood at Tk 4,835 million while
Supplementary capital (Tier-11) increased
by Tk. 322 million (36.63 percent) and stood
at Tk 1,200 million. The capital adequacy
ratio (CAR) stood at 9.22 percent against
requirement of 10.00 percent of total Risk
Weighted Assets Total capital was short by
Tk 509 millien against requirement of Tk
6,544 million. The Bank has made a capital
plan for next 5 {Five) years approved by the
Board of Directors to overcome the capital
shortfall.

Deposit

The deposit of the Bank registered an
increase of 42.66 percent in the year under
review. At the close of 2009, total deposits
stood at Tk 77,730 million against Tk 54,485
million in the previous year. The deposit
mix comprised Tk 12,400 million as demand
and Tk 65,330 millien as time deposit, The
ratio of demand and time deposit to total
deposit 15.95 percent and 84.05 percent,
Out of the total deposits, Tk 68,4355 million
was mobilized from the private sector while
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the balance Tk 9,275 million from the
public sector.

Credit

The Bank continued its participation in
different credit programmes for financing
new industrial projects, working capital,
trade finance, international trade ete.
Consequently total credit rose to Tk 61,692
million in 2009 from Tk 44,446 million of
2008. The credit deposit ratio steod at
79.37 percent . Sector wise credit during

the year were as follows :-

SECTOR TAKA IN MILLION
Agriculture & Fishery 37

Industrial Loan 1,473

Commercial Lending 16,174

Import 12,51

Export 2,264

House Bullding Loan 4,077

Transport Loan 658

Retail Loan 1,866

Staff Loan Exil

Others 2,01

Total 61,692

An amount of Tk 1,091 million loans &
advances was found as marginal /watch list
of different borrowers due to the fact that
the movements, transactions and recovery
was not satisfactory. The Bank management
is closely monitoring those account and if no
satisfactory movement s made in that case
the bank management will take necessary
action against the barrowers according to
the guide line of Bangladesh Bank.

Investment

At the close of 2009, total investment of
the Bank stood at Th.9,346 million against
Th.7,201 million in 2008. Income of Th.8
million has been earned from dividend of
different companies during the year under
report.

Treasury Operations

The functions of Treasury constitutes Local
Money Market Operations and Foreign
Exchange Dealings to meet business
commitments for I.C_and otngr payments.

eolL quirement
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(CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Requirement
{5LR}) Is ane of the major functions of
Treasury. Treasury Division plays an
important role for effective management of
Asset and Liability and reduction of funding
cost and prudent product pricing through
Asset Liability committee{ALCO). Treasury
Division of the Bank has been actively
participating in local money market as well
as foreign currency market in a prudent way
for utilization of surplus fund. The Banks
investment in Treasury Bends and other
securities was Tk 9,346 million during the
year. The Treasury operations contributed
15.81 percent in the total income.

Foreign Trade

During the year 2009 the volume of import
business was Tk 58,857 million compared to
Tk.60,00% million in 2008, On the other
hand the volume of export business in 2009
was Tk.38,51% million compared to Tk
36,500 miltion in 2008,

Human Resources

Skilled and motivated manpower plays a vital
role in achieving top performance. With this
end in view, improvement of productivity of
human input has always been receiving
highest priority in the Bank. UCB has a strong
focus on imparting training towards
enhancement of Knowledge, skills and
competencies of the employees to take over
the challenge of modern banking, Since there
is no alternative to training for acquiring the
required efficiency and professional
excellence, Bank's Training Institute was busy
throughout the year to focus on creating
awareness about the best principles and
practices in banking through imparting
training on different aspects of banking,

61 {Sixty one} in house training courses
were arranged during 2009 in which 1,745
officers took part. Moreover, a number of
executives and officers were sent to
Bangladesh | Bank &

(BIBM) and other training agencies.
Employees performances are regularly
evaluated and a good number of them have
been promoted as a reward and recognition
of their goed performance. At the end of
2009 total number of employees were 2,508
comprising of 207 executives, 1,576 officers
and 725 staff.

FOREWGH TRADE
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Gratu

Gratuity benefits are given to the
employees of the Bank in accordance with
the approved Gratuity fund rules. National
Board of Revenue has approved the gratuity
fund as a recognized gratuity fund on
December 27, 1995, The fund is operated by
a Board of Trustees consisting 3 (Three)
members of the Bank Employees are
entitled to gratuity benefit after
completion of minimum 5 {five) years of
service in the Bank.

Recently Bank has appointed Z. Halim &
Associates (Acturial & Pension Consultants)
for actuarial valuation of UCBL Employees
Gratuity Fund. As per acturial valuation
report submitted by 7. Halim & Associates,
shortfall of the Gratuity fund has been
assessed at Tk, 239,510,000 up to
31.12.2009.

1. Halim Associates has recommended to
make provision @ 10.10 percent of the basic
salaries per month which comes to Tk.
45,00,000 {approx) until the next acturial
review which should not be later than
3.42.2011.

Inspection

Experienced officials of Internal Control and
Compliance Division regularly audit and
inspect the activities of the Bank
throughout the year. During 2009 audit and
inspection were carried out covering 89
branches. Besides, a number of surprise
fnspections were also carried out.
Bangladesh Bank Inspection Team also
inspected 5 general branches and 15 A.D
branches.

Review of Branch Performance

The growth of business and profitability of
the Bank largely depends upon the
performance of the branches. Keeping this
in mind, the performance of the branches
are regularly evaluated. Periodical branch
managers conference is conducted to
review progress of business and motivate
the branches for doing better in the days to
come.
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Operating Result

The Bank earned a total operating income
of Tk 9,540 million during the year against
Tk 7,850 million in the previous year. The
total operating expenditure was Tk 6,415
million in 2009 against Tk 5,400 million in
2008, Thus operating profit stood at Tk
3,125 million during the year against Tk
2,450 million of 2008 registering a growth of
27.56 percent.

Net interest income stood at Tk.2,617
million during the year against Tk 2,009
million of 2008 registering a growth of 30.26
percent This increase was a result of strong
loan growth of 38.80 percent . Non Interest
Income stood at Tk 2,575, million n 2009
against Tk 2,101 million of 2008 showing a
growth of 22.56 percent. Non Interest
Expenses stood at Tk 2,067 million in 2009
against Tk 1,660 of 2008 registering an
fncrease of 24.55 percent. The growth was
due to higher compensation expenses and
other over head expenses.

After making provision of Tk 1,583 million
against loans & advances and other assets,
the pre-tax profit for the year stood at Tk
1,542 million which is proposed to be
appropriated as under :-

Tk in million
Operating profit before tax
and provision. 3125
Less : Provision for Loans & Advances
and Other Assets 11,583)
Net profit before tax. 1,542
Less : Provision for Taxation, (609)
Met profit after tax & provision 933
Less : Transferred to Statutory
Reserve Fund (308)
Retained Eanings 625

The Directors' also report that-

m Financial Statements of the Bank present
a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

m Proper books of account have been
maintained as required laws,

m Appropriate accounting policies have
been consistently applied in formulating the
financial statements, accounting estimates
were based on reasonable and prudent
judgment
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m Financial Statements were prepared in
accordance with ing
Standard (14S) as applicable in Bangladesh,

u The Internal Control System is sound in
design and effectively implemented and
manitored.

m There are no significant doubts to
continue as going concern

® There is ne significant deviation from the
operating results of last year,

Meetings

The Board of Directors held 21 meetings
during the year. Besides 25 Executive
Committee meetings and 3 Audit Committee
meetings were held during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the
Directors in Board meeting are in
Compliance Report on SEC Motification on
Corporate Governance

Pattern of Shareholding

Details of the pattern of Shareholding are in
Compliance Repert on SEC Notification on
Corporate Governance.,

Management of Core Risks in Bank
Rishs involved in different operational area
are under control of the management, The
bank has taken appropriate measures to
enforce and follow all approved risk
manuals /guidelines covering the following
risk area in order to control and minimize
the business as well as financial risks at an
acceptable level,

1. Policy Guidelines on Asset Liability
Management

2. Policy Guidelines on Credit Risk
Management

3. Policy Guidelmunrmisn&m

Risk Manage
4, Policy Guidelhes on Money Laundering
Prevention

3. Policy Guidelines on Internal Control and

Compliance
. Palicy Guidelines on Infarmation and
Communication Technology.

The Bank has formed a Management
Committee (MANCOM) to review proper
implementation and regular monitoring of
core areas of Risk Management.

UCB Annual Report | 2009
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Information Technology

To compete with the current business
world, UCB promises to provide the best
facility and support to its valued customers.
Our vislon {s to equip our users with madern
technology to help them perform with their
full potential to achieve the trust of the
customers, UCB is firm believer of
computerization of business processes to
ensure prompt and fast customer service,

List of IT achievement for the year of 2009:

W UCH is dedicated to acquire the Core
Banking Solution {CBS) to ensure better
customer service and enhance our internal
business processes. As part of
implementation of CBS, UCB is currently
running a pilot project on CBS. Pilot CBS has
been implemented in two of our branches.

u |T Division is implementing Automated
Cheque Processing Systems as per Bangladesh
Bank guidelines. A web facility has been
provided ta the branch to submit requisition
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for F MICR Ink Character
Recognition) encoded cheque books.

® Bank has enhanced its comprehensive
Information Technology Policy, based on
International Best Practices with
compliance of Central Bank guideline.

B To provide better logistic support Human
Resource Management System is being
implemented.

® Portfolio Management and Stock
Analytical Software have been taken for
Merchant Banking.

= Complete web-based Case Management
System has been implemented at the Head
Office and Branches.

® Remittance Management System has been
deployed.

® All branches and Head Office Divisions are
securely connected by Virtual Private
Network. 88 out of 98 branches have dual
connectivity.
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» [T Division has implemented Exchange
Server 2007 to keep email communications
flowing with enterprise-class reliability.

® [T Division has deployed Active Directory
to provide logical grouping of users and
computers in a domain, centrally managed
by servers.

® Following is the list of IT Initiative for
Corporate Head Office:

® Cisco Data Networking Solution

® Cisco IP-PABX Solution

® APC Data Center Solution

» Systimax Structure Cabling Solution

. mcma' lized Network Monitoring System

& BARCO Control Room Display Unit for NOC
» BARCO Controd Room Display Unit for
Security Room,

Credit Card

UCB has started credit card operation in
2006 by intreducing VISA branded dual
currency credit card. Meanwhile Card
Division has fssued 25,000 credit card. UCB
has extended its service in all divisional
cithes i,e Dhaka, Chittagong, Khulna, Sylhet,
Rajshahi & Barisal. Other than divisional
cities UCB has also started card sales
service in Bogra, Comilla & Mymenshing.
UCB is the principal member of Visa
International

UCB wanits to extend its card service in all
the important district cities in near future.
Hopefully by the end of 2010 it will start
Merchant acquiring business. UCE is also
planning to introduce Master Card, in 2010
as a tool of product diversification. UCE has
launched its own ATM and debit card in the
month of October 2009.Meanwhile it has
installed 12 ATMs and another 50 ATMs are
to be installed by the end of December
2010. 23,000 debit card have been issued as
on date, Very shortly UCB will issue prepaid
card as well.

With all the activities UCB has achieved a

Lo RN Lk 1G] AT

rkable position in the card industry as
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well as drawn attention in the banking
sector through introduction of new
technology based product Like SMS service,
Reward Point System Credit Card Cheque,
Double Insurance Benefit and Wide Global
Acceptability etc.

Retail Banking

The year 2009 was a milestone for the retail
business at UCB. This was the year UCB
actively embarked on the wings of retail as
far as both asset and Liability concerned.
Since the launch of retail asset marketing in
March, the retail closed the book at Tk
1,868 million by end of December 2009 {in
Just 10 months) which is very significant in
the context of the industry. The retail also
contributed in mobilizing 1,410 million in
the form of low/no cost deposit. This
business was possible due to the dedicated
sales officers, the huge branch network and
Iigher service quality level.

The quality of the asset has always
remained the prime focus of the
management which ultimately contributes
to the bottom line. In order to closely
follow up the disbursed loan, the retail
banking division has also set up a central
collection and meonitoring unit at Head
Office.

The bank has launched and designed its asset
products in a way to suit the requirement of
the general consumer. The main focus of our
service was aimed at faster delivery. In order
to increase the reach of the retail banking
service the bank has employed direct sales
officers at Comilla, and Khulna in addition to
its existing market of Dhaka, Chittagong and
Sylhet.

The bank has segmented its customers
which also contributed substantially to
change the image of the bank and to gain
more confidence of its customers and
patrons and of courses its shareholders.
Within this short time the name UCBL has
made inroads inte the retail market and
marked its presence among the leading
banks driving this retail market,

The bank has signed quite a number of
agreements with auto dealers and real
estate developers in order to facilitate the
bank's customer with privileged pricing in
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aetr.m-g products and service from them.
tail Sankmg Division also ran a very
on auto loan during the

Ramadhan which nat only hoostefthe

business of the bank but also helped in

establishing the name of UCBL in auta
a name to with.

In order to become the most preferred bank
among its target market by creating an even
mare competitive edge over the others, the
retail banking division is working extensively
to develop the following areas:

w Quality of service

o Strong relationship management,

» "Any where”, “Any time” Banking

» Improved processes

w Bundled product offerings

» Customer specific products offerings on a
regular basis

Credit Rating

With a view to safeguard the interest of the
prospective investors, depositors and
creditors and to improve the functioning of
the capital market of the country,
Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular No.06&
dated July 05, 2006 has made it mandatory
for the Bank's to have themselves credit
rated, Accordingly Credit Rating of United
Commercial Bank Ltd was done by Credit
Rating Information Services Ltd { CRISL) on
the audited Financial Statements as on 31-
w. CRISL has submitted their report as

Credit Ratin

Long Term | Short Term
A | 8T
June 30,2010

st December, 2009

Based on Financial
Statemnent
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UCH has been rated as A+ in the long term
which means adequate safety for timely
repayment. of financial obligations. This
level of rating indicates a corporate entity
with an adequate credit profile. Risk factors
are more variable and greater in periods of
economic stress than those rated in the

higher categarfes.

The short term rating 5T-2 indicates high
certainty of timely payment. Liquidity
factors are strong and supported by good
fundamental protection factors. Risk factors
are very small.
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Basel Il Implementation

Risk Based Capital Adequacy Framework
formally known as Basel Il has been adopted
by Central Bank of Bangladesh in 2009 which
makes banking sector more risk sensitive.
Moreaver, recent global financial meltdown
has added extra credence to implement
Basel Il more rigorously. In 2009 Basel || ran
parallel with existing Basel | and from 2010
capital adequacy is based on Basel I .

Hfeme TR T Bangladesh Bank has ssued a guideline for
mﬁg:‘ﬂﬁ%ﬁm‘zm Basel Il implementation and has specified the
Bt fellowing approaches for calculation of risk:
AT
v e e RS s m Standardized Approach for Credit Risk
w e 45 5% o i) et -mmrmlemedlwmmr
w = e v i ewd e L] Basiclndig?ulwoa:h (BIA) for
o3, YT @ s Phases of Basel Il Implementation
- 01, Assess and Plan
o3, wherg fidfee ¢ o 02. Design and Implementation
os. ¥ & S 03. Use Test and Approval
o8, e « fm 04. Monitor and Control
pr— pres— il
Gavemarce’
Risk Management
Crndh Risx.
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E P Warkot and Dcher Rk j 4 H
3 E - - Capecal Pranning i S g
11 3
It g age e # 5]
Suparvisary Review Proess
-2, TR LBRD 5 Formation of Basel Il Img fon Unit
2 TR @ T E AEE- o BaselllIimpl fon Unit has been

ATH <D TEM- TS GG 1w w7
w0 | <% YERE awe-2 T e A
AT FATHIT WA G A3 FAEE
forere-e st emreitel S avm T

F T W |

it '@

BueR w1, el gfewmz gz
ATTEIAFIRT T ATIF T0HR -2 47 Fomiw
wASBIT B St ST sTace |
FTRW AT M- 4 frvrrn e e

UCB Annual Report | 2009

formed in the Bank to ensure smooth and
timely implementation of Basel Il Accord.
This Unit performs the activities of Basel Il
implementation and establishes the
supervisory review process as required by
pillar-Il of Basel I framework.

Training and Workshops

The Bank has arranged a number of tr.

programs on Basel || for the Senior

Management, Credit officers, and Managers

of the branches. These Training prgigran:
T als
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‘the Bank familiar with the concept of Basel
Il and give them a solid understanding about
the new capital structure.

aration for Capital Ma
mmpuame with lh&pist:sel Ilm
there is a capital adequacy shortfall. At end
of December 2009, Capital Adequacy Ratic
{CAR) of the Bank was 6.67% of Risk
Weighted Asset against regulatary
requirement of 10.00%. To increase the
capital supportthe Bank has a
plan to inject new capital,

ation for Managing Risk

According to Basel |, Credit Risk is
considered as risk in Bangladesh; but in New
Capital Accord Market Risk and Operational
Risk is considered as risk in addition to
Credit Risk. For minimizing Credit Risk, we
are emphasizing on the Credit Rating of our
corporate clients. Market Risk basically
includes interest rate, exchange rate and
equity position risk which are properly
handled through Asset Liability Management.
For managing Operational Risk, the Bank is
fnitiating to install modern core banking
software along with other initiatives like,
anti-money laundering drives.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Bank
recommended 30% stock dividend i.e.
3{three) Bonus Shares for every 10{ten)
shares for the year ended on December
31,2009 subject to approval of the
shareholders at the 27th Annual General
Meeting.

Rotation/Appointment of Directors
As per Article 108 of the Articles of
Association of the Bank, one third Directors
shall retire by rotation at the 27th Annual
General Meeting for the year 2009, As per
article 110 of the Articles of Association,
they are all eligible for re-election.

Appointment of Auditors
M/SM.J. Abedin & Co, Chartered
Accountants, has completed audit of 2009
as third year and as per Bangladesh Bank
Circular No, 12 dated July 11, 2001 they are
not eligible for reappointment for the year
2010.Therefore, new auditor will be
PP d and their ition will be
fixed for the year 2010 by the honourable

29
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shareholders in the 27th Annual General
Meeting.

Conclusion

The Bank closed the year 2009 displaying
satisfactory performance in terms of volume
of business and net profit. With relentless
and dedicated efforts of the employees of
the Bank and sincere cooperation of all
concerned it was possible to achieve the
excellent results during the year. Above all,
strong liquidity base, stable deposit
structure, ability to procure low cost
funding, excellent growth in total assets,
prudent fund & credit management,
continued guidance and inspiration to the
Management by the members of the Board
played a vital role in the overall
development.

The Board of Directors places on record its
appreciation to the valued clients,
shareholders, business associates, and
numerous well wishers at home and abroad
for their continued patronage, support and
trust they reposed on the Bank.

The Board of Directors like to express
gratitude and thanks to the Ministry of
Finance, Bangladesh Bank, Securities &
Exchange Commission and other regulatory
bodies for their valuable guidance from
time to time,

The Board of Directors like to thank the
employees at all level for their
commitment, hard work and dedication for
sustainable growth for the Bank.

UCB fs committed to do better in future and
with this expectation we place before the
esteemed shareholders the accounts of the
Bank for the year 2009 for approval.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
[
4

{4d. Jahangir Alam Khan)
Chairman



Report on
Audit Committee

In compliance with the BRPD circular no. 12 dated 23 December 2002 and Securities anﬂ
Commission notification dated 20 February 2006, the Audit Committee was constituted by

Board of Directors of the Bank with a view to establish to a unique, slmngamdmmable

Banking system for all holders specially for

Composition:

The of the Audit C of the Bank s as follows:

|51 # | Hame Status with the Bank Status with the Committee
01 | A Sabur Director Chatrman
02 | Qamrun Nahar Director Mamber
03 | Kazi Enamul Hoque Director Mamber

As per regulatory guidelines, the Company Secretary of the Bank i5 the secretary of the Audit
Committee.

Meeting:
The Audit Committee has conducted 3 (three) meetings in the year 2009, Details of the
meetings are shown below:

[Name  [Wo. of Meeting Held Frasent Absent |
M. A Sabur 3 3 il

‘Qamrun Nahar 3 3 Hil

Kazi Enamul Hogque 3 3 Nil

Hajee M.A, Kalam, a Director of the Bank was present in one of the above mentioned meeting
dated 02 June 2009 as special invitee,

'I'I'émp;;!n job of the committee is to facilitate the Board of Directors in its oversight
p The foll are the key of the C during the period:

(a) Review of M s Finm:!al. Statements in line with Accounting Standard set by regulators,

(b} Review the findings and recommendations of extemal auditors.

[e) Review the report of Bangladesh Bank Inspecth P (DBI) and its
subsequent compliance thereof,

(d} Review the internal risk management procedure.

(e} Monitoring the Internal Controd & Compliance system of the Bank.

(f) Monitoring of effectiveness for removal of irregularities detected.

(g) Review of the Internal Audit Reports of the branches/departments and status of
compliance thereof,

(a} Review of the classified portfolio and recovery position of the Bank.

() Appointment of Auditors of the Bank for the year 2010.

{c} Assessment of activities of Bank Management in the line with the policies set out
by the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee express their gratitude and thanks to the Board of
Directors, Management and Auditor for their cooperation while performing its duties and
responsibilities.

R =

M.A. Sabur

Chairman 3 1
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Compliance Report on
SEC Notification

32
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of this Board Status Tatal Mesting Held | Attanded
Md. Jahangir Alam Khan ‘Chalman Fal 21
(Qamnun Nahar Viee Chasrman il 13
Hajea M. A. Kalam Director Fal n
Hajos Yunus Ahmad Diractor 21 0
M. A. Sabur Diractor Fal 0
M. A Hashem Diractor 2 19
| Shabbir Ahmed Director 21 0
Kazi Enarmul Hogue: Director 2 19
Showkal Ariz Russell Direcior 21 17
Riyadh Zatar Chowdhury Director Fal 10
Nur Uddin Javed Dirgctor Fal 18
Dr_Aziza Karim Director Fal 12
|Sataca Bagum Diractor 21 21

and other related parties : N

) Directors, Chiel Officer, C: ‘Chiof Financial Officer and Head of Intermal Audit:
_Nﬁu. HName of Directors E iiwii"”". Shares Held % of Helding
a) Directors
Md. Jahangir Alam Khan Chalrman 29,210 0.98
Qurnrun Nahar Vice Chairman 20,898 o070
Hajea M. A. Kalam Chalman-EC 41,669 139
M. A. Sabur Chairman-Audit 53,577 179
Hajes Younus Ahmed Diractor 64,620 218
M. A, Hashem Diractor 24,050 0.80
Shabbir Ahmead Director 22642 076
Kazi Enamul Hoque Director 27,181 0.61
Showkal Aziz Russell Director 25405 0.85
Riyadh Zatar Chowdhury Director 13,000 0.43
Nur Uddin Javed Director 28,388 0.98
Dv. Aziza Kanm Director 19,500 0.65
Setara Bagum Director 3,087 0.10
b) Chief Exacutive Officer M, Shahjahan Bhuiyan Nal
c) Company Secratary Mirza Mahmud Rafiqur Rahman Nl
d) Chief Financial Officer Abu Nur Md. Parvez Sajjad N
g) Head of Internal Audit Shahed Jalal Chowdhury Nl

Executives (Top five salaried employees of the company, other than the Directors, Chief Execufive
Office, Company Secretary,Chief Financial Officer and Head of Intemal Audit )

Designation

Shareholders heiding 10% or more voling inlerest in the company : Nil

Name Share Held
Shafiqul Alam

Muammad Shahidul Istam
Mamun-ur-Rashid

Barun Kanfi Saha

Zahirul Alam

EEEER
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Bangladesh Bank's guidelines
for Corporate Governance

34

Particulars

Compliance
Status

[ ibifities and authorities of the Board of Directors

{a) Work-planning and strategic management

{i) The Baard shall delermine the objectives and goals and fo this end shall chak out strategies and

work-plans on annual basis. it shall specially engage Rself in the affairs of making strategies consistent

with the delermined objectives and goals and In the ksues relating o structural change and
for of efficlency and cther relevant policy matters. It shall

analyze/ monitor at quarterty rest the work plans.

{il) The Board shall have its anahyical review incorporated in the Annual Report as regard the
wwewmIrlMWMWMwmmnw«nhMBmuﬂMWNdmll
appraise e of ks Tuture plans and strategies. It shall set
l|eWNMmme}hnaGOlmW&mwwmnww

M l.ndinn and risk management:
{1} The poficies, strategles, ic in respect of app proposal, sanction,

TECOVery,
under the purview of the existing kaws, rules and regulations, The Board shall specially distribute the
power of sanciion of anfinvesiment and such distibution should be made among CEOQ anc
his subordinale execulives as much as possible. Mo direclor, however, shall inerfere, direclly or
indirectly, in tha procass of loan approval.

{il) The Board shall frame policies for risk management and gel them complied with and shall monfior at
quarterty rests the compliance thereof

{ &) Internal control management:

The Board shall be viglant on the infernal control system of the Bark in onder fo aftaln and maintain
satisfaciory qualitative standard of Bs loanfinvesiment portiolio. It shall review al quartery rests the
reports s audit ittee regarding made in intemal and
endemal sudit d the Bang Inspection reports.

[CL and p

{i) Poilcles redating 1o recrultment, promation, transfer, disciplinary action and punitive measures, human
resources developmenl, elc and senice ndes shall be framed and approved by the Board The
chainman or e direclors shall in no way involve themselves or inferfere into o influence over any

aligrs inchading promation, kransler and discipinary measures as exoculed
under set service rues. Mo member of the board of directors shall be included in the selecsion
mmmmmmmmnhmmmmmmmnnw rest
upen the Board. Such iy and p il harve to be car nplying with the service
ndes e policies for recrukment and promoSon

(if) The: board shal & 1o thy of skils of bank's staff in diffarent Belds

mmmmmmmm isal of 10 the adogtion of

modern alectronic and and the of effackve Managemant
Syslom (MIS). The board shall got these prograrms i in ils annual work plan.

(e} Finangial management:
i) Th bud h hall Enaty be prepared with the approval of
mhmlmnwmmmmhmhmdmhmn

expenditure, quidity, non-performing assel, capital base and adequacy, maintenance of loan loss
provision and staps taken for recovery of defaulted lans including legal measures,
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Particulars

Compliance
Status.

(A Fi ion of supporting it

For decision on urpent matiers an execulive commitiee, whatever name callad, may be formed with the
directors. There shall be no committee or sub-committee of the board olher han e executive
committes and the audit commithes. Mo alemate diector shal be induded in these commifieos.

Comglied

() Appointment of CEO:
The board shall appoint o compatent CEO for the bank with the approval of the Bangladesh Bank

£ the chai of the board of directors:

l‘lJAuluanhmn af the board of direclors {or uuhmn of any committea formed by the bwniamy
director} does Yy possess the apply or executive authority, he
selmmmmhmmmhhm aamwm«opmmlm mmmoﬂm bank.

(b) The chaimman may conduct on-sie inspection of any bank-branch or financing activities under e
purview of the cvarsight responsitiBes of tha board. He may call for any information refafing to bank's

e CEOD, However, any complaint agains! the CEQ shal have lo be apprsed to Bangladesh Bank
fhrough the board alonp with the statement of the CEQ.

{c} The chaiman may be coffered an office-room, a personal secrelaryassistant, a lelephone al e
office and a vehicle in the business-interest of the bank subject to the approval of fha board.

Complied

w0

.| Responsibilities of the adviser:

The adviser, whatever name called, shall advisa the board of directors or fha CEO on such kssuas only
for which he i engagad in lams of the condiions of his appoiniment. He shall naEher have access to
fhe process of decision-making nor shall have the scope of effecting executive auorfty In any matters.
of the bank including financial, administrative or operational affairs.

Mo adviser &

Responsibilitios and authorities of the CEO:
Tha CEQ of the bank, whatever name caled, shall discherge the responsibiities and effect e
authorities as ollows:

() In lerms of the Enancial, business and adminisiralive aulhorties vested upon him by the board, the

CED shall discharge his own rsponsibiitios. Ho shall remaln accountable for achievemant of Enancial

and other business targets by means of business. plan, efficent implementation thereof and prudent
and financial

(h:TInCEOshdI ansuE mnplmdﬂnmcuwmkﬂ. 1881 andior other relevant laws and
in discharge of rouli

funcions of the banl

{c) The CEQ shall raport o Bangladesh Bank of issues violalive of tha Bank Companies Act, 1981 or of
ather lawsfregulations and, If required, may apprise tha board post facto,

{d) The recrukment and promation of all stadf of the bank mxcep! thasa in the two Bars below him shall
rest on the CEO. He shal actin such cases in accordance with the approved service rules on the basis
of the human resources policy and sanctionsd strangth of employees as approved by the board. The
board or the chalmman of any commites of the board or any director shall not get invalved or interfers
Into such affairs. The authority relating to transfer of and discipfinary measures agalnst the staft, except
fhose at one Bor below tha CEO, shall rest on him, which he shall apply in accordance with the approved
sonvica rules. Besides, under the pundew of the human rsources policy as approved by the board, he
shal nominate officers for training etc.

35

UCB Annual Report | 2009



Corporate Social
_____Responsibility (CSR)

36
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UCB has a long history of associating itself in
different spectrum of social responsibility & there
are numerous glaring instances of which we can
take pride. Over the past 26 years, UCB has
rendered extensive financial assistance for
charitable purpose. As a responsible corporate
citizen, UCB incorporated CSR activities into its
core strategic business planning and translated it
into action across different areas and community of
the country. For UCB, gelling involved in
community service and social development it not
just a part of business, it is engraved in our core
values, our vision and our daily practice. Serving
the community fs net just cur responsibility, it our
way of life. Among our various activities, we have
broken dewn some major activities under the
following heads:

Education

UCB Donated South Asian Economics Students’ Meet
organized by Dhaka University. |t was a prestigious
event arranged by Department of Economics which

A donation of BDT 2,00,000 was made to "Bissho
Shahittya Kendro®, an institute which is dedicated
to develop the reading habit among young
generation and Lo share knowledge among commen
peaple since its inception. Donation was given for
the purpose of celebrating their 30th Anniversary.

To bring forward the future talents who will
contribute to the technological development of
Bangladesh, UCE contributed an amount of BDT
50,000 to the "National Science Fair” organized by
Wills Little Flower School,

Last year Dhaka University held a day-long program
at the university campus for celebration of their
89th anniversary. A donation of BDT 60,000 was
made to Dhaka University in June for celebrating
this grand event.

In 2009, 5t. Joseph Old Boys' Foundation organized
for a reunion of their ex-students. UCB became a
patron for their "Annual Josephite Ball” and made a

provided a platform for the gradi students
to enhance their understanding of the economic
issues and problems of the region threugh
interaction across borders, Thus UCB provided
moral support to the students and became part of
this esteemed regional academic program.

University of Chittagong is one of the oldest
universities in Bangladesh. Though it fs a public
university, its number of students is huge. But the
students are deprived of technical education &
training since the university fund is limited. The
university approached us to provide financial
assistance for training the students with an
L

d of BDT 100,000 to 5t. Joseph Old Boys'
Foundation in October,

Health

In Banglad: Swine Infl (HINT) K

was first detected in mid-June 2009. More than
hundreds of people were infected by HINT virus &
everyday the number of infected people was
increasing widely. Being a socially responsible
corporate, UCE made a timely move by taking
initiative of launching a public awareness
campaign on Swine Flu Epidemic which was much
required at that time. Our campaign objective was
to make mass people aware of the disease for

ducing the risk of catching swine flu, The core

in the field of ed 15
computers worth of total BOT 3,75,000 were given
as a donatien to Chittagong University for its
students.

| 2009

message of this campaign was: “Swine Flu - Don't
be scared, be prepared”. UCB gave press
advertisements with swine flue awareness message



in major dailies. Total 20,000 posters with same
message were distributes in Dhaka & Chittagong.
Free face masks were distributed among people as
a part of this awareness campaign. 1,00,000
handbills were distributes in front of major
masques of Dhaka and Chittagong. Mega festoons
with swine flue prevention message were placed in
Railway Station, Bus Terminal & Sadar-Ghat. UCE
also sponsored a Talk Show “Swine Flu - Qur
Precautions™ which was aired on Channel i.

Besides this campaign, a donation was made to
SIED Trust for physiotherapy support for 50
underprivileged children with disabilities. In Health
sector our total spending was BOT 15,95,264.

Sports
In this sector our total spending was BDT 59,
80,000.

Bangladesh has been playing in the highest level of
Cricket (Test and One Day International) for more
than a decade. In the last few years our National
Cricket Team achieved remarkable success and
they have become a beacon of hope for the nation.
With the inclusion of twenty 20 game, the shorter
wversion of one-day cricket, the game has gained
even more popularity. UCB has been a promoter of
our National Cricket Team from the very
beginning. With an objective of assisting cricket
flourishing even more in the country, a donation of
BOT 21,00,000 was given to Bangladesh Cricket
Board for supporting ICC T 20 world cup which took
place from June 05 - June 21, 2009. Besides, UCB
also contributed for erganizing "PCL T20 Cricket
Competition 2009" organized in association with
Chittagong Divisional Sports Association & Ctg.
Zilla Krira Sangstha,

A donation of BDT 5,00,000 was made for supporting
“¥dth National Athletic Competition-2009" held on
April 03-04, 2009 at Bangabandhu Natlonal Stadium,
Dhaka. The competition was arganized by
Bangladesh Athletic Federation. 500 athletes of
Hational level were selected among thousands of
participants from different academic institutions,
seryice teams like Mavy, Air-force, Army, Police etc
from all around the country. These selected
athletes - including male & female - participated in
the competition. Honorable State Minister of Youth
and Sports, Government of Bangladesh inaugurated
the athletic competition on April 03, 2009, This
sports competition was very successful and got huge
response from mass people and media,

Golf has always been considered as one of the
most prestigious sports competition & UCB has
been promoting golf by denating the major
tournaments over the years. For the last 5
consecutive years UCB has been donating te
Bhatiary Golf & Country Club for organizing "Golf
Tournaments”, Year 2009 was no different and in
addition to donation in the tournament we also
provided financial assistance of BOT 15,00,000 for
the construction of UCB Halfway House and the
development /training of caddies/ball bays.

Art & Culture

To provide a platform for young artists & budding
music talents in the country, Channel | organized a
nationwide talent hunt program for the second
consecutive year. This program gained immense
popularity within a very short time. UCB became a
proud partner of this event and donated BDT
7,00,000 which was equally given away as scholarship
amaong the seven finalists. Grand Finale of the
program was held on Rajshahi Divisional Stadium,

As a part of the beautification process, City
Carp of Dhaka in with eminent
Sculptor Mr. Mrinal Haque is creating fine-looking
sculptures in the circles/mid-islands of the major
intersections of Dhaka City. Among those, UCB
daonated a handsome amount for the sculpture
lecated in the round-about just opposite Hazarat
Shahjalal International Airport, Dhaka.

To commemorate Late Abdullah Al-Mamun - a great
actor, director and inspiration of our country -
Bangladesh Shilpakala Academy & The Theatre
arranged a week-long program to celebrate his 67th
birthday. The program consisted works from Mr.
Mamun's life; his well-known dramas, movies &
documentaries. An information Souvenir was also
published in his loving memory during the event. UCB
made 2 denation of BOT 1,00,000 to Bangladesh
Shilpokela Academy & the Theatre for organizing the
event & for publishing the Souvenir in memory of
Late Mr, Abdullah Al-Mamun,

As a patran of art, culture and community activity,
UCB contributed a good amount to Uttara Club for
some of their development & renovation works and
also for organizing events and cultural activities of
the Club.
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Prime Minister's Welfare Fund

UCE has always been in the forefront when it
comes to donate in the Prime Minister's Welfare
Fund in time national crisis, natural calamity and
in various other problems.

In May 2009, Cyclone Aila struck Bangladesh and
swept away many parts of the country. Around 200
people died instantly and nearly half a million
coastal people became homeless. UCB came
forward to help these destitute and donated DT
10,00,000 to Prime Minister's relief & welfare fund
for the victims.

The BDR carnage happened in the February 2009
took the lives of 57 Army Officers leaving their
grief-stricken family members in uncertainty. It
was a national crisis and UCE moved on right in
time to assist those families. A denation of BDT
25,00,000 was made in this connection to the
Prime Minister's Welfare Fund for the affected
families of BDR carnage. The Bank also came
forward to render its helping hand for the well-
being of Ms Shanjana Sonia Jobaida, wife of Md.
Mominul Islam, a Martyred Officer in BDR carnage
by providing financial assistance of BOT 48,00,000
(Tk.40,000 per manth for a period of 10 years).

Environment

As a conscious corporate body, UCB is not enly
promoting environment friendly projects, but also
advising its clients to make their projects
[: as regards to issues.
Consequently, the corporates where UCB financed
- be it large or small - are becoming fully aware of
environmental impacts and complying with the
Bank’s requirements. Besides, the hallo effect
made more number of companies aware of the
fact. UCB is also under Tree Plantation Programs in
different areas of the country for maintaining
ecological balance.

Socio-Economic Development
In this sectar our spending was BDT 21,00,000.

Federation of Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce
& Industry (FBCCIjerganized a four day long SME
Fair May 24-17, 2009, at Bangabandhu
International Conference Center, UCE was a part
of this big event. As a continuous approach to

advocate SME growth in Bangladesh, UCB provided
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financial assistance to FECCI for organizing the SME
fair efficiently. Since the main purpose of this fair
was to introduce the products of the Small and
Medium Enterprises of Bangladesh to local and
foreign buyers and uce
came forward to support FBCCI with a goal to
promote SME sector.

In addition to this, UCE alse contributed in many
other events of organized by different other
business communities. For example, UCE donated
BDT 600,000 to Bangladesh Chemical Cengress-
2008 in January 2009 and also gave financial
assistance of BDT 600,000 to BACI (Bangladesh
Association of Construction Industry) to organize
37th IFAWPCA Convention where many
construction organizations from around the world
gathered. We provided 1 Computer, 1 Printer & 1
Multimedia Projector to Bangladesh Human Right
Commission.

Dhaka American Women's Club (DAWC) has been
providing a touch of community work by granting
charitable assistance to the less fortunate people
of the country. In doing so, they organize programs
to generate funds which is commingled by the

of the host and In
this connection, DAWC coordinated another event
as a part of their community service. UCB render
financial assistance (BDT 3,00,000) to carry on
their noble mission. The event was held on April
24, 2009 at Hotel Radisson. Representatives from
different embassies, donor agencies as well as
other dignitaries attended the event.

UCB was the only company to suppart
Government's Daylight Saving Campaign in 2009.
For mass level awareness, we gave press
advertisement in 2 leading national dailies. This
work was appreciated by many people.

The Bank also donated BDT 26,00,000 to
Bangladesh Association of Banks.



Disclosures under

Pillar-Ill of Basel-ll____

Disclosure Policy:

The following detailed qualitative and quantitative public disclosures are provided in with
Bangladesh Bank's rules and regulations on capital adequacy standard Basel || issued through BRPD
Circular # 0% on December 31, 2008, The purpose of these requirements is to complement the capital
adequacy requirements and the Pillar || - Supervisory review process.

These disclosures are intended for market participants to assess key information about the Bank's
exposure to various risks and to provide a consistent and understandable disclosure framewark for
‘easy comparison among banks operating in the market.

The major of Bangladesh Bank's (BB) regulati
&. To maintain capital adequacy ratio (CAR) at a minimum of 8% up&oJme 2010, 9% from July 2010 to
June 2011 and 10% from July 2011 to forward.

b. To adopt the standardized approach for credit risk for implementing Basel 11, using national
discretion for;
@ Adopting the credit rating agencies as external credit assessment institutions {ECAI) for claims
on Corporate Customers;
@ Adopting Credit Risk Mitigates (CRM) against the financial securities of loan exposure,

€. Te adapt standardized {Rule Based) approach for market risk and basic indicator approach for
operational risk.

Capital Structure;
The Bank's capital structure consists of Tier | capital and Tier || capital. Capftal Structure of the Bank
s as under as on December 31, 2009:

Tier-1 (Core Capital) ‘Amount (BDT in Crore)

Paid-up Capital 99 |
Reserve 184.12

General Reserve: 36.36
Retained Earning 233.08
Sub-Total 483,48
Tier-2 (Supplementary Capital)
General Provision 91.90 |
Assets Revaluation Reserves 43.53
Balance of Exchange Equalization A/C 0.80
Sub-Total 136.23
Total Eligible Capital 619.71

DISCLOSURES

01. Assets

a. Assets lying with the Bank.

At the end of December 2009 total Assets was BDT 9,048.38 Crore in which Banking Book Asset was
BOT 7,853.62 crore and Trading Book Assets was BOT 1,194.76 crore. In percentage, Banking Book
Assets was B6.80% and Trading Book Assets was 13.20% of total Assets.

Particulars Assets (BDT in Crore) % of Total Assets
Banking Book Assets 7,853.62 86.80%
Trading Book Assets 1,194.76 13.20%
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b. Hature of Assets

In total Assets of the Bank, Earning Assets was B5.49% at the end of 2009. In Earning Assets
79.75% was Loans & Advances, 12.08% was Investment, Call Money was 5.04% and 3.13% was in
Balance with other Banks and NBFls. Total Eaming & Mon-eaming Assets of the Bank as under:

Earning Base in Assets

BOT in Crore
2009
Total Assets 5,048.38
Eaming Assets 7,735.79
Non-eaming Assels 1,312.59
% of Earning Assets in total Assets 85.49%
% of Non-earning Assets in total Assets 14.51%

c. Default and Classified Assets
The Classified Assets of the Bank was within the tolerance level in 2009, NPL reduced to 2.54%
from 4.62% at the end of 2009.

NFL Ratio
Year Loans & Advances NPL NFL Ratio
2009 156.52 6,169.22 2.54%
2008 205,14 4,444.63 4.62%

d. Palicies and processes for protecting assets against Core Risks inherent with banking
activites.

To protect the assets from risks inherent with banking activities the Bank has implemented Core
Risk Guidelines,

02. Credit Risk in Banking Book

a. Credit Risk

Credit is the most important asset for the Bank. For Credit Risk Management, Bank always
emphasize on the Credit Risk Grading. The Bank also meticulously flow the guidelines of Core
Risk for Credit Risk Management.

b. Methods used to measure Credit Risk
As per Central Bank's Guidelines, the Bank fallows dized Ap h far of
Credit Risk.

Credit Risk Management

The global economic crisis has radically changed the credit risk environment not enly of the
developed countries but also of the emerging and developing countries. The economy has
slumped with loan defaults soaring around the world. The Board of Directors and the
Management play their due role to manage the credit risk efficiently amid this credit crunch.
UCBL manage its credit risk in the following manner:

Delegation of Credit Approval

Credit approval authorities are carefully segregated between CRM and the Business Units with
appropriate level of management for check and balance between control and business
consideration. Proper delegation of credit approval ensures full transparency and accountability
at all levels,

Credit Quality and Portfolio Diversification
The well practiced 5Cs principles of Credit i.e. Character, Capacity, Capital, Conditions and
Collateral are followed prof lly in the credit fon stage. Evaluath




ability, ch of financial and its key p |, financial health of the borrewer
and other qualitative and guantitative information are gathered so that credit facilities are
allowed in a manner so that Bank's optimum asset quality is ensured. Concentration of credit fs
carefully avoided to minimize risk. Credit Lines have been segregated focusing on regulatory
requirements and with respect to sector, industry, geographical reglon, maturity, size, econamic
purpose etc.

Large Loan limit and Credit Facility on business Consideration

The Bank watchfully avolds name lending. Credit facility shall be allowed absolutely on business
consideration after conducting due diligence. No credit facility is allowed simply considering the
name and reputation of the key person of the borrowling company. In all cases, viability of
business, credit requirements, and security offered, cash flow and risks level are meticulously
and professionally analyzed.

Separation of Credit Risk Management Divisien (CRMD)

CRMD has been segreg from Credit Division in line with Central Bank's
Guidelines. CRMD assess credit risks and suggest 9 befare dation of every
credit proposal. Credit il that security documents are in place
befare disbursement.

Early Warning system

Performance of Loans is regularly monitered to trigger early warning system to address the loans
whose performance show any deteriorating trend. It enables the Bank to grow Its credit portfolio
in a sustainable way to ensure higher quality and lower risk with the ultimate chjective to
pratect the interest of depositors and shareholders.

Provision
For Classified Loans and Adv Bank enough Thus, the Bank has shock
absorbing capacity in case of loss of impaired assets,

Independent Internal Audit and Board Audit

Internal Control and Compliance Division (ICCD) 1r|d|s|)|:‘nrle||r.ljI werifies and ensures, at least once
fn a year, p with lending g h Bank guideli

procedures, adequacy of internal control and documentation. Board dudit Di\dsiun directly
reports to the Board/Audit Committee the overall quality, perfarmance, recovery status, risks
status, adequacy of provision of loan portfolio for information and guidance.

Creating Credit Risk Awareness Culture

Strong emphasis has been placed to create credit risk awareness among all lending employees
‘within the Bank. Awareness programs have been conducting regularly to create a risk-conscious
culture and empower them with the capability to identify, control and manage Credit Risks more
effectively.

03, Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest Rate refated instruments in Trading Book of the Bank are handled by Treaswury Division.
The Division reviews the risks ef changes in Income of the Bank as a result of mavemnents in
market interest rates.

Trading Risk arises from dealing in interest rate instruments with the purpose of generating
ncome fram thefr purchase and sale, Effective Interest Rate Rigk Management is done as under:

Trend Analysis of Market Movements
Trend analysis of market movements are reviewed by the Treasury Division of the Bank.
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Analyzing Interest Ralc Sensithvity

ALCO has for the g of assets and liabilities, monitoring and
minimizing interest rar.e risks at an acceptable level. These guidelines and actions are taken in
adherence to the policies issued by Bangladesh Bank from time to time. ALCO in its regular
monthly meeting analyzes Interest Rate Sensitivity by computing GAP i.e. the difference
between Rate Sensitive Assets and Rate Sensitive Liability and take decision of enhancing or
reducing the GAP according to prevailing market situation in order to mitigate interest rate risk.

Forelgn Exchange Risk Management

Risk arising from potential changes in earnings resulting from exchange rate fluctuations, adverse
exchange positioning or change in the market prices are managed by the Treasury and
International Division. If money is converted to another currency to make an investment, then
any changes in the currency exchange rate will cause that investment's value to either decrease
or increase when the investment s sold and converted back into the original currency. Foredgn
Exchange Policy of the Bank has been formulated with a view to reducing the Foreign Exchange
Rigk where Treasury Division has given authority to conducts the Foreign Exchange transactions.

Continuous Monitoring of Foreign Exchange Risk

Bank's Treasury Division manages and controls day-to-day trading activities under the supervision
of ALCO that ensures continuvous monitoring of the level of assumed risks. Treasury Division
maonitors the foreign exchange price changes and Back Office of the Treasury Divislon verifies
the deals and passes the entries in the books of account.

Revaluation of Foreign Exchange Transactions at Mark-to-Market Method

ALl foreign exchange tr are lued at Mark-to-Market method according to
Bangladesh Bank's guidelines. The pasition maintained by the Bank at the end of day was within
the stipulated limit prescribed by the Central Bank,

Nostro Accounts Management

The Bank has to maintain Nostro accounts in various currencies with different countries. These
Accounts are operated by the International Division of the Bank. All Nostro accounts are
reconciled on a monthly basis. The management reviews outstanding entry beyond 30 days for
settlement purpose. The Management sets limits for handling Nostro accounts transactions
including time limits for settlements of transactions and time and amount limits for items which
are investigated after receipt of the account statements. Nostro accounts are verified by the
external auditors and reports are submitted to Bangladesh Bank.

FX Transactions are carried out on behalf of customers

FX Risk is minimal in the Bank, as all the transactions are carried out on behalf of the customers
against underlying L/C and other r UCBL's foreign
exchange trading exposures are principally derived from customer Mval transactions, and major
risk arises from movement of price.

Equity Risk Management
Equity Risk is the risk of loss due to adverse change in market price of equities held by the Bank

Valuations of Investment Portfolio

Mark-to-Market valuations of the share investment portfolio is followed in measuring and
identifying risk. Mark-to-Market valuation is done against a predetermined cut loss limit. As at
December 31, 2009, there was no Equity Risk on share investment, as the market value of shares
were higher than the cost price.

Diversified Investment to minimize Equity Risk
UCBL minimizes the Equity Risks by Portfolio diversification as per investment policy of the Bank,



04, Operational Risk

Operational Risks are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed fntemnal process, people
and systems or from external events are managed competently to protect and uphold the Bank's
reputations, Within the Bank, Operational Risk may arise from negligence and dishonesty of the
employees, lack of management supervision, inadequate operational control, lack of physi:al
security, poor tech gy, lack of fon, nan- of ¥
internal and external fraud ebc It is monitored and controlled wian the Bank through an
Risk B d\ to provide 2 sound and well-controlled
operational environment.

05. Mai of Specific Provisi

For Classified Loans and Advances, the Bank maintains enough provision. In the year of 2009, the
Bank maintained BOT 60.92 crore of Specific Provision against the total Classified Loans of BOT
156.52 crore.

06. Maintenance of Regulatory Capital

Capital Structure:

Capital of the Bank mainly consist of Tier -1 (Core Capital) or Tier-2 (Supplementary Capital). In
total capital of BOT 619.71 crore, Core Capital was BOT 483.48 crore at the end of 2009,

Overcoming the capital shortfall in line with Basel-1l, the Bank has prepared a 5 years plan
accordingly the Bank will cvercome the shortfall in 2010.

07, Capital Adequacy
The Bank has fully adopted the Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in line with Basel Il The

Banks policy is to maintain more than adequate Capital Adequacy Ratio at all times consistent
with the growth of business.
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Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of United Commercial Bank Ltd.
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We have audited the accompanying Balance
Sheet of United Commercial Bank Ltd. ason 31
December 2009 and the related Profit and Loss
Account, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of
Changes in Shareholders Equity and Kotes to the
Financial Statements for the year then ended.
The preparation of these financial statements
are the resp of the bank 2

Qur ility is to exp an i

opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to oblain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of
maLerial misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a best basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in Lthe financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management as well as
evaluating the overall financial statements
presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Except for the effect on the financial statements
of the matters discussed in notes 2.12bi and
7.13, in our opinion, the financial statements
prepared in accordance with Bangladesh
Financial Regorting Standards (BFRS), give a true
and fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as
of 31 December 2009 and of the results of its
operations and cash flows for the year then
ended and comply with the applicable sections
of the Bank Companies Act, 1991, the rules and
regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank, the
Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and
Exchange Rules, 1987 and ather applicable laws
and regulations.
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We also report that :

(i} We have obtained ail nd

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due
verification thereof :

{if} in gur cpinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the bank so far as it appeared from
our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been recelved
from branches and not visited by us ;

{ifi} the UCBL's balance sheet and profit and loss account
together with the annexed nates dealt with by the report
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(1) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the
business of the Bank;

(v) except for the effect on the financial statements of
the matters discussed in above, the financial position of
the bank as at 31 December 2009 and the profit for the
year then ended have been properly reflected in the
financial and prepared in with the
generally accepted accounting principles ;

{vi) the financial statements have been drawn up in
conformity with the Bank Companies Act, 1991 and in
d with the g rules and regul

fssued by the Bangladesh Bank ;

(vii) Adequate provisions have been made for advances
which are, in cur opinion, doubtful of recovery (Note-
7.13);

{viif) the financial statements conform to the prescribed
standards set out in the accounting regulations issued by

the Bangladesh Bank after fon with the
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statements ;

(x) the information and explanations required by us have
been received and found satisfactory and

{xi) except for Tk 509,009,446 as disclosed in note - 13.04
(b}, the capital adequacy ratio (CAR), as required by law,
has been maintained adequately during the year.

(=

R e —

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Dated : 28.06.2010
Dhaka, Bangladesh
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2009

o
PROPERTIES & ASSETS
Cash .00
Cash in Hand (Including Foreign Curmencies)
Balanon with Bangladesh Bank & Sonali Bank
{including Foreign Curmencias)

Balance With Other Banks & Financial Institutions
In Bangladesh

Outside Bangladesh

Money at Gall and Short Notice

Investment

Govemment
Others

7,003,756,021

5,776,423 909

Loans and Advances
Loans, Cash Credit Overdrafts etc.
Bills Purchased and Discountad

Fixod Assets Including Premises, Furniture Fixiure 800 1,305810,015 999,188,451
.00

Other Assets 4816328155  3,024,358,531
Non-Banking Assets -
Total Assts AN TR

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities:

Borrowings from Other Banks, Financial Institutions
And Agents

Deposits and Other Accounts
Curront Duposit & Other Accounts
Bills Payabla
Savings Bank Deposits

Temn Depasit

Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital / Shareholders’ Equity
Paid up Cagital

Statutory Resenve

General Reserve

Assets Revaksation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve ( HTM)

Rovaluation Resarva (HFT)

Retained Eamings

Total Shareheiders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Sharehalders Equity
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Off Balance Sheet Items

As at 31 December 2009

31 Dec. 2009 | [ 31 Dec. 2008

Contingent Liabilities : 17.00
Accoptances & Endorsemants mm

18,085,795,608
10,032.216,273
2411610723
5524441410
117,527,203

Documenlary credd and ofher shor term bade
related transactions:

Forward assels purchased and forwand deposits placed - -

Unddrawn formal standby taciliies, credd lines and other - =
commitments

Total Off-Balance shest Hems Including Contingent Liabilities 22009100840 _18,085,195,609

Tne accompanying notes 01 to 40 form an Integrad part of this financial statements.

\ Pl ik
S 4
ing Director Director Diractor Director
As por our saparali report of sven data annexed
L-\,\,l/n__(__?
-
Dated -June 28, 2010 M. J. ABEDIN & CO
PPlace : Dhaka Chartered Accountants
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Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended 31 December 2009

48
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| Amount In Taks
| e 31 Doc. 2008 | [ 31 Dee. 2008

DPERATING INCOME
Interest Income 18.00
Interast paid on Deposit and Bomowings: 19.00 4, T
MNet Interest Income 2617,086,773  2,008,527.066
Incoma from Invastmant 20.00 963,452,750 670,700,480

Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 21.00 1121489041 1,135,917,466
Other Opearating Income 22.00 490,015,943 294,266,118
Total Operating Income (A} 5152054618  4,100.442,030
DPERATING EXPENSES
Salary and Allowancos 23.00 1,132,146,806
Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting etc. 24.00 121,028,338
Legal Expenses 25.00
Postage, smmps. Tedagram, Telephone stc. 26.00
Stalionery, Printing, Advertisemants ole. 27.00
(Chisf Execufive's Salary inchuding cther Fees 28.00
Diractor's Fse and other Expenses 29.00
Auditors Fi
Doﬂm and Repair of Fixed Assels 30.00
Other Expensas .00
Total Operating Expanses (B)
Profit{Loss) bafora provision (G ) = (A-8) 2125169480 _2,443,806,078
Provision for Loans & Advance 3200
Provision for Diminuion in Vilue of Imestmants
Other Provision 33.00
Total Provision (D)
Total Profit bafore Income Tax (C-D)
Pravision for Taxation 34.00
Curent Tax Expense
Daferred Tax Expense
ot Profit after Tax
APPROPRIATIONS
Stakdory Reserve
General Reserve
Dividands
Retained Surplus
Eaming Per Ordinary Share (EPS ) (Basic) 35.00 N 1P N
The 01 to 40 form past of this financial statements.

2. it Hhery
Diractor

As per cur separate eport of even dale annexed,

Ing Director

/a____h

Dated = June 28, 2010 J. ABEDIN & CO
Place : Dhala Chartsred Accountants

| 2008



A. Cash Flow From Dperating Activities
Interast Receipls
Interes! Payments
Dividend Receipt
Foes & Commission Roeceipt

Operating Profit before Changes In Operating Assets
and Liabiltties (i)

Changes In Operating Assets and Liabllities:
Statutory Deposd

Purchase/Sales of Trading Securites
Loans and Advances 1o Custormens
Omer Assels

Deposit from Banks
Deposit from Customens

Other L

Linbisos
Cash Utilised in Operating Assets and Liabilities (i)
Net Cash Fiow from Operating Activities (i1}

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activitios
Proceeds from Sales of Securilies
Purchase of Secuities.
Purchase of Propery, Plant & Equipments

Sales ol Property, Plant & Equipments
Net Cash Employed in Investing Activities (B)

C. Cash Flows from Financing
Receipt fram Bmu&lwuwmnf Deblm
of
cunmmmnmmg of Drdinary Shares
Cash Dividend
Net Cash Recelved from Financing Activities (C)

Net Cash Decroase) [A+B+C)
Effocts of e Changes of Exchange Rate on Cash
and Cash Equivalents®

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalant at 01 January
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent at 31 Decomber

Dated : June 28, 2010
Place : Dhaka

E 31 Dec. 2009

36.00
Ir.oo

3800

30.00

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended on 31 December 2009

in Taka
3 Dec. 2008
7,701 405,200 6,306.433,843
(4,348,234,862) {3.740,785.703)
8,441,852 35,015,558
643,790,345 634,175,502
71,779,782 8,681
(1,322,928,804) {1,137,492,010)
(394,964,595)| | (237238388
(783,950,615) (752,673,400
1,115,028,845 874,582,839
2,426,366,851 TS, TTT 655
(1,728,373,116) [ 11.231.878.852]]
(@o2531.212) | (260777313
(18,747,821,694) | (7,735,106,590)
(1,008,010,008), (458,493 823
12,189.269,887
| 1.142.736.451 |
— 636,651,060
—BAI229518
(124,508,388) {181 .212.1-Ih)
(383,731,611) (652,258,783
109,821 75
(516,430,178) (828,125,104}
550,000,000 -
@58,308)| | (321,377.079)
Si0.541 694 A7)
A1SBTITETE 4262927332

_ 9124305442 4,861378,110
4000 13323033320 _ 9124305442
The accompanying notes 01 to 40 form an integral part of this financial stalements.

%o

.-’\%%Q’a gy
— B

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Tl
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009

The sccompanying notes 01 to 40 fom an integra part of Sis Snancial stalements.

2. ke

Amount in Takn
Assets Investment
Particulars m Ganaral Ratalnad Revaluat Revaluatk Total
| Resere | Sumhit | Roserve | Reserve |
(Batance &5 o1 01 January 2008 296,204 850 363562302 | 1.242,085454 - - 3137223404
[Restated Balance 299,204,800 363,563,302 | 1,242,095404 - B EEEETT
| Supius/Dafict on Revaluation of Proporties. 23 & = 1Y ASEAGH 555 - 458,456,556
of - 25,777,566 25,777,566

Dither DeScSurius - - -
(Mot Gains and L n Stal - - - - - - -
[Hat Profit for the year TB4.T45.570 T4, 745,570

s E &
tsaua of Shane Capital - - - - - - -
Ty T — XTI T BT A KT Y A
\Balance as 8t 31 Decombar 2008 | Z09.204800) 1.524962.504 | 363.563.302 | 25777566 | 4384243099 |
(Batance &s 88 01 January 2008 265,204,850 | 1.524.962.504 363563302 | 1,M4.238278 | 456,496,559 25TTT566 | 4,384,243, 096
Changes | Pulicy g e | 5 2 s g 2
Restated Balance BRI04890 | 1524962504 |
[Surpiun/Dnficit on Revaluation of Propartios - -

of

Do DeBciSurhus:
Mat gairs and losses not recognized In Incoma Statemant - -
[Nel Profit for the Year
Dividends:
lesum of Sham Capital - -
|Acpmpdation made duringShevear | - | J0A37IAG |
\Balance as ot 31 Docombar 2000 | 2992048901 1833335403 |

e 1

—

ing Director

Dated : Juni 28, 2010
Place | Dhaka

Diractor

Director
As por our saparate report of oven date annmeed.

‘A’“[/"*ﬂ-“{‘ ‘

M. J. ABEDIN & CO
Chartered Accountants




5007 | 1sodey yEnuuy gon

IS

Statement of Liquidity
Analysis of Maturity of Assets and Liabilities

As on 31 December 2009

ool Upto 1 Over 1 Month | Over3Months | Owver fyear |
|P. | Month 12Months | upto 5 ey el

= s | 10516308604 | 1305810015 |
Other Assels 975488667 | 202568258 | @ 350.547.270 | 9.191.027.385 B696.550 | 4.616,328.155 |
|Non Banking Assels - - ] - + 5
Total Assets [ 20011,789,570 [ 14,748,124,065 [ 27,304,407,357 | 17,134,650,671 | 11,284,810,180 | 90,483,781,843
Liabilities
Borrowing From Bangladesh Bank Cther Bank

Note : Net resull of the Liquidity P th Equity of the Bank,




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
1.00 The Bank and its Activities

The United Commercial Bank Limited (UCBL) was incorporated in Bangladesh as a public limited company
with limited liability as on the 26th day of June of 1983 under C ies Act 1913 (subsequentl
replaced by Ci fes Act 1994) and ¢ d its 1 y after i with due
permission from Bangladesh Bank w.e.f ISﬂlemnberl%l Ithm%lnndiesallwerﬂuuhdesh

The principal place of business and the registered office were located at 60, Motijheel Commercial Area,
Federation Bhaban, Dhaka- 1000, Bangladesh. Principal place of business have been changed from
January 2010 to Plot # CWS (A)1, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka - 1212,

1,01 Principal Activities

The principal activities carried out by the bank include all kinds of commercial banking activities/services
to its customers through its branches and electronic delivery channels in Bangladesh.

2.00 v of Sigr A g Palicies and Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
2,01 Statements of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared up to 31 December each year in accordance
with the “First Schedule (section-38) of the Bank Companies Act 1991 as amended by BRPD Circular no.
14, dated 25 June 2003, other Bangladesh Bank Circulars, Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standard (8FRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Listing Regulations of the
Stock Exchanges, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other laws and rules applicable in
Bangladesh,

2.02 Basis of Consolidation

A separate set of records for consolidation of the statement of affairs and income & expenditure account
of the branches are maintained at the Head Office of the Bank based on which these financial
statements have been prepared.

2.03 Basts of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
fallowing:

Government Treasury Bills and Bonds (HFT) at present value using mark to market concept.

Government Treasury Bills and Bonds (HTM) at present value using amortization concept.

Quoted ordinary shares at cost or market price which ever is lower at balance sheet date.

2.04 Revenue Recognition

The revenue during the year are recognized as following which satisfy all conditions of revenue
recognition as prescribed by BAS 18 * Revenue Recognition™.

a) :;ste:st is calculated on daily product on unclassified loan and advances but charged on quarterly

b} Interest & charged on classified loans and advances by crediting “Interest Suspense Account” fnstead of
interest income as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular No. 16 of 1989,

) Dividend income s recognized at the time when it is realized.

d} Income on investments is recognized on accrual basis,

¢} Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization,
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2.05 Recognition of Interest on Deposit

2] Interest expenses are generally recognised on accrual bass taking into account of daily balance
outstanding at the rate applicable for respective deposits and credited to depositors account half
early basis. No interest is applicable on balance lying in current deposit account. Interest on FDR
accrued but not due to clients Afc was credited to "Other Liability A/c - Interest Payable®.

by} Other expenses are also recognised and recorded on accrual basis.

1.06 Fees and Commission Income

Fess and commission income arises on services provided by the Bank are recognised on a cash receipt
basis. Commission charged to customers on letters of credit and letters of guarantee is credited to
income at the time of effecting the transactions,

.07 Investments

All investment securities are initially recognized at cost, including acquisition charges associated with
the investment.

Held to Maturity (HTM)

Investment which have “fixed or determinable payments™ and are mtended to be held to matunl.y are
classified as “Held to Maturity™. These i are subr d at d cost, less
any p for in value, cost is calculated by taking into account any discount

or acquisition. Any gain or loss on such investment is recognised in the profit and loss account when the
investment is derecognised or impaired.

Held for Trading (HFT)

Investment classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in short trading or if designated as such by the management. After initial recognition, investments are
measured at present value and any change in the present value is recognised in the profit and loss
account for the year in which it arises.

Revaluation

As per the DOS Circular Letter no. 03, dated 26 May 2008, HFT securities are revalued on weekly basis
and HTM Securities are amortized on yearly basis. The HTM Securities are also revalued if they are
reclassified to HFT category with the Board's approval, Any Gain or Loss on revaluation of HTM securities
is recognized in the statement of changes in equity. Gain f (Loss) on revaluation of HFT securities is
recognized in the profit and loss account on weekly basis and gain or revaluation is transferred to
statement of changes in equity on monthly basis .

Yalue of investments has been shown as under:

Government Treasury Bill (HTM) At amortised cost price
Treasury Bond (HTM) At Ised cost price
Treasury Bond (HFT) At present value
Prize Bonds At cost price
e Redeemable Value
Un Quoted Shares At cost price
Quoted Shares At cost or market price whichever is
lower at balance sheet date.

53

UCB Annual Report | 2009



2.08 Fixed Assets and Depreciation
) Assets are stated at cost or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation.

b} Mo depreciation has been charged on Land. Full year depreciation is charged for the assets which are
purchased before the month of December and no depreciation is charged at disposal year.

Rate and method of charging depreciation of fixed assets are mentioned below:

Name of the Assets Rate of Depreciation Methed of
Charging Depreciation
Immovable Property (Land) NIL Not Applicable
Immaovable Property (Building) .55 p.a Reducing Balance Method
Furmiture & Fixtures 10% p.a Reducing Balance Method
Vehicles 20% p.a Straight Line Method
Office Equipment 0% pa Reducing Balance Method
Computer & Equipments Wi pa Straight Line Method
Computer Software 5% p.a Straight Line Method

Gain or loss on sale of fixed assets are recognized fn profit and loss account as per provision of BAS 16
“Property, Plant and equipments”

<) As at 19 March 2008, Bank's land property was revalved by a Padma Techno Consult & Survey Ltd.
Accordingly, revaluation surplus is included in fixed assets and assets revaluation reserve of these

financial statements.
2,09 Other Assets
Other assets include all other fmncial assets and include fees and other unrealized income receivable,
advance for and capital di and stocks of and stamps. Details are shown in
Note-09.

2.10 Liabilities and Provisions
a) Borrowings from Other Banks, Financial Institutions and Agents

Berrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest-bearing borrowings
redeemable at call. These items are brought to financial statements at the gross value of the
outstanding balance. Details are shown in Note-10.

b} Depesits and Other Accounts

Depaosits and other accounts include non interest-bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interest
bearing on demand and short-term deposits, savings deposit and fixed deposit. These items are brought
to financial statements at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Details are shown in Note-11.

©) Other Liabilities

As per BAS -37:"Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets™ the Bank recognizes provisions
only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Other liabilities comprise items such as provision for loans and advances /investments, provision for
taxes, interest payable, interest suspense, accrued expenses etc. Other Liabilities are recognized in the
balance sheet g to the of bank, Income Tax Ordinance-1984 and internal
policy of the bank. Details are shown in Note-12.
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d) Capital / Sharehalder's Equity

1. Authorized Capital
Authorized Capital is the maximum amount of share capital that the bank is authorized by its
morandum and Article of Association to issue to

1i. Paid-up Capital

Paid-up Capital represents total amount of sharcholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary
shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to vote at shareholders meetings. In the event of a winding-up of the company, ordinary
shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual
proceeds of liquidation. Detafls are shown in Note-13.

fil. Statutory Reserve
Statutory reserve has been maintained @ 20% of profit before tax in accordance with provisions of
section 24 of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 until such reserve equal to its paid up capital.

v. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation reserve arises from the revaluation of Treasury Bills and Bonds (HFT & HTM) in accordance
with the DOS circular no. 5 dated 26 May 2008,

. Contingent Liabilities

Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Bank; or

Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

- It s not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or

« The amount of cbligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements unless posstbility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is reliably estimated,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements as this may results in the recognition of
income which may never be realized.

2.11 Provident Fund

Provident fund benefits are given to the employees of the Bank in accordance with the registered
Provident Fund Rules. The Commissioner of Income Tax, Dhaka (North) has approved the Provident Fund
as a recognized provident fund within the meaning of section 2 (52) read with the provision of part - B of
the First Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance 1984. The recognition took effect from November 30, 1988,
The Fund is operated by a Board of Trustees consisting 03 (three) members of the Bank. All confirmed
employees of the Bank are contributing 10% of their basic salary as subscription to the Fund. The Bank
also contributes equal amount of the employees' contribution. Interest earned from the investments is
oredited to the members’ account on half yearly basis,
2.12 Gratuity
a) Gratuity benefits are given to the employees of the Bank in accordance with the approved Gratuity
fund rules. National Board of Revenue has approved the gratuity fund as a recognized gratuity fund on
December 27, 1995, The fund is operated by a Board of Trustees consisting 3 (Three) members of the
Bank Employees are entitled to gratuity benefit after completion of minimum 5 (five) years of service in
the Bank. The gratuity is calculated on the basis of last basic pay.
b} i) Recently Bank has appointed Z. Halim & Associates (Acturial & Pension Consultants) for actuarial
valuation of UCBL Employees Gratuity Fund. As per acturial valuation report submitted by Z. Halim &
Associates, shortfall of the Gratuity fund has been assessed at Tk. 239,510,000 up to 31.12.2009.

fil Z. Halim Associates has recommended to make provision @ 10.10% of the basic salaries per manth
‘which comes to Tk. 45,080,000 {approx) until the next acturial review which should not be later than
3122011,
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2.13 Earning Per Share (EPS)

The company calculates earning per share (EPS) in accordance with BAS 33 "Earnings per Share” which
has been shown on the face of Profit and Loss Account. This has been calculated by dividing the net
profit after tax by the total number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the year, Details are
shown in Note - 35.00 and 35.01.

Basic Earnings
This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. Net profit after tax has been
considerad as fully attributable to the erdinary shareholders.

‘Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Share

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number
«of ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by a time weighted factor. The time weighted factor
is the number of days the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in
the year.

2.4 Statement of Liquidity

The Liquidity statement of assets and Liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual
maturity term as per following basis:

a) Balance with other banks and financial institutions, money at call and on short notice etc. are on the
basis of their maturity term.

b} Investments are on the basis of their residual maturity term.

) Loan and advances are on the basis of their repayment/maturity schedule,

d} Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful lives.

) Other assets are on the basis of their adjustment.

) Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents as per their maturity/ repayment term
) Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and behavioral past trend.

hj Other long term lfability on the basis of thefr maturity term.

1) Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their settlement.

2.15 Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with BAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and the
cash flow from the operating activities have been presented under direct method as prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph 18 {b) of BAS-7 which
provides that “Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow from Operating Activities using the Direct
Method™.

2.16 Statement of Changing in Equity

Statement of Changing in Equity has been prepared in accordance with BAS-1,"Presentation of Financial
Statements” and under the guidetines of Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular No.14 dated 25 June 2003.

2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent Taka currency using the ruling exchange
rates on the dates of such transactions. Assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2009 in foreign currency
are translated into Taka currency at the prevailing mid rate and notienal rates of the concerned forelgn
currencies of that day. Difference arising through transactions of foreign currencies buying and selling on
different dates of the year has been adjusted by debiting / crediting to exchange gain or loss account.

Bank did not conduct any forward foreign exchange dealings during the year 2009,
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2,18 Post Balance Sheet Events

The following pest balance sheet events occurred after the balance sheet date up to the signing the
audit report:

+ The shareholders approved increase of Authorised capital of the Bank from Tk.100 crore to Tk. 200
crore in the EGM held on June 7, 2010.

- Pending AGM's of the Bank for the accounting years ended 31 December 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and
2006 were held on 07 June 2010 at Radisson Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka following judgment and order
passed by the Appellate Division of the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 07 April 2010. The shareholders
approved the earlier declared stock dividend @%0% (For the accounting year 2002, 2003, 2004), 50% (for
the accounting year 2003) & 40% (for the accounting year 2006).

+ Board of directors recommended 25% stock dividend for the year 2008 & 30% stock dividend for the
year 2009 respectively at 3015t Board meeting dated 28.06.2010 .

- Board of directors also decided to recommend to increase the authorized Capital from Tk, 200,00 crore
to Tk. 800.00 crore subject to consent of the regulatory authorities.

2.19 Segment Reporting
The bank has only one reporlahle business segments and the operation of the bank is within the

al territory of Bangl h. Hence segment reporting in accordance with BAS-14 “Segment
heportlng‘ is not applicable.

2.20 Risk Management

The Bank has taken initiative to bring down business risk at an acceptable level by implementing the Risk
Management guidelines covering the following risk areas.

a) Asset Liability Management

Proper management of Bank's assets & liabilities is required for successful banking. United Commercial
Bank Limited is managing its asset liability through asset liability desk under supervision of a well
structured asset liability committee (ALCO). Asset liability ittee (ALCO) is responsible for
short-term & long-term liquidity and ensuring that the bank has sufficient Uquidity at all times at rhe
most appropriate funding cost.

Asset Uability committee (ALCO) of the bank also observes maturity profile of assets and Liabilities,
deposit and investment trend and other key indicators.

b) Credit Risk Management

Bank's largest asset component comprises different sorts of loans and advances which involve numerous
credit risks and such risks are termed as the prime risk of a Bank.

In the above perspective, United Commercial Bank Limited has developed a systematic, procedural and
robust Credit Risk Management (CRM) system that are sensitive and responsive to fast changing dynamic
National and Global econamy.

The Bank has well-defined Credit Risk ¥ Manual with support sub-manuals, policies and
procedures The enhre credit fumtmns vis-a-vis credit marketing, processing, risk analysis, approval,
dac recovery and legal functions are independent to one another

and ged by different Dep and Divisions, Marketing activities of the corporate customers as
well as their account monitoring are locked into by Corporale Banking Division (CBD) and Small &
Medium Enterprise (SME) customers by SME Division, All the loans and advances marketed by these
Divisions are approved by different tiers of Authorities through Credit Risk Management Division (CRMD).
Likewise, retail and consumer credits are managed through separate marketing and credit approval wing
of Retail Banking Division and Card Division.
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Due diligence is made in assessing every credit dealing through rigorous process. After therough
assessment of risk profile of customers, well-versed Credit Committees assess and recommend the credit
proposals for further processing to upper level based on delegation of authority. Upper authorities at
appropriate level then approve credit proposals by applying their versatile knowledge and good
Jjudgment.

The Bank has a unique credit monitoring system. In addition to menitoring of customers and their
account conducts by Corporate Banking/ SME/ Retail Banking Division, the Credit Administration
Department {CAD) of CRMD alse monitors the accounts and security status of customers. Moreover, there
is a separate monitoring cell to address high risk and problematic customers through a strong
ic Account C (PAMC) g of Senior of Credit

Credit Risk Management, , Credit Recovery and Internal Control & Compliance Divisions. As soan as any
credit is down-graded below Special Mention Account (SMA), the customer is referred to Recovery
Division and Legal Division for next courses of action under guidance of a defined Recovery Policy.

All the prudential guidelines and instructions of Bangladesh Bank and other regulatary bodies are strictly
followed while performing credit related activities and maintaining credit discipline.

In fine, the Bank endeavors to manage both portfolio and transaction risks with high standard in terms of
concentration, quality, control and compliance in order to minimize Credit Risks and to ensure an
acceptable level of return for all stakeholders.

<) Foreign Exchange Risk
Forefgn Exchange is generally termed as the risk that could create a probability of losses due to adverse
movement of the Exchange Rates. The Treasury Division of the Bank keeps a vigilant eye on the
mavement of the Exchange rates on dafly basis in spite of the fact that the Bank does carry out Foreign
Exchange deals backed by underlying transactions of the clients. The Front Office of Treasury Division is
totally separated from the Treasury Back Office bath functionally and physically and both the segments
are independent in carrying out their respective functions as per the Manual Bangladesh Bank's
Guddelines on Foregn Exchange Risk Management.
d) P tion of Money Laundering as Oy fonal Risk
Money Laundering risk is considered as operational risk as per Terms of Reference (TOR) supplied by
Department of Offsite Supervision, Bangladesh Bank, Dhaka and defined as loss of reputation for non-
compliance of the directives issued by the Anti Money Laundering Division, Bangladesh Bank, Dhaka
under the AML Act, 2009. In order to mitigate the AML risk the Bank has setup a separate Wing nalned
“AML Wing™ and ounsuwted a Committee named "Chief Anti Money L ing Compliance C:
{CAMLEC) headed by the Chief Anti Money Laundering Compliance Officer {CMI_CO} Similarly, same
nature committee has been constituted in Branch level named “Branch Compliance Unit™ (BCU) headed
by the Branch Incumbent or any other senior level Executive/Officer designated as "Branch Anti Money
Laundering Compliance Officer” (BAMLCO) in compliance with Bangladesh Bank directives,

The BCU in Branch level has successfully completed obtaining of KYC for the accounts opened on or
before 30.04.2002 (99.00%) and has been ebserving the KYC procedure strictly in opening of fresh
accounts since April, 2002 under the effective supervision of CAMLCC at Head Office. Monitoring of
Suspicious Transactions (STR) in all depository accounts are being conducted by our Head Office regularly
in compliance with Transaction Profile (TP) and monthly statement of Cash Transaction report (CTR) s
being submitted to Bangladesh Bank, Dhaka regularly by developing software for our all Branches.

At present, Prevention of Money Laundering activities is conducted in the Branch through Self
Assessment procedure and Independent Testing Procedure as per Clause No.6.5 and Clause No.6.6
respectively under the AML Circular No.15 dated 24.03.2008. Training Programme on Anti Money
Laundering for our 100% Executives and Officers has been leted in June, 2008. Imp g of training
programme for the newly joined officers is under process through inclusion of one session on AML issues
in all Training Programmes conducted by our Bank's Training Institute from time to time. Besides,
Training Programme on AML issues is also running through Lead Bank system as designed by Anti Money
Laundering Division, Bangladesh Bank, Dhaka.
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&) Internal Control and Compliance

For managing core risks in banking, the role of Internal Control System fs very impartant to ensure strong
compliance throughout the bank. Internal Control and Compliance is a process to detect errors,
omissions, improper process, fraud & forgeries and also deviations of legal & regulatory requirements to
mitigate the same to secure the interest of the Bank. Every year periodical audits viz. Functional Audit,
Risk Based (Process) Audit, Special/Surprise Inspections are conducted at the branches and divisions of
Head Office with a vision to identify the risks associated with the pm-:ess and adopt measures tn
mitigate the same to protect the interest of the Bank, The Audit C of the Board

reviews the reports of the Internal Control & Compliance Division. The bank has formulated audit policy
duly approved by the Board of Directars of the bank in February 2010, The policy Includes measures for
rewarding efficials of ICCD as well as branch{s) as a whele for spot rectification of irregularities while
auditing/inspecting a specific branch, It includes different propositions to bring down the frregularities
at a Zero level within the set time frame. It is observed from compliance of different branches that they
have achieved a remarkable progress in the process of rectifying major irregularities towards bringing
down the irregularities at a Zero/tolerance level.

f) Information & Communication Technology {ICT) Risk Management Framework

The information asset is a definable piece of information stored in any manner, which is valuable to UCB.
The information, which comprises an information asset, can be a customer name & address, or may be
the plans and salient features of a new product to be released to compete with our competitors. In
essence Information assets are critical for the services pravided by the bank to its customers. Therefore
the protection and maintenance of these assets are critical to its sustainability. Our Information Security
Risk Assessment determines possible areas of vulnerability, and initiates appropriate remediation. This
assessment of threats to, impacts on and vulnerabilities of information and information processing
facilities and the likelihood of their occurrence allow establishing relevant controls in respective
business environment. The bank has already taken prudent steps for the protection of vital and classified
information from unauthorized access, modification, disclosure and destruction to protect its” customer's
interest. The bank has developed an IT Policy for different IT Operatiens adhering international best
practices which are also in line with the ICT Guidelines of Bangladesh Bank,

UCE's Inf: Security Risk A process i fies the following as possible areas,
which in turn, has identified appropriate policies for the protection of those, as available in respective
security policies.

i) Access Risk

Access risk refers to the impact of unauthorized access to any assets of UCB, such as customer
information, passwords, confidential financial information, legal information ete. through information
system, Processes are in place to ensure that unauthorized access to our information is strictly
prohibited.

i) Business Disruption Risk

Business disruption risk considers the impact if the function or activity was rendered inoperative due to a
system faflure, or a disaster situation. Consideration is given to the impact on UCB's customers, as well
as other UCE operations. Only such disruption caused by technology dependant system will be considered
here.

i) Data Integrity Risk

Data integrity risk addresses the impact if inaccurate data is used to make inappropriate business or
management decisions. This risk also addresses the impact if customer information such as account
balances or transaction histories were incorrect, or if inaccurate data is used in payment to/from
external entities. The release of inaccurate data outside UCB to c h | the
public, ete. could lead to a loss of business, possible legal action or public amba:rmmenl
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iv) Physical Harm Risk
Physical harm risk considers the risk of harm to both emplayees and customers of UCE while in the banks.
premises or while performing banks business. This risk also applies to UCE's assets including computers or
other equipment that may be damaged due to misuse or improper set-up and storage, or negotiable
instruments and other documents that may be damaged or destroyed, The risk assessment will examine
only such issues that are affected by the information system or functions drawing from information
system as a resource,

Additionally the bank is taking Data Backup on daily basis whereas one copy is being stored at the branch
premises and another copy is being kept at remate site to mitigate risk in case of disaster at branch
premises.

The bank has established a Disaster Recovery site fully equipped with communication link, physical
access control, uninterrupted power supply and data storage facility.

The bank has taken initiative to maintain insurance coverage for its ICT assets, considering servers,
desktop computers, communication devices and power supply.

The bank has been maintaining physical security for its workplace very seriously to protect ICT respurces
as per the Physical Security Guideling of Bangladesh Bank for Tier-2 banks. Due to dangers of theft,
vandalism and unauthorized access to our systems, restrictions have been put on physical access to
where computers are located. These computer premises have been safeguarded against unlawful and
unauthorized physical intrusion. Physical access to high security areas including computer premises at
Branches, and sensitive areas like Data Centre (DC) and Disaster Recovery (DR) is protected from theft,
physical intrusion, fire, flood and other hazards with strong identification and authentication technigues.
All members of ICT Division have well defined job descriptions (JDs) along with segregation of functional
role with fallback plan. The bank has also identified the role of continuous improvement as a vital
of ICT Risk Hence the bank has been continuously conducting training sessions

on sensltiwe IT tasks and ICT Paolicies of the bank, covering Problem Management, IT Operations
Cl t Password Control, Email Etiquettes, User ID

Mmagement, Wirus thecuon, Access Control eLc,

To facilitate uninterrupted ICT services, the bank is pursuing Service Level Agreements (SLAs} with
vendors for providing critical services on time,

2.21 Taxation

a) Current Tax
The company is a publicly traded company as per the Income Tax Ordinance 1984, Provision for the
Income Tax has been made at the existing rate of 42.50% in respect of business income,

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax arises due to temporary difference, deductible or taxable, for the events or transactions
recognized during the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income tax recoverable in
future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of
income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
& liabilities are measured using tax rate & tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date. The Bank recognized deferred tax accounting policy as per Bangladesh Accounting Standard
(BAS - 12},

As per calculation reguired Deferred Tax liability for taxable temporary difference arises to Tk,
69,94,609/- and bank has made provision against thereon Tk, 70,00,000/- rounded figure,
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2.22 Advances and Provisions
a) Loan and advances are stated in the balance sheet on gross basis.

b} Interest is calculated on a daily product basis but charged and accounted for quarterly on accrual
basis. Interest on classified loans and advances is kept in suspense account as per Bangladesh Bank
Instructions and such interest is not accounted for as income until realized from borrowers.

¢} Provision for loans and advances is made on the basis of periodical review by the management as per
the instructions contained in Bangladesh Bank BCD Circular No.34 dated 16 November 1989, BCD Circular
No.20 dated 27 December 1994, BCD Circular No. 12 dated 4 September 1995, BRPD Circular No.16 dated
& December 1998, BRPD Circular No.9 dated 14 May 2001, BRPD Circular No.02 of February 2005, BRPD
Circular No.09 of August 2005 and BRPD Circular No.17 dated 06 December 2005. The classification rates
are given below:

General provision on general (unclassified) loans and advances ] 0%
General provision on special mention account [ 05%
General provision on small and medium enterprise @ Mm%
General provision on consumer financing (Credit Card) @ 05%
General provision on consumer financing (House Finance) @ 0%
General provision on consumer financing (Loan Professionals) @ 0%
General provision on consumer financing (Others) @ 05%
General provision on Agri Loan @ 05%
General provision on Off-Balance Sheet Exposure @ 0%
Specific provision on sub-standard loans and advances [ 0%
Specific provision on doubtful loans and advances @ 50%
Specific provision on bad/loss loan and advances [ 100%

Loans and advances are written off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery and
(i) against which legal cases are pending for more than five years as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.
However, the write off will not reduce the claim against the borrower. Detailed memorandum records
for all such write off accounts are maintained carefully and followed up.

1.23 Off Balance Sheet Items & Provision

Off-balance sheet items have been disclosed under contingent liabilities and other i as per
Bangladesh Bank guidelines. As per BRPD Circular # 10, dated September 18, 2007 Banks are advised to
maintain provision @ 0.50% effective from December, 2007 and @ 1.00% effective from December 2008
against off-balance sheet exposures (L/C and Guarantee) in addition to the existing provisioning.

2.24 Reconciliation of Inter Bank and Inter Branch Account

Accounts with regard to inter bank (in ladesh and outside ladesh) as well as inter branches are
reconciled regularly and there are no material differences which may affect the financial statements
significantly.

2.25 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balance held with Bangladesh
Bank and highly liquid financial assets which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair
wvalue, and are used by the Bank management for its short-term commitments.

2.26 Comparative Information
a) Wherever considered necessary, figures of previous year have been rearranged for comparison purpose.
b) Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded of  to the nearest Taka,
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2.27 Audit Committee

The audit committee of the boam was comtmmd by the Board of Directors of the bank in its emergent
meeting held on 03 April 2004, in its Board Meeting held
on 14 June 2005, The Audit Commlttee of tlse Board of mmcturs ouns1sted of the following 3 (three)
members of the Board.

Sl No. | Name Status with Status with Educational
the Bank the Committee Qualification

o M. A Sabur Director Chairman MBA (IBA)

02 Quamrun Nahar Vice Chairman Member )

03 Kazi Enamul Hoque Director Member B. Com.

During the year 2009, the Audit Committee has conducted 03 (Three) meetings. Details of the meetings
are shown below by date,

Meeting No. Held on
19th 03 February 2009
20th 02 June 2009
st 11 November 2009

The Audit Committee discussed the following issues during the year 2009:-
a) Review the frequency of both functional and process of internal audit

b Appointment of Auditors of the Bank for the year 2010

2.28 Auditors’ Working-hour

The external auditors, M/s. M. J. Abedin & Co, Chartered Accountants of the Bank worked more than
5,240 hours at the Bank's Head Office and different branches. During their audit, they have audited
above B0 of the Bank's risk weighted assets as at the reporting date.

2.29 Regulatory and Legal Compliance

The bank complied with the req of following regul and legal

a) The Bank Companies Act, 1991

b} The Companies Act, 1994

¢) Rules and Regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank

d) The Securities and Exchange Rule 1987, the Securities and Exchanges Ordinance 1969, the Securities
and Exchange Commisshon Act 1993, the Securities and Exchange Commission (Public lssue) Rules 2006

) The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984
) The VAT Act, 1991
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3.00 Cash in Hand and with Bangiadesh Bank & Sonali Bank

3.01 Cashin Hand

In Local Cumrency 1,201,993,820 755,868,518
Cash in ATM 10,269,400

In Foreign Cumency (WES) - -

In Forsign Cumrency 14968856 _ 10,155292

1.227,332.118 800,123,740
3.02 Balance with Bangladesh Bank & Sonali Bank

In Local Cumency 3847202379 3,560,848,400
In Foreign Curency 1,929,131,5630 384,832,268
776, 000 T8O,
7,003,756,028 4,745,904, 417
3.02.01 Balance with Bangladesh Bank
In Local Curency 3,189,538,980 2,864,542 497
In Forsign Cumency 1,829,131,530 384,832 268
5,098,670.620 3,249,774 785
3.02.02 Balance with Sonall Bank
In Local Cummency 677,753,388 656,005,812
In Foroign Cumrency - -
677,753,385 686,005,812

3.03 Statutory Deposit

Cash resarve ratio (CRR) and statutory Bquidity requirement (SLR) have been calculated and maintained
in accordance with section 33 of Bank Companies Act, 1981 and of instrucions contained in BRPD
Circular No. 11 dated 25 August 2005, BRPD Circular No, 12 dated 25 Augus! 2005 , BRPD Circular
No,15 dated 31 Oclober 2005 and DOS Circular lefier No, 10 daled 11 Seplember 2006 issued by
Bangladesh Bank.

The cash resarve ratio of the Bank calculated @ 5% of total time and demand kab#ties and maintained
with Bangladesh Bank in cument account and 168% statutory Bquidity requiremant, including CRR, on the
same liablliies has also been maintained with Bangladesh Bank in the form of treasury bills, bonds and
debentures including forsign curency balances with Bangladesh Bank, CRR and SLR reserve
maintained by bank ane shown below ©

3.03.01 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR)
{ 5.00% of Average Daemand & Time Liabilities)

A Required Reserve 2,894,610,360 2.523,189,270
B. Actual Reserve Maintained (Note - 3.02.01) 3,160,538,990 _ 2,864,042,497
€ Surplusi{Deficit) 174,928,630 341,743,227
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3.03.02 Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)
13 Demand

& Tima Liabilities)

3.02.03 Total Requirement (1A+24)

Total Hokd (Note-3.03.04)
Total Surplus/{Shortfall) (1C+2C)

3.03.04 Hold for Statutory Liquidity Requirement

4.00

4.0

| 2008

Cash In Hand { Note- 3.01)

Balance with B,Bank & its Agont Bank {Local Currency] (Note-1.02)
Govt. Secuifies (Treasury Bills) { Note-5.01)

Govt. Treasury Bond (HTM) { Note-6.01)
Gowvt. Treasury Bond (HFT) { Note-6.01)
Stock of Prize Bond { Note-8.01)
Dabenture { HBFC) { Note -6.01)

Balance with Other Bank and Financial Institutions

Inside Bangladesh (Note - 4.01)
Outskda Bangladesh (A

Inside Bangladesh
A, Current Account

Sonall Bank B.B Avenue
Standard

Chartored Bank | Visa Card )

Dutch Bangla Bank Lid,

B. STD Accounl
Janata Bank
Bank
Sonali Bank B.B Avenue

C. Fixed Deposit
AB Bank Lid,
NCCBL
Standard Bank Lid.
Mutual Trust Bank Lid.
Mercantis Bank Lid.
Eastarn Bank Lid.
Ono Bank Lid.
Jamuna Bank Lid.
Southeast Bank Lid.
Dhakn Bank Lid.
Uttara Financa
Dodta Brac Hol
Prima Finance & Investmant Ltd.

Total [A+B4C)

& Finance Investment

[ Amount in Taka |

31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008
7785986036 6,560,318,102
9784958472 _ 7.647,629,500
1,998,071,536 _ 1,087,311,398

10780507.206  9,083,517.372

12954 407462 _ 10,512, 571.9007
273,900,166 __ 1,429,054,625

1227332118 800,123,740
3,847,202 379 3,560,948.409

- 144,658,255
2,658,016,214 2,.370,360,285
5,187,911,250 3,505 528 208
3,945,500 5,553,100
30,000,000 35,000,000
TzssusoTdss 0512571997
1782,187,922  3,783,803,779

—B5708D.370 ___4B4.797.246
Zaeamies _azesa0izs

57,424,082 85,586,800

30,814,002 21,510,552
29,119 -
7,257 858 -

14,865,721 17,098,625

— 17250762 11179489
—127.650575 135375406
24,604,376 36,585,422
9,831,614 9,543,950
101,357 98,941
—SASIT34T 48228313

1,000,000,000

100,000,000
100,000,000
—400000000 __-__
—L600,000,000 _3.600,000,000
1,762,187,922 _ 3,783,603,TT9



4.02

5.00

6.00

6.02

6.03

Maturity Grouping of Balances with
Oiher Banks & Financial Institutions

On Damand
Upto 3 Month
Ower 3 Month upto 1 Year

Money at Call and Short Natica

Mercantic Bank Lid,
Uttara Bank Lid.

Dulch Bangla Bank Lid.
Bank Asia Lid.

One Bank Lid.

Janala Bank Lid.
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

Invesiments

Govemmen! Securlies | Note-6.01)
Ofher Invesiments (Nofe-5.02)

Government Securitles

Treasury Bill (At value)
Gowl. Troasury Bond (HTM)
Govl. Treasury Bond (HFT)
Debenture (At cost)
Priza Band {Al cost)

Othor Investments
Sharo (At cost) (Defalls in Annexure-B)

Maturity Grouping of Investmant

On Dormand
Upto 3 Month

Over 3 Month Upta 1 Year
Ower 1¥ear upto § Year
Owver 5 ysars

Amount In Taka |
31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

784,730,045 800,172,712
1,0034,537.347 3,648,228,313

B00,000,000 -
ZA2TT8? 630z

600,000,000 -
500,000,000 *
500,000,000 *
100,000,000 .

1,200,000,000 =
400,000,000 -
300,000,000

T.879,672.064 B,151,409,848
1,4686,519,050 1,048,179,450
9,346,392,014 7,200,679,208

- 144,658,255
2,858,016,214 2,370,360,285
5,187,811.250 3.505,928.208

30,000,000 35,000,000
1
7,879,872 6,151,490,848

—1465510050 __ 1,040170.450
1,466,519, 1,049,179,

834639014 7200875208

3,945,500 5,553,100
5,000,000 5,000,000
1,054,619,662 BTE, 252 914
6,021,103,138 4 282 110,059
2,261,723.714 2029 763,225
TeMsaa0 1200670208
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[ Amount in Taka ]

|_31 Dec. 2000 | 31 Dec. 2008

6.04 Costand market value of investment as on 31 Decomber 2008

Cost Market Valua! Market Valua!
—(Taka) _ Amortized Cost Amortized Cost
Treasury Bills { Govt Securities) - - 144,658,255
Govt, Treasury Bond (HTM) 2,550,757,500 2658016214  2,370.360,285
Gowvt. Treasury Bond (HFT) 4.800,065.330 5,187.911,250 3,595,828 208
Debenture 30,000,000 30,000,000 35,000,000
Shares 1466,518,050 2253641744 1,052.031,841
Stock of Prize Bond 3,945,500 3945500 _ 5553100
I033514,708 _7203,501,783
7.00 Loans and Advances 61,692.218339 _44,446,332,765
7.01 Maturity Grouping of Loans & Advances
{including bills purchased and discounted)
Payable on Demand 6,309,322068  6,936,285,303
Upto 3 Manth 14,250,555,807 9,402,038 337
Orer 3 Month uple 1 Year 20,252,862,609 15,003,926 413
Owver 1¥ear upio 5§ Year 13311011043 10,015,953,262
Over 5 yaars 7568466812 _ 3088120450
—B1692218339 _44,446332,765

T.02 Loans & Advances
i) Loans, Cash Credit & Overdraft etc
8) Inside Bangladesh
Loan 38,493,760,088 | | 26,540,308, 495
Cash Credils 11,740,536, 854 8877332414
Overdrafts 1 i

60487087 484  42,300,890811

b} Outside Bangladesh

60,487 0BT 494 _42,300.880811

i) Bills Purchased & Discounted (Nate : 7.12}

a) Payable Inside Bangladesh
Intand Bills Purchased 987,430,996 1,557,683 406
Local Bill Discounted - -

b} Payable Outside Bangladesh
Foreign bills purchasad & discounted 217,609,849 587,756,548

—L205,130845 _2.145441,954
61 18, 44,446,332, 765

7.03 Mat Loan & Advances

Gross Performing Loans & Advances | Node- 7.02) 61692218339 44 446,332 765
Less : Non Pedorming Loans & Advances (Naote- 7.08 b) 1,822,305,000 2,051,380,000
Inerest Suspense | Note- 1217 ) 381,273,958 401,170,128
Provision for Loans & Advances ( Note- 7.10) 1,307.257503 | | 1,248,915 863

3,320,636, 461 701,465,891
58,371,381 878 40,7 74
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Amount In Taka |

31 Dac. 2009
7.04 Loans & Ads According to C: i
@)  Advances to e companies of firms in which the Directors.
of the Bank are interested 128,250,966 128,450,956
b}  Advances to Chie® Executve and ather senkor sxecutives 191,960,585 144, 706,612
c) Advances to customars group
L] Commercial Lending 16173518426  11,586,794.316
L] Import Finance 12.510,351.901 11.899.911.234
) Export Finance 2,264,384 247 3,823,850.6T1
LY] Heuse Bullding Loan 4077,181,746 1,688,052.910
v}  Transport Loan 658,243 581 331,338,351
i) Radail Loan 1/865,866.215 =
vi)  Staff Loan 139,348,207 110,791 465
i) Industrial Loan 21473222663  14,077,702.932
) Othars 23209888 802 553,935,278
Total Loans & Advance VG PR EE TTT

7.05 Indusiry wise Position of Loans and Advances

RMG & Accessorias 6.163,600.000  5.453,500,000
Textile Industries 5075500000  6.478,000,000
Agricullure 237,000,000 175,100,000
Food Products & Procassing 1.670,100.000 1.028,500,000
Jute Industries - 5,600,000
Leather & Leather Products 79,800.000 33,600,000
Papar & Paper Products Industries 932,500,000 93,000,000
Wood & Wooden Products 220,300,000 -

Chemical & Chemical Products 1,064,600,000 1,033, 200,000
Cement Industries 242,600,000 276,100,000
Giass & Glassware Product Indusiries 5,400,000 51,300,000
Brick Field, Auto Bricks, Tiles 237,200,000 110,300,000
Enginearing, Basic Motal & Products 1410800000  2.609,100,000
Ship Re-cycling 1,504,100,000 BE2,000,000
Ship Manufacturing / Buliding 382,300,000 168,100,000
E Institute, Hotel, 105,600,000 403,100,000
Telecommunication 1,166,300000  1,008,400,000
Transport & Communication 750,900,000 331,300,000
DisgnosticMedicaliClinic 444,800,000 447,900,000
Housing Industry 4.196300,000  1,848,800.000
Construction { Other than Housing ) 1667,100000  1.232,800,000
Tea Manulachuring 44,600,000 18,000,000
Electronics Media 165,200,000 -

Power & Energy 1,548,500,000 432,400,000
Commercial Trade Financing 20435900000  1,436,100,000
Others 11,619,218,000  _18,888,933,000

61,692218,000 _44,446,333,000
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7.08

7.08

7.08

Geographical Location wise Loans & Advances
Urban

Dhaka Region

Chistagong Reglon

Sylhat

Rajshahi

Khuina

Barisal

Rural
Dhaka Regicn
crmomg Region

Ra}ananl
Khulna

Bector - wise Loans and Advances

Govemment & Autonomous
Co-Operalive Secior
Other Public Sector
Privale Seclor

Detail of information on Advances more than
10% of Bank's Total Capital

Number of Chents
Amount of ¢ g A C)
Classiflad Amaount

Mication of Loans & Ads L
to Bangladesh Bank's guidelines

a)  Unclassified
Standard
Standard (Small & Medium Ent.)
Standard (Consumar Finance- Credit Card)
Standard (Consumer Finance-House Finance)
Standard (Consumer Finance - Loan Professional)
Standard [Consumer Finance-Others)
Standard (Agd Loan)
Standard [Others.)

b) Classified
Sub - Standard
Doubtiul
Bad & Loss

¢} Staff Loan

UCB Annual Report | 2009

[ Amount in Taka ]
31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

41,238,415805  28,119,770,237

11,558,370.421 10,304,417,983

444,926,740 118,185,572
2,008,242,353 1,833,411,805
4,382,680,263 3,143,783,490

— 105,267,433 __450953,250
—50,827,903,034 _43,565522,337

888,841,227 560,756,263
687,628,692 126,576,702
182,642,853 84,702,695
105,202,433 79,774,768
1,864,315 305 880,810,428

51892218309 _44,445,332,783

61602218300 44445332765
61,692,218,339  _44,446,332,765
ar M
#3,200,300,000  18,365,100,000
832,565,000 220,458,000
13,820,407000  10,.248319,000
844,088,000 625,331,000
200,880,000 -
12,868,000
1,089,153,000 -
274,008,000 -
42 564,638,000 31,036,349, 785
58,738,605,000 42,138,455 765
399,545,000 387,656,000
236,781,000 538,466,000

985 578,000 1,124 258 000
1622305000 _2,051,380,000




T.i0 of required p for Loans &

| AmountinTaka |
Base for Rate of 3 Dec. 2009 I 31 Dec.
Pcticuls Provigion Provision [~ |
Provision Required
General Provislon (a)
Spacial Mantion Account 827,580,000 5% 41,379,000 11,156.000
Small & Medium Enterprise 13,920,407,000 1% 139,204,000 102,483,000
Consumier Fin.- Cradil Cand 844,088,000 5% 42,204,000 30,910,000
Consumer Fin-House Finance 200,880,000 2% 4,018,000 150,000
Consumer Fin - Loan Prof. 12,866,000 2% 257,000 -
Cansumer Fin-Others 1,089,153,000 5% 54,458 000 -
Agriculture Loan 274,008,000 5% 13,700,000 "
Standard (Others) 42,564,638,000 1% __425646000 310,364,000
—T20866000 ___ 455,063,000
Specific Provision (b)
Sub - Standand 186,451,000 20% 37,291,000 57,258,000
Doubtiul 68,363,000 5% 34,682,000 206482,000
Bad & Loss 503,240,000 100% 503,240,000 524,271,000
575,213,000 788,008,000
for Loans & (A+B) 1,296,079,000 1,243,072,000
Tatal provision held for Loans & Advances 1.307,257.503 1248915863
Excess/{Short) Provision 11,1 5,843,863
I Amount in Taka I
7.11 Disch F of Ad
i} Debts considered good in respect of
which the banking company is fully
socured 49200328482 29,305.095,860
i} Dobis considered good for which the
banking company holds no other security
than the deblors persanal security 5830605326  3,175,984,163
i} Debts considered good secured by the
personal liabiliies of ane or more parsies
in addition 1o the personal securty of the
dabtors. 6,562,284 531 11965252733
W) Dobls adversaly classified, provision nol
mantained there againsL I —
T1En2165% _usie3ages
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v}

iy

wil)

viil)

i}
x

)

i)

uiiy  Amount of written off loan for which law sult fled

Debts due by direclors of officers of the
banking company or any of tham either
separately or jointly with any other person
Dbds due by companies of firms in which
the direciars of the banking company are
interosted as  direciors, pariners, or

managing agents or in case of private
companies, as membears

Maimum fotal amount of advances,

temporary advances made at any time

during the year to directors or managers

or officars of the banking company or any

of them elther severally or Jointy with any

olhes persan

Magimum lolal amount of advances,

incheding temporary advances granted

during the year o the companies or firms

In which the Direclors of the Bank are

Interested 88 dieclors, parners or

managing agents of in the case of private

COMPanias a8 mombrs

Dua from banking companies

Amount of classiSed advances on which

no interest is applisd

a) Decrease/ Increase in provision

b) Amount realised against  kan
previously written off

) Amount of provision kept against loan
classified as Bad /Loss on the balance
shaat dale

d} Interest credited to Interest Suspanse Aic
Cumulative amount of the writien off loan
Amount written off during the year

7.42 Bllis Discounted and Purchased

a) Payable in Bangladosh
b) Payable Outside Bangiadesh

T.12.01 Maturity Grouping of Bills Purchased and Discounted

Upto 1 Manth
Over 1 Month upto 3 Month
Crvar 3 Month upto & Month
Over & Month
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459,657 896

128,260,966

182,073,000

1,622,305,000
58,341,840

71,623,032

554,483,503
184,795 456
5,484,004 489
1,690,990, 423
4,604,448,087

BET,A430,996

217,600,849
1,205,130,845

240,481,443
407,571,585

384,948 420

125,450,966

58,485,000

128,182,117

2,051,380,000
(7,837,176)

8,546,681

530,089,863
274,763,280
3,783.014,088
935,344 489
2,919,277,803

1,557,683,406
587,758,548
2,145,441,954

495,157,609




713 The ioBowing bormwers accounts considersd as marginal / walch lis loan and advances dus to the fact

that the movements and transactions and mecovery are not satisfactory. The bank management is closely

thesa account and ¥ no satisfaciony movement s made within 30 June 2010, In thal case the

bank managament will take necessary action against the borrowers according fo the guide Ene of
Banglacesh Bank.

Name of the Borrower

7.14 Suit filed by different branches against
defaulted borrowers during the year 2008

Hama of Branches Number of Suit Suit Value Suit Value
Principal Branch 1 502 134,601,173
Elephant Road Branch L] 1,267.024,831 27,858,661
Narayangon] Branch 7 135,414,385 240,962,752
Chowmuhani Branch 1 211,087 1,112 885
Khulna Branch 2 5,184,006 A4.820,673
Chapai Nawabgong Branch 2 9,240,968
Bogra Branch 1 3,974,884 -
Moapara Bazar Branch [Jessore) 4 14,082 AT8
Khatungong Branch T F
Kawran Bazar Branch 1 603,913
Laxmipur Branch 1 9,150,200 -
Sythet Branch 1 8,586,461 i
Agrabad Branch 2 66,075,371 +
Anderkila Branch - - 4,188,741
Faridpur Branch - - 1431668
khan Jahan Al Road Branch - - 137,188
Mohakhali Branch - - 107,561
MNaya Bazar Branch - - 201,700,521
Nodpara Bazar Branch - —_— 131061501
—f —LTBASN3ZI0, 63000313
B.0D Premises and Flxed Assets
Immavabie Property (Land) 675,629,138
Immavabie Propedy (Bulding) 275,908,907 86,515,166
Fumiure and Fi 128,555,056 110,569,201
89,554, 54,819,861
Computer & Equipments 85,313,732 75312817
Banks Carf ScootorVehice 29432488 28212883
Computer Softwar 20,773,348 18,080,114
1,305,810,015 A 51

Detalls of Premises & Fiwed Asssts furnished in Annexure -D.
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[ Amount in Taka ]

[“31Dec, 2008 ] [ 31 Dec. 2008 |

9.00 Other Assets

Stationary, Stamps & Sacurity Papar 16412318 14,580 387
Advance Rent 681,309,112 200,469,608
Stock of Credit Card 2,282 661 1,821,811
Sacurity Deposit 1,323,876 1,143,618
Advance Daposit 1,946,116 1,955,716
Suspense Account [ Note - 9.01) 520,334 870 84,350,867
Others ( Note - 9.02) 169,776,458 26,555,764
Advance Income Tax paid Account { Note - .04 ) 2827225508 2,043,265883
Branch Adjustment A/C | Note - 8.05 ) 329,160,750 361,579,904
UCB International School Project 2,151,358 2,109,558
Interest Rocehvable 227,251,091 203,406,643
Accrued Income 814,500 4,008,281
Praemium On Treaswry Bond - -

Branch Praliminary Expenses 36,249 444 -

ab16328,155 _ 3024358531

8.01 Suspense Account

Sundry Debtors 458,045,501 33,760,680
Advance Against TADA 2,093,863 905,150
Advarice Against Patty Cash 4,000 18,750
Advance Against Postage 11,408 13,635
Excise Duly 4,294,580 3,305,290
Advance Against BSP/IPSP 25,894,335 12,131,837
Legal Charges 2,100 1,000
Protested Bal 6,606,550 3,222 014
Interest in Sanchay Patra 21,867,703 B,514.626
Credit Gard 662,639 2,477,576
Debit Card { ADC ) 762,190 -

—2033E70, 64350867,

9.02 Others
Cash Remittance 3,262,925 1,710,000
Adjusting Aje Debit 1,382,354 1,382,384
D.D cancebed 249,500 75.000
0.0 paid without advice 11,323,378 12,325,984
Clearing Adjustmant A/C 4,704,886 10,833.211
Share Sale Proceed Receivable 148883376 200105

—rC8T7645

9.03 Non-Income generating Other Assels
Stalionary, Stamps & Securily Paper 16,412,319 14,530,387
Advance Rent 681,399,112 209,469,698
Stock of Credit Cand 2,282 661 1921811
Security Deposit 1,323 876 1,143,818
Advance Deposit 1,846,116 1,985,716
Advance Income Tax Paid 2827225508  2,043,265,863
Suspense Account 520,334,870 84,350,867
Branch Adpstment Al 329,160,750 361,579,904

380,085,302 _2,608,278,284
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[ Amount in Taka
31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

9.04 Movement in Advance incoms Tax Paid

Opening Balance 2,043,285,963 1.280,582 583
Addiion during the year 783,955,615 752,673,400
Adjustment during the year - -

Balance held ot the end ofthe year _EEmmssw _guazesse

Mote : Amount of tax advanced during the year 2009 incleded a sum of Tk 463,148,857 against tax
payable for 2008, 2007 & 2006,

9.04.01 Year wise Breakdown of Advance Incoms Tax Paid
A} Opening Balance as on

1999 221,853,958 21,862,998
2000 #8,851,013 45,851,013
2001 51,283,038 51,293,039
2002 61,037 822 61,037 822
2003 120,097 084 129,007,084
2004 187,764 6TE 187,764,678
383,500,180 353,509,189
2008 518,082,654 516,082,654
2007 627,834,272 627,834,272
2008 752,673,400 752,673,400
2009 783959615 -

3,767,026,744 2,983,067,129
B) Tax Liablitles adjusted from Advance Tax Pald AIC

Tan Liabllity Adjustod for the year 57-2000 in 2002 (208,032,734)  (208,032734)

Tax Liability Adjusted for the year 55, D6 & 2001 in 2003 (88,351,843) (99,351,843)

Tax Liability Adjusted for the year 2002, 2003 & 2004 in 2006 (632 418.560) _ (632.416,569)

__(938,801,146) _(930,801,146)

et Balance of Advance Tax Paid Account (A - B) 2827225508 2.043,265983

8.05 Branch Adjustment Account

This is made up as follows |

Dty froem Branches 334TIEIZH0EG  27,619,880,454

Due to Branches 33,144 452230 _ 27.258,300,550

329,160,750 361,579,904

Branch account and Head Office tansaction (Met)

originated bul yel jo be mapundad ol the balance sheel date. However | the slalus of unmesponded
onties of 31.12.2009 as of 14.08.2010 are given below:

|mwu Dobit Entries | Crodit Entries ]
No of Entries Amﬂlll'n'l'd&ll No of Entries | Amount in Taka
or 3 mo 153 9,548,000 44
32 19,785,000 38
27 4,832,000 21
a2 25,081,000 49
294 59,366,000 | 152
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10.00

1001

11.00

| 2008

| Amount in Taka |
31 Dec. 2009_| [ 31 Dec. 2008

Barrowings frem Other Banking Companies,
Financial Institution, Agenis etc

In Bangladesh 550,000,000 458,306
Out Side Bangladash 3 &
— 20000000, 300300,
Secured 550,000,000 458,306
Unsscured - -

Maturity Grouping of Borrowings from
Other Banking Companies, Financial Ins.

Payable on Damand 550,000,000 -
Upto 1 month 2 458,306
Over 1 month upto 8 month -

‘Owver & manth upto 1 Year - -
Over 1 Year uplo § Years - -

Over 5 Year upto 10 Years
550000000, 458308
Deposit and Other Accounts
a. Current Deposit & Other Accounts
Cusrent Deposd 5,266,168, 791 3,702,855,530
Sundry Deposils (Note - 11.01) 4,538.279.814 2.,869,892,184
Cash Credit Cr. Batance - 118,926,819
DapositinF. C - -
Non-Resident FC Aje ($) 98,366,961 272,685,748
Resident F. C Depoalt 14,212,051 10,727,808
Non-Resident F.C Deposd 20,710,337 15,436,591
Overdraft 13.826,118 -
Secured Overdraft 170,808,935 -
C.C (Hype) 136,151,742 -
C.C Pledge 157,140 -
C.C Othars 2,127,934 -
10,260,000 823 6,990,524 781
b. Bills Payable
Pay Order 832,617,901 B24,298 459
Damand Draft Payable 95,665,084 88,836.748
T.T Payable 371,500 658,444
978,655,485 1,023,893 651
©. Savings Deposits & Others Accounts
Savings Bank Deposits 11,201425385  8,860,391,761
11201475385 _8,860391.761_



Amount in Taka

31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

d. Term Depasit
Fined Deposit 39.815,012,810 30,106 542.248
Shorl Term Deposil 11,400,740, 276 5,190,904,284
Stalf Secunity Deposil 2,550,446 2,374,446
Deposit Pension Scheme 51,057 488 55,083,845
Monthiy Savings Schemes 2607484790 2255551700
UCB Money Multipier 736,223,733 -
UCB Monthiy Time Retum 71,049,000 -
UCE Multi Mionaire 99,028 689 -
UCE Quarterly Time Rotumn 26,650,000 -
UCE Monthly Savings Plus 148,851 492
UGB Earning Plus { Monthly Interest ) 1,300,000 -
UCE Money Maximizer { Double ) 4,607,963 -

IPO Subscription-NRB (Dollar) 135,680,070 -
IPO Subscription-NRE (Pound) 4773234 =
IPO Subscription-NRE (Euro) 3,391,363 -
55.199.410,364 _ 37,610,456 532
Total Deposit and Other Accounts {A+B+C+D) 71,730401,057  _54,485266,725
11.01 Sundry Deposits

Sundry Creditors 221,608,825 57,938,813

Security Deposit 111,283,946 80,197,653

Dutward Bill for Collection 7,038,868 8,891,861

Callection Clearing Adjustment Alo 2,486,229 229,301

Faraign Comespondance Change 144,912,666 50,838,734

Exporters Retention Cuata 226,841 156 03,951,783

Cash Assistance 1o Exportars 478,768 606,174

Margin

Letter of Guarantses 188,785,110 181,167,067

Latter of Credit 3,122,285023  1978646,114

Usance Letier of Cred? (Nomal) 194,584,934 202,349,314

Inland Bill Purchasad 20,072,491 251801

Dues to Government Agencies

Tax at Source 75,634,135 69,638,313

Value added Tax (VAT) 28,012,182 15,820,786

Excise Duty 67,327 503 37,950,863

Cradit Card 104,985,171 65,350,021

Others 21,558 806 3,397,216

4538270814 2869,802,184
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[ Amount In Taka |

31 Dec. 2008 31 Dec. 2008

11.02 Maturity Grouping of Deposi & Other Accounts

From Banks
Payable on Demand 19,055 -
Ugto 1 month 1,206.729.000 -
Over 1 month upto 6 month 975,256,000 -
Qver § month uplo 1 Year 24,500,000 -
Ovie 1 Yoar uplo 5 Years - -
Ower 5 Year upto 10 Years = 3
__2,206,504.055 -]
Other than Bank
Payabla on Demand 4,860,631,305  5)630,116,685
Upto 1 month B107.116,161 14,247 811,715
Ower 1 month uplo 6 manth 30,348,900,072 7,065,450,976
Ovier & month uplo 1 Year 23,068,178931  17,227,082,052
Over 1 Year upto § Years TATEA2T78T 4713951895
Over 5 Year upto 10 Years —3.664933.846 __5600571,402
_75,523,867.002 _ 54485366725
~ILI30,401,057, _54:435,266,725
12.00 Other Liabilitios
Provision for ClassiSed Loans & Advances (Nele - 12.01) 586,231,503 763,837,863
Provision for Classied Investment (Note - 12.02) 32.735,000 89,892,000
Provision for Classified Fixed Assels (Nofe - 12.03) 3,872,000 3,872,000
Provision for ClassiSed Other Assets (Note - 12.04) 9,276,000 8,608,000
Provislan for unclassified Loans & Advance (Note - 12.05) 425,656,000 310,369,000
Provision for Special Manition Alc (Note - 12.06) 41,380,000 11,161,000
Provision for Small & Medium Entp. (SME) (Note - 12.07) 139,224,000 102,488,000
Provision for Consumer Finance (Credd Card) (Note - 12.08) 42.224.000 31,080,000
Provision for Cansumer Finance ( House Finance) (Nete - 12.09) 4,038,000 -
Provision for Consumer Finance (L p) (Note - 12.70) 277,000 -
Prowision for Consumer Finance (Others) (Note - 1291} 54,478,000 -
Provision for Short Term Agr Micro Finance (Note - 12.12) 13,720,000 -
Provision for Off-Balance Sheet Exposure (Note - 12.13) 221,002,000 180,863,000
Provisian for Taxation (Current Tax) (Note - 12.74) 3064519563 2462552980
Deferred Tax Liablity (Note - 12.75) 19,330,317 12,330,317
Provision for UCB Foundation (Nofe - 12.16) 39,534,887 -
Exchange Equalizaon Fund 8,043,177 8,043,177
Dividend Payable 41,400 41,400
Adjusting Afe: Credil - 10,403,953
Interest Suspense Account (Mate - 12.17) 391,273,858 401,170,128
Incantive Bonus 166,728,202 102,071,802
Interest Payable 1151972845  1,386,630,931
Accrued Expenses 82296845 9399706
£,497,814,021 896
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12.01 Mavement of Provision for Classified Loans & Advance

Opening Balance

Fully provided debis written off

Remission Allowed

Recoveries from praviously wrillen off

Provision made during the year

Trangtemed from Surplus of other provision heads
Transfemed to other provision head

12.02 Movement of Provision for Classified Investment

Opening Balance

Surplus provision transferred from other provision head
Transfemed to other provision head

Recoveries rom previowsly wrillen off

Provision made during the year

12.03 of for

Fixed Assets

Opening Balance

Surplus provision fransfarred from other provision head
Recaveries from proviously witien off

Provision made during the year

12.04 Movement of Provision for Classified Other Assets

Opening Balance

Surplus provision transferred from other provision head
Recoveries from previously writien off

Provision made during the year

12.05 Mavement of Provision for Unclassified Advance

Opaning Balance

Surplus provigion iransferred from other provision head
Recoveries from previously writien off

Provision made during the year

12.06 Movement of Provislon for Speclal Mention Ale

Dpening Balance

Fully provided debts written off

Surplus provisien transferred 1o Othor Provision Head
Provision made during the year

| Amount in Taka |
31 Dec. 2008

793,837,863 825,234,039
(1,501,859,557) (854,279,760)
(76,563) {514,098)
156,760 8,546,680
1,237.1M6,000 716,361,000
57,157.000 99,665,000
- {1,175,000)
586,231,503 _  703,837.863
89,892,000 3,552,000
= (3,552,000)
(57,157.000)
__ BO9.882,000

3,972,000 3.972,000
3972000 _ 3,072,000

310,368,000 302,585,000

= (35,732,000)
_115297,000 _ 43506000
— 425,666,000 ___ 310,369,000

11,161,000 27.879,000
(21,159,000)
30,238,000 4,441,000

41,398,000 11,161,000
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1207 Movement of Provision for Small & Medium Enterprise (SME)

| Amount In Taka |

31 Dac. 2009 I 31 Dec. 2008

Opaning Balance 102,488,000 87,786,000
Surphus provision transfermed to other provision head - {21,471,000)
Provision transfermed from another head = *
Provigion made during the year 36,736,000 36,173,000
Surplus provision transfermed to other provision head - =
__139,224000 _ 102488000
12.08 of Provision for F {Credit Card)
Opening Balance 30,910,000 13,059,000
Fully provided debts writien off . -
Rocovaries from proviousty written off - -
Provision made during the year 11314000 17,861,000
42224000 _ 30,810.000
12.09 af for Fi {Housse Finance)
Opening Balance 150,000 >
Fully provided debts written off - -
Recoveries fram previausly writhen off - -
Frovision made during the year 3888000 150,000
4,038,000 150,000
1210 of for G {Loan
DOpaning Balance =
Fully provided debls writien off - -
Recoveries from previously written off % o
Provision made during the year 277,000 =
277,000 -
12.11 Mevemant of Provision for Consumer Finance (Othars)
Opaning Balance = A
Fully provided debts writtan off = =
Recoveries from previously written off - -
Provision made during the year —SAATB000 =
—54:478,000 =
1242 Movement of Provision for Agri Loan
Opening Balance = %
Fully provided debls writen off * #
Recoveries from previousty written off = -
Provision made during the year — 13720000 ______-
13720000 0 -
12.13 Movement of Provision for Off-Balance Sheet Exposure
Opening Balance 160,863,000 119,895,000
Surplus Provision transfarmed to other provision haad - (17,751,000)
Provision transferred from other provision head 1,175,000

Provision made during the year
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12.14 Movement of Pravision for Taxation

Opening Batance
Addition during the year
Adjustment during the year

Excess provision

Balance held at the and of the year

12.15 Movemant of Provision for Deferred Tax Liabliity

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Balance held at the end of the year

12.16 Movement of Provislon for UCB Foundation

Opaning Balanca

Addition during the year
Adjusiment during the year

Balance held at the and of the year

12.17 Movemant of interest Suspanse Account

‘Opening Balance

Amount transferred lo inlerest
suspense account during the year

Amount recovered from intarest
suspensa account during the year

Amount written off during the year

13.00 Share Capital
1301 Authorized Capital

10,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 100 sach

13.02 Issued subscribed and pald up Capital

The issued, subscribed and paid up capital amounts lo
28,92.048.90 share @ Tk. 100 sach

Amount in Taka ]

2462552,880  1,772,686,570

801,966,603 589,898,410
3064510583 _ 2462652080

12,330,317 3,848,418

7,000,000 8,381,698
19,330,317 12,330,317

395349&? -
e
401,170,128 262,947,369
268,969,580 274,763,290
(84,734,360} {89,850,032)
(184,131,361} 680,489

(76,680,489}
381,273,858 401,170,128

1,000,000,000

288,204,850

1,000,000,000

299,204,850
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Broak up of lssued Subscribed and paid up Capital

2009
Particulars No. of Share No of | Amount In | “
Holders Shares Taka

Spansoraipromoters 50| 1,126,088.00 112,608,800 37.63]
(Genaral Public (Including NRBs) 10,070 | 1.614,685.90 161,468,580 53.97|
Govt. of Peoples Repubic of B'desh 1 251,2085.00 25,120,500 £.40

Total 10,121 | 2.992,048.90 | 299,204,850 100.00

2008
Particulars No. of Share No of Amount in %
Holders Shares Taka

[Sponsors/promoters 56 1,333,107 133,310,700 44,56/
(General Public (including NRBs) 10,280 1472771 147,277,100 49.22]
Govt. of lic: of Eessh 1 186,170 18,617,000 6.22

Tatal 10,337 2,002,048 | 299,204,800.00 100.00

13.03 Shareholding range on the hasis of ason M 2009
Number of Number of | Value of Shares % of

Shateioniing Sengt sharshotders| _Shares | Amountin Taka | Total Shares
Upto 500 Shares. 10,084 760,125.90 76,012,580 25.40
501 tn 5000 Shares. 304,818.00 30,481,800 10.19
5001 to 10,000 Shares 168,660.00 16,966,000 567
10,001 to 20,000 Shares 263,678.00 26,367,800 B8
20,001 to 30,000 Shares 174.631.00 17,463,100 584
30,001 to 40.000 Shares 316,134.00 31,613,400 1057
40,001 to 50.000 Shares 131,466.00 13,148,600 439
50,001 to 100,000 Shares 284,454.00 28,449,400 251
100,001 & sbove 7,042, 58,704,200 19.62

Total 10 992,048.90 | 299,204,890 | 100.00

Pending AGM's for the accounting years ended 31 December 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were
hold on 07 June 2010 at Raddison Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka following judgement and order passed by
the Appellate Division of the Hon'ble Supreme Count dated 07 Apdl 2010,

In the meeling, the Sharcholders approved he earlier declared slock dividend as deladied below ©

[ Accounting Year Ended Stock Dividend
2002, 2003 & 2004 50 % (Accumuiated)

2005 0%

2006 40 %

The pending AGM's for the sccounting years 2007, 2008, 2003 shall be held after obtaining condonation
of dalay from Hon'blo High Court which is under process,

However the proposad dividend in the form of bonus shares for the year ended 31 December 2007
Is 50%.
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Amount In Taka I
13.04 Capital Adequacy Rafio

In terms of section 13 (2} of the Bank Companics Act, 1881 and Bangladesh Bank BRPD circulars nos.
01, 14, 10, 01 and 05 dated 08 January 1996, 16 November 1996, 24 November 2002, 18 February
2007 and 14 May 2007 respeciively, required capilal of the Bank al the dose of business on 31
December 2009 was Taka 65,440,118,582 as agains! available core capital of Taka 4,834,866,864 and
supplemontary capital of Taka 1,200,135,548 making a fotal capital of Taka 6,035,002412 thercby
showing @ shortfall of capital of Taka 509,000,445 at thal date.

Detalis are shown below:
Core Capital | Tler-} :
Paid-up Capital ( Note: 13.02) 299,204,890 280,204 850
Statulory Resarve (Nofe: 14.00) 1,833,335,408 1,524,962,504
General Reserve (Note : 15.00} 363,563,302 363,583,302
Retained Eaming { Nofe : 16.00) 2,338,763,268 1714238277
Profit & Loss Account e TR B
—4,834,866,864  __3,901 T
Supplementary Capital (Tier-ll) :
General Provision against Unclassified Loan 721,028,000 455,078,000
General Provision on Off Balance Sheet Exposure 221,002,000 180,883,000
Exchangs Equalisation Accourt 8,043,177 B,043177
Assals Revaluation Reserve | Note-a) 228,248,279 228,248 279
Revalualion Reserve of Govl. Securities (Nofe-b) 21,816,002 6,173,780
1 135,548 878,406,236
3) Total Capita _ESIS00ZAE. _&TBOITSN.
Risk Weighled Assels (Note-13.05) 85,440,118,582  46,246,181,272
b) Required Capital { 10% on Risk Weighted Assets ) 6,544,011,858  4,624,715527
Capital Surplus/{Shartfall) (A -8} (509,009, 446) 155,658,682
Note :

a) This represents 50% of the value increased due 1o revalualion of bank's land property,

A sum of Th 456,496 559 Is Increased due o revaluation but as per guide line of BRPD Circular &
10 dated 24 November 2002, 50% of the increased value Le. T 228,248,278 has been included
as & component of Tier-Il capital,

Tha revaluation work was done by Padma Techno Consult & Survey Lid. (Repen date 19.03 2008).

b) This repressnts 50% of the value increased due 1o revalualion of Banks HTM Securities.
As per Bangladesh Bank's instruction (BRPD Circulars # 03, dated 12 March 2008} upto 50% of
revaluation reserves on HTM securities amounting to Tk.21,816,082 (i.e. 50% of Tk. 43632 185,
note-13.07.01) has been considered as Supplementary Capital.

Amount in Taka |
Capital Adequacy Ratio
On Core Capital - against Standard of Minkmurm 5% 739 B.a4 |
On Supplementary Capital - against Standard of Minkmum 5% 1.83 1.80
9.22 10.34

On Total Capltal against Standard of Minimum 10%
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13.05 Computation of Risk Welghted Assats

Risk Woighted
|Particutars Salance as at| Risk welghied | gatance as at
31 Dec. 2009
Cash in Hand and Banks
Balances with other Financial institution -Private 60,000,000 20% 120,000,000
Money at Call & Short Notice
Othor Financial Institusion (Private) - 20%
Export and Foreign Bill
Othes Forgign bills 217,698,840 50% 108,849,925
Import and Inland Bill
Major Mon-Financial Public Enterprises. - 50% -
Privata Sector 2.059,058,970 100% 2,050,058,970
Advances
a) Other financial Ins$tuions-Public
b} Othar financial insStuions -Private 350,102 498 0% 175,051,249
) Private Seclor 65,085,016 526 100% 55,086,018 626
Investments
a)} Otheor financial Insétutions.
1) Other financlal Institutions -Public 40,000,000 20% 8,000,000
2) Other Financial Instiutions- Privata 45,285 992 50% 22 542 008
b} Major Non-Financial Public Entesprise - 50% #
c) Privale Secior 891,208,124 100% 801,208,124
d} Deposit Money Bank 504,760,887 20% B7 461,969
Other Assots
a) Contingent assels as per contr (Annexure 11)5,618,873,949 50% 4.773,611,587
b} Fixed assets 1,305,810,021 50% 650,919,008
c) Others 1,447 416,471 100% 1.447,298,129
Tiszousane S5 1ieses

1306 Asset Revaluation Reserve

In terms of Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 16, Property, Plant & Equipment and instruction
conlained in BRPD Circular No. 10 daled 25 November 2002 issued by Bangladesh Bank, all the
immovable properties of the Bank wese revalued as al 23.02 2008 by Padma Techno Consull & Survey
Ltd. an independent professionally gualified valuation firm of the country based on market survey.
Accordingly, revalustion surplus of Tk 45,64 98 550/ for land has been included as asset revaluation

raserve st reporting date as follows:

Opening Balance 01 January 2002 456,406,560 =
Reserve made for the year - 456496560
Closing Balance 31 Decomber 2009 456,496,560 456,496,560

This revaluation surplus cannot be distibuted as diidend. Had the property been carried under cost
model, it would be valued at Th. 107,358,441
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Amaunt In Taka

31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008

1307 Revalustion Reserve

HTM Securities (Notes 13.07.1) 43,632,185 12,347,561
HFT Securities (Notes 13.07.2) 370,471,157 13,430,005
414,103,342 25,777,566

As per the DOS Circular Latter # 05 dated 26 May 2008, HFT securities are revaluated on weakly basis
and HTM securities are amorized on yearly basis.

13.07.1 Revaluation Reserve on HTM Securities

Discaunt Incame on Treasury bonds were prévicusly recognized as income using day count basis uplo
2007. Al the end of 2008 such bonds were amortized as per Bangladesh Bank Circutar Letter # DOS - 5
dated 26 May 2008, The resulled net amortization gain of Tk. 43,632,185 as on 31.12.2009 has baen
credited to revaluation ressrve,

13.07.2 Revaluation Reserve on HFT Securitles

Balance as at 01 January 2009 13,430,005 -
Met Revaluation gain during the year 357,089,181 13,430,005
Adjustmant | Roverse during the year (48,020} -
Balance as at 31 Decamber 2009 3TOAT1 5T 13 5

14.00 Statutory Reserve

As per saction 24(1) of the Banking companias act 1991,an amount equivalent to 20% of the profit
bafore taxes for the year has been transfemed fo the statulory resarve fund as undar:

Qpening Balanco 1.524,862,504 1232359718
Add : Translerred during the year 308,372,898 262,802,786
Less ! Adjustment during the year - -
Closing Balance B3NS 15562508
15.00 General Reserve

Opaning Balanco 363,563,302 363,563,302
Add: Transferred during for the year - -
Closing balance — Y eSS

16.00 Retained Earnings

Cpening Balance 1,714,238 278 1,242,085,404
Less Adjustment during e year 3 .
Add: Transferred during for the year 624,524,891 472,142,784

Less. Transferred to Statutory Resserve

EmeTeve _iTmaman
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17.00 Liabliities &

a) Direclors
b) Government

) Bank & Other Financial Institution
d) Othars

17.01 Acceptances & Endorsements

Bankers LiabiliSes for Accepled Bills
Bankers LiablliSes for Accepted Biis 8.8

18.00 Interest ncome

Interest on Loans and Advances ( Note - 18.01)

Intorust on Balances with other Bank & Fin Ins. (Note - 18.02)
Interest on balance with foreign Bank (Note - 18.03)

Penal Interest (Note - 18.04)

18.01 Interest on Loans and Advances

Loan Ganeral

Stalf Car Loan

Personal Credit Scheme
Transport Loan

Project Loan

House Bullding Loan { HBL )
House Budding Loan { STAFF)
PAD { CASH )

PAD { EDF)

Import Loan (Pledge)

Loan against Trust Receipt { LTR )
Past Due Bills ( PAD )
Packing Cradit

Fareign Bill Purchased ( FBP )
Inland Bill Purchased | 1BP )
Accepted imporad Bl

Loan to Leasing Company

Overdrafts

Cash Cradits

Loan Against Cradit Card { Local)

Loan Against Credit Cand ( Intermnational)
Auto Loan

Any Purpose Loan

Home Loan

Other Loan
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[ Amount in Taka

31 Dec. 2009

1,113,345471
140,330,816

31 Dac. 2008

1,151,613,545
603,301,056

20844,518.454 _16,330,881,008
22008104040,

2,270,359.457

18,085,795,609

3,125,370,575

—S.717,186818 __6,906,845,698
B,987,548.375 _10,032,216.273

6,665,936,502 5,561,550,592
294 806,835 157,384,025
4,516,627 30,085,024
B2.667 265,028
6,965,321,635 5,749,293 669
103,388,193 72,171,188
T47.952 45410
8,382,169 T 137 645
73,400,469 30,485,152
1764,204.746  1,225055,092
379,467,519 180,846 505
9.714.280 19,603,314
70,877.281 148,538,761
30,730,276 54,400,013
51,615.735 80,477,074
1269,700,882 1,253 485330
96,228,618 120,544 257
33,512,929 38,112,798
7481127 44,450,163
188,320,149 244,684, 534
2,888 11,710
29542784 42,482 115
1,080,674 607 803,834 751
1,217.998.801 1,063,361,088
137,542 622 87,521,635
32,674,700 24,300,064
47,284,900 -
22,381,500 =
28,846,761 -
256 407 =
5665936502 _ 5,561,559,582



| Amount in Taka

18.02 Interest on Balances with other Bank
& Financlal Institution

Call Loans. 23,096,514 60,615.056
Balance with Other Bank 271,710,325 66,768,668

294 806,839 157,384,025
18.03 Interest on Balance with Foreign Bank
F.C held in abroad

Regutar Fund In Abroad 4515827 30,085,024
—ASiEEET 30085024
18.04 Penal Interest
Panal Intarest on FOR 8,269 1,863
Penal Interest on M.S.5 52538 40,886
Penal Intorest on D.P.S 1,860 200,278
—CE0eT, 266028
19.00 Interests Paid On Depesits Borrowings Efc.
Intarost on Deposil { Nofe - 18.01) 4,284819.458 3.692.338.263

Interest paid on Bomowing | Mote - 19.02 ) 63,315.404 48427 440
Interest on Deposit of Foreign Bank - .
iamzupe _sreojesi

18.01 Interest paid on Deposit

Savings Bank Deposits 308,977 414 390,042,485
Fixed Deposits 3,357,027 844 2.861.833.678
Short Term Deposits 185,192,572 128,938,024
Staff Security Deposits 131,071 142,467
Deposit Pension Scheme 8,703,908 8,660,934
Monthly Savings Scheme 247 530,551 201,237,157
FCAD 1,282 122 985
Ohers. . 1,351,333
Ueb Money Multiplier 61,383 567 -
Uch Monthly Time Retum 6,483,372

Uch Quartery Time Retum 1,859,387 -
Ueb Multi Millionasre Cne Million 4,166 856 =
Ucb Multi Millionaire Five Million 773,856 -
Ucb Multi Millionaire Ten Milion 1,373,051 -
Uch Monthly Savings Plus 7,749 260 -
UCB Earning Plus Monthly 2,250 -
Insurance Deposit Scheme 372469 3
UCB Manay Maximizer { Doubl) 3,191,148 .

_AZR4D10458 _3g92390283
19.02 Interes! paid on Borrowings

Borrowing from other Bank 62,300,432 48,222 078
Borrowing from B Bank under ADS = 54271
FF.C Bormowing - )
Overdraft in Foraign Bank 85,389 151,081
Foreign Bank FOR 60,737 -
Interest Exp. On Repo Bomowings 778,846 -
—03150 48,427,440
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20.00 Income from Investment

Interest incom frem Invesiment | Note - 20.01)
MNon Interest income from Investment | Nofe - 20.02)

20.1 Interesi Incoma from Investment
Treasury Bils { Government Securities )
‘Government Treasury Bond
Debenture

Interest on Reverse Repo

20.02 Non Interest Incame from Investment
Dividend on Shares.
Gain on Sake of Share | Note - 20.02.01)
Gain on sale/purchase of securities
Prize money on Priza Bond

20,021 Gain on sale of shares

‘Gain on sale of shares
Less : Loss on Solke of Shares.

.00 i Feas, &

Commission { Note - 21.01)
Fees { Note - 21.02)

Exchange Eaming { Note - 21.03)
Brokerage { Note - 21.04)

21.01 Commission

Remittanca Inland

Remittance Foreign

L.G Inland

L.C Cash

L.C deferred

LIC Back 1o Back

Payment against Document (PAD)

Commission for Service Renderad 1o Issuo of Shares

Commission cn BSP / PSP

‘Commi=sion on Accepted Imported B
Comm. & Rebate

Bills Purchased Infand

Commission cn Lottery Ticket

Commission on IBC & Others

‘Commission & Fes from Online Transaction

Discount on BfBond

Clearance

Marchant Commission (Card)
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[ Amount In Taka ]

736,083,565 557,140,174
__2z7aeisd 13560315
eI,  HINTOONN

- 1,661,559
734173532 552,136,629
1,810,033 1,976,985

- 1,375,000
738,083,565 557,140,174
8,441,852 35,015,558
218,919,242 61,124 994
17,574,783

8,000 45,000

227,369,194 113,560,315
—ate AT STOT00 08

218,919,242 61,124,994

218,919,242 61,124 984

550,787 653 552,848,807
93,002,602 81,326,895
477,708,786 501,741 964

1,121,499,141 1,135,917 466

37,480,148 52,107 866
7.105,136 4,740,341
52,102,709 41,851,438
150,768,222 145,462,398
15,968,664 16,137,952
107,248,172 114,762,944
153,108 1,535,220
421,866 206,825
1,314,084 548,971
107,825,011 126,072,796
35,566,080 35,814,816
4503439 3,845,899
59,300 20610
1,466,011 16,098
16,936,537 B.441,644
11,893,851 264,264
750 7825

194,374 -

—SS0,TBT,853 552,843,807,



[ Amount in Taka
31 Dec. 2008 31 Dec. 2008

21.02 Foos
Appraisal Foos 85,000 848,500
LIC Advising Charge 5,875,435 10,361,497
Credit Card -Local
Annual Fees on Credit Card 23,831,845 22,327,790
Resmbursement Fees 4,230,844 5,085,108
Cash Advance Fees 0,058,524 8,876,159
Pin Reissue Foes 14,600 95,991
Late Payment Fees 13,818,914 9,670,800
Excess Over Emil Feos 8.422,385 4,140,800
Statement Retrieval Fees 2,600 44,600
SMS Registration Fees 378,800 742,550
Cheque Book lssue Fee 462,580 538,300
Cheque Processing Fee 5,670,775 1,234,071
Cheque Retum Fes 115,300 =
Crudit Card nternational
Reimbursement Fees 4,662,947 3,283,629
Cash Advance Fees 1,336,052 1,075,848
Pin Reissue Foes 54217 35,004
Late Payment Fees 6,173,478 4,816,827
Excess Over kmit Fees 925,505 714,818
Statement Retrieval Fees 0,966 -
Mark Up 5,984,329 5,103,589
Opbonal Reissue Fees 2,887,615 2,548,425

Cheque Retum Fee

Sa002602 81326698

21.03 Exchange

Exchange Eaming (Genaral) 477745838 501,813,481

Exchango ( Dealing Reom ) 11,953 -
477,757,792 501,813,481

Less : Exchange Loss (General) (48,996) (71,517)

Less : Exchange Loss (D.Room)

AT7,708,796 501,741,964

21.04 Brokerage - =
Note : No dealing of foreign exchange for trading purpose was made during the year 2009,
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22.00

2n

| 2008

Other Oparating Income

Locker
Godown Renl
Gain on Sale of Assels (Note 22.01)
Miscallaneous Eaming
Promisas Ront
Insurance Charges Recoveries
Postage Recoveries
TLX / TP | Telegram Recoveries
Trunk Call Recoveries
Legal Charges Recoveries
Incidantal Charges Recoveries
Swift Charges
Recoveries from previousty Witten Off Loan
Handsing Charge On LIM
Handing Charge On LTR
Handging Charge On EOL
Other Income on Credit Card - Locad :
Currency Conversion Gain
Security Mask
PCF from ALICO
Miscallansous
Other Income on Credit Card - Internatianal @
Security Mask
Miscellancous

Gain on Sale of Assoets

a) Costof
Furniture & Fidure
Office Equipments
Computer Equipments
Mater Car

b) Accumulated Depreciation
Furniture & Fhdure
Office Equipments
Compuler Equipments
Motor Car

Written down Valee of above Fixed Assels [A-B)

Tatal Sale Valus of above Fixed Assels

| Amount in Taka |

31 Dec. 2009 31 Dec. 2008
1,641,560 1,360,960
1420,850 2,092,874

676,338 -
150,202,708 88,668,562
1,384,650 77,400
707,311 1,195,538
18,881,576 21,788,901
2,974,279 8,720,489
104,595 485,831
143,056 177,718
111,187,357 88,684,850
39,666,382 30,961,649
71,823,032 -
2,173,092 3,460,064
24,626,832 13,623,191
48,592,384 12,965,370
584,620 =
3332137 -
5,850,498 -
1,180,333 911,741
872,018 -
— 100237 - __
430,015,543 254,296,118
14,87 =
5,854,566 -
3,339,324 -
1,390,000 #




Amount in Taka |
(31 Dec. 2008 | ["31 Dec. 2008 ]

23.00 Salaries and Allowances

Basic Salary 512,649,904 461,420,164
Salary of casual Labour 108,737,429 72,520,004
Festival Bonus 85,572,648 74536479
Incentive Bonus 150,000,000 100,000,000
House Rent Alowances 196,162,911 183,309 877
Provident Fund 47 147 BST 42178724
Gratuity 172,000,000 172,000,000
‘Welfare Fund 13.570.629 -
Other Allowances [ Note - 23.01} 32,057,526 26,181,458
1,31 1,132,146, 806
23.01 Other Allowancos
Conveyance allowance 18,878,845 15,732,565
Entertainment allowance 6,125,478 3,853,109
Cash Risk Allowance 5,953,276 5,834,244
Risk Allowancs 84,500 350,217
Others 1815426 302,323

32,957,525 26,181,458

24.00 Rent, Rates & Taxes, Insurance, Lighting etc.

Rent — Office 152,753,181 54,792,292
Rent = ATM Boolh 436,160 -

Rent — Godowns 4,195,776 3,847,026
Rent Garage 44,000 73,100
Rent, Rates & Taxes 2,247016 2242440
Rent Rates & Taxes (VAT) 18,647 681 1,705,301
Rant Maching 335,362 -

Rent Furniture & Fldure Boo -

Rent- Onéine Communication 45,500 -

Leass rental-Car 4,170,630 3,147,340
Lease rental-Other Equipments 436,600 436,800
Other Rental Charges 3,195,200 1,416,811
Insurance charge 286,898,260 27,336,370
Group Insurance Promium 1,373,865 1,405,835
Light & Power - Office 22,808,721 17,455,182
Light Power - - Residence 4815632 3297409
Water — Office 1,792,884 1,055,214
Water - Residenca 1,559,560 1,193 666
Gas - Offics 429,997 401491
Gas- Rasldence 1,804,108 1,272 258

247,991,031 121,028,339

25.00 Legal Expenses

Profassional Fees 3,408,592 8,301,186
Other Legal Changes 2.013.749 2,164,654
Stamp, Power of Allomey & Nolary Public 102767 84,191

5,523,108 10,550,031
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26.00 Postage, Telegram, Telephone

7.00

29.00

| 2008

Poslage

TelegramTalex TP
Telephone/Trunk Call Office
Telephona/Trunk Call Residence
Reuter

Swift

Inlemet

Online Connectivity Charge

Auditors Fees

i Printing & Adverti
Stationery - Security
Stationery — Potty
Stationery - Office

Advertisament
Mews paper

Misc. Advertisement
Hoarding & Neon sign
Advertisement : Television
Radio

Chief Executiva's Salary including Other Feos
Basic Salary

Festival Bonus

Incentive Bonus

House Rent Allowance

Provident Fund

Other Feas.

Directors Fees & Other Expansas

Honorarism
Otthar Financial Bonafits (Traveling Exponses)

[ Amount in Taka ]

31 Dec. 20 I 31 Dec. 2008 |

4.813.282 4,489,947
244,785 218,779
13,487 883 12,173,751
2,822,320 2,187,302
1,388,844 1,287 648
8,233,368 5,636,545
4,081,808 2,085,122

— 16,686,255 ____ 6670141
51,768,678 34,768,235

—lE000, 226000
3797207 2,275,045
13,419,482 11,884,555

— 27649425 1
44,566,214 38,531,465

11,280,578 9,546,991
1,904,020 1,083450
10,760,827 3,265,850

17,770 190,035
25875478 28,662 457

- 81,7
50,338,774 42,910,349

—C 20088, Bigkh1 e
6,300,000 3,538,559
1,000,000 1,000,000
1,200,000 780,645

630,000 -

—_— 28000
9,130,000 5,345,204
1,378,000 1,570,000

2214806 _ 2014325

—A  —— AL

Note : Board Meeling atiendance foes, raveling and kving expenses ane being allowed Lo the Directors
as per clause no.100,1014 102 of Articles of Assaciation of the Bank and subsequant Board approval,



[[31Dec.2009 | [ 31 Dec.2008 |
30.00 Depreciation and Repairs to Bank's Property
30.01 Depreciation
Furniture / Fisture 13,804,600 15,573,891
Vahicles 9287611 7,794 578
Office Equipments. 20,034,666 23,980 535
Comgartor & Equipments 29,112,158 12,474,256
Computer Software 10,542,836 7,863 802
Immaovable Property (Bullding) — 2218334 2218334

85,000,226 70,005 496

30.02 Ropair Renovation & Maintenance

Furniture | Fixture 1,846,371 1,042,438
Vahicles 10,413,514 9,405,150
Machine & Equipment's 2,368,792 2425738
Renovalicn & Maintenance 3,886,546 6,384,478
Pramises 77,286 2,127,254
Machine & Equipment's & Swifl 4,451,188 3,282,229
Computer Softwars 149,480 .
Repalr Bullding 269,373

23,460,560 24 66T, 287

1 TB8 94,672,783
31.00 Other Expenses

Entertainment 12,778,863 16,213,998
Petrol, Ol Lubricant 37,580,763 34,457,504
Subscription 11,085,011 3,213,362
Danation 19,538,060 3,673,630
Traveling 22,143,854 12,734,162
Cartage and Freight 1,819,588 1,511,929
Han. General ST5.600 80,000
Hon. B. Diploma 2,000
Livaries & Uniforms 386, 333 570,659
Business Development 26,664.7T16 13,238 827
Cash Carrying charges 2,500 8,600
Medical Expenses 24,233,043 20,865,345
Car Expenses 243685812 18,974,869
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assels { Note - 31.01) - 407,223
Write: Off of Assats 34,301 3641418
Remittance Charges 110,842 100,510
Forsign Bank Charges. 1,548,172 1,168,628
Commission on Purchasa / Salas of Shares 2,764 -
Consultancy Fees (Engineering) 1,135,000 20,000
Consullancy Fees (Construcon) 150,000 292,000
y Foo For Technical Assis 1,861,363 -
Visa Card 29,581,773 24 516 455
Conference Expenses 1,618,334 2,116,868
Training / Seminar 1682420 1,164,764
Ewvening / Hollday Banking 987,310 460,050
Intemship Expenses 105,544 -
ATM Booth Maintonance Charge 30,894 -
ATM Booth Uity 8ill 54 564 =
Miscallaneous Expenses [ Note - 31.02} 11,006,131 18,038 823

231,191,837 175,780,624
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31.01 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assels

& 402,406
Loss on Sake of Fioed Assets - (809,629)
- [407.233)
31.02 Miscellaneous Expenses
Laundry & Cleaning 546,508 311,799
Photographs 92,171 59,036
Sundry 10,361,452 6,048,322
CDBL Charges 6,000 2,744, 840
Statutory Mecting Expenses - 8874717
11,006,131 18,038,823
32.00 Provision for Loans & Advances
Ctassified Advances 1287016000 715,186,000
Unclassified Advances 115,257,000 43,508,000
Special Mention Alg { SMA} 30,238,000 4,441,000
Special Mention Alc { SME) 36,736,000 36,173,000
Consumer Finance (Credit Card) 11,314,000 18,001,000
Consumer Finance ( House Finance) 3,688,000 -
‘Consumer Finance (Lp) 277,000 -
Consumer Finance (Others) 54,478,000
Short Term Agr Micro Finance 13,720,000 -
—1.502,964.000 817,307
tor o ( -€) BRI
33.00 Other Provision
Provision for Other Assets 867,000 987,000
Provision for Off-Balance Sheet Exposure 40,139,000 78,718,000
Provision for UCB Foundation Fund 38,534 S8BT -
—E0RT, ___TEARO0R0,

Provision for Off-Balance Sheet Exposure

A5 per BRPD Circular No. 10 dated 18 Seplember 2007, general provision @ 1.00% is requined to be
maintained against off balance sheet exposures. Accordingly tolal provision for Tk, 221,002,000 has.
bean provided upto 21.12.2009 out of which Tk. 40,139,000 has been provided as provision for off

balance sheet ilems for the year 2009,

34,00 Provision for Taxation

Cument Tax ( Note - 34.01)
Deferred Tax
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601,966,603

689,886,410

7,000,000 5,381,898
—l0E900,003 095,200,308



3401

Provision for Curment Tax

Provisen fo corporit b I rspact of Mo yeis 2008 (Assssament Yoar 2010:2011) has boon mads as par eskiaste of I bari's comsutast ke Tk
LoRET:

F
:
E
¥

Excess
e oo T peovisken m Proviskent o
Year Apcounts T mads by Bank ot
Provlslen]
04 R Agsesarrant Compisted.
Tetiabe {ssessmend wrder pomoams of
s | maar | Masond| 4 AT B et
20 | mwam | omesees| 4w STITOTSTR| BGTRSDON| {139,057 006)) Reke suberitad unc iped.
ET =0 T I I RETT R siaiood Favoesmmt i)
L=t [process.
Yelmbe
208 2082010 | ARLDINATE | " e
Yot satrmitad

PRurtarm o b Suberibed bn oo
feirss

35.00 Earning per Share (EPS)

3sm

Het Profil afer Tax

Number of Shares
Earning Per Share (EPS) (Basic)
Het Profit alter Tax

* Number of Ordinary Shares
Earning Per Share (EPS) (Diluted)

*  This comprises the following -
a) Issuad shares at balance shoe! date

[ AmountinTaka ]
[C31Dec. 2009 | [ 31 Dec. 2008

932,897,880 764,745,570

932,897,890 764,745,570
17,907,406 17,907 406
— - 5 | ©  — 11U

b) Shares ssued againsl proposed kssue of bonus shares for

the year 2002 to 2006

c) Proposed issue of bounus shares for 2007

36.00 Receipt from Other Operating Activities

Exchange Esming & Brokerage
Other Operafing Income

37.00 Payment For Other Oporating Activitios

Expanszes
Directors Fees & Other Expenses
Auditors Feos
Repair o Fixed Assats

Other e
Crodit Card

38.00 Increase | Decrease of Other Assais

Closing Cther Assots
Advancy Incoma Tax Paid

Opening Other Assets
Increase [Decrease for the year

4271
2,992,048 2,992,048
B.946.223 B,946.223
5,960,135 5,069,135

17,907 406 17,907 406

477,708,796 501,741,964

E37, 320,153 72 840,875
t1s0zesds _sasezsse
5,523,108 10,550,031
3,590,806 3,584,225
225,000 25,000
23,460,560 24 667,287
31,191 837 176,780,624
gg,mlg1 I|ﬂ!£:

4,816,328,155  3,024,358,531
(2.827,225598)  (2,043,265,983)
1 522 508,625
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39.00 Increass | Decrease of Other Liabilities

Closing Other Liabiles

Provision for Classified Loans & Advances
Provision for Classified Invastment
Provisian for Classified Fixed Assets
Provision for Classified Other Assets
Provislon for undlassifisd Lom & Advance
Previsian for Special Mention

Provision for Small & Medium Enw (SME)
Provision for Consumer Finance

Provisian for Shor Term Agr Micra Finance
Provision for Of-Balance Sheet Exposure
Provision for UCB Foundation

Provision for Taxation (Curment Tax)
Dedarred Tax Lisbiily

Opaning Other Liabilifes

Increase Decrease for the year

40,00 Cash and Cash Equivalent
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Cash in Hand

Balance with B.Bank & Sonall Bank

Balance with Other Bank & Financial Instifution
Money at Call & Short Notice

ET T alw

7,368,513 922 B,A07,170,482
586,231,503) (793,837,863
(32.735,000] {£0,892,000)
(3.972,000] (3,972,000,
(9,276,000] (8,608,000
(425,666,000 {210,369,000)
(41,399,000] (11,181,000
(139,224,000] {102,488,000]
(101,017,000] {21,060,000)
{13,7:20,000] -
(221,002,000) {180,863,000)

534,887 -
(3.064,519,583)  (2,462,552,980)
(19,330,317} (12,330,317
(2,400,035,322) _ (1,257,298,871)

270,851,210 1,142,735,451
1227.332119 800,123,740
5,776,423 808 3,045,780,677
BRI A

_&“L‘& J.M



Balance with Nostro Accounts

As on 31 December 2009 :
2000 2008
M of | Comesay) Comy.rate
Hame of the Bask Amoust In Amoent In
TheCity | Mm | 5 InFC|Conw, rate par unit
Tl ofc | T
| uso . = | na3arTsee | §asa | 75,184,306 |
o 4 4 - tozne 83| s
USD | GISTONAT| @OEMAT | 4613486 | 125607107 | BED | £9.304.530
L US0| GATATOS0 | GOGGT| SOTGANE (HRSTEAT  68E3L (1071
K MED | SOBITES | EIJEAT . Z2ENAEE1. 2911170, GRS3
M50
| S0 |
GBP |

Hnnmnm

| S0 ||

L USD | 196050 60DNT 12 6893 | (17.806.064)

USD | 1BTAONTE| BAGRAT | 125489010 | 42JTERS  BRGD | 26161
AETHT.246 |
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Details of Investment in Shares , .

As on 31 December 2009

Face Total cost

Nama of Company

ge

ake b1

261,597 568 261,597,
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Details of Information on Advances more than 10%

of Bank's Total Capital as on 31 December 2009 SeRIm

Funded

MJs Knit Asia Lid 428,700,000 | 373800000 |  803.500,000 |
W's Antim Knit Composit Lid 800,800,000 | 374,000,000 | 1,174,800,000

|i;| [ Outstanding as on 31 Dec. 2008
1

12 |Wis. Bul = 396200000 | 396.200.000 |

13 |Evince Group 135700000 | 292200000 | 357.900.000 |
14 |Tempaco Fols 403.900.000 17.500.000 [ 421,400,000
15 |Ms Mahabub Brofhers put. Lt 576,400,000 e 578,400,000
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600Z | asoday pEnwuy B30

86

AmountinTaka
COST DEPRECIATION

‘Written down

Opering Balanes| | Adjustoant Toal
Wt scosteson | 200000 [ g | oM Charged o | coohe | curingthe | Dopeciaions| 32028
o ¥1Dec. 2108 #1Doc. 2009

01 Dec 09|

Lond ssmn  sosey §7560.1%
1084sti] 191512078 275508907

Land inclLdes T 456,495,550 being valle Increcsed due fo revaluaion made n 2008,

6007 Jaquadag LE uo sy

$3assy paxid JO 3)nNpayds



Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments

As on 31 December 2009

[ Amount in Taka
o Hamof the Company; |_Total Cost | Total Market | Provision
[ A [ Quotsd Shares
1| 8o Bank Lig 70,242,300 |
2 | Trust Bank 262,118 1,718 |
L3 | Utiara Bank 14517838 14 15338 |
4 | 8P Coramics 26,493,321 |
5 | Green deta 16,498,491 |
& | Baximeo Phamma 41.975.183 40,
7| Grameen2 20822687 | 14
B | Usmania Glass 2,226,955 |
9| Square Textile 23,341,005 |
|10 16O Ball Pen 5885851 5 i
11 | Apex foods 51,126,988 | 1
121 Fywmnn Corprm g, A2AATANT A
Total 275,330 203 3271
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Related Party Disclosers :

0.a) Hame of the Directors and their interest in bank;

3 HNama of Directors. Status Share holding on | Share holding on
No. in the Board 31-12-2009. 31-12-2008
{In Tak) {In Tak)

Chaiman 2,821,000 2.821,000 |

Vice Chaimman 2,080,800 2,088,800

Chaimage-EC 4.166.900 4,166,900 |

Chai Audil 5,357,700 5,357,700 |

Director 6,462,900 5,462,900 |

Director 2.405,000 2,405,000 |

Diractor 2 264,200 2,264,200 |

Ditector 2.718,100 2,718,100 |

Direclor 2,540,500 2,540,500 |

Director 1,300,000 1,300,000 |

Director 2,836,900 2.836,900 |

Diractor 1,850,000 1,950,000 |

Ditgctor 209,700 209,700 |
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01(b) Name of the Direciors and their interest in different entities

Name and Address. Designation | Entities where they have interest Remarks
Md. Jahangir Alam Khan Chairman | 1. J. K. Fabrics Ltd.
House No : 22, Road No - 3, 2. J. K. Knit Composite Lid.
g:"“’b“" Hausing Soclety, 3. J. K. Synthatic Mis Lid,
Htagang 4. J. K. Spinning Miis Lid,
5. J.K. Real Estate Lid.
6. J. K Colton Mis Lid
7. Tanima Knit Composite Lid
ahar Vice 1. Ananta Donim Technology Lid.
“Sokrana Manjir Chalrman | 2 Ananta Properfies Lid.
3 3 Ananta Apparels Ltd.
£ Majdon Sazr 4. Ananta Fashion Lid.
5. Ananta Casual Wear Ltd.
6. Ananta Enorgy Resources Lid,
Hajee M_A. Kalam Chalrman - | 1. Ms. M. A Kalam Ltd_
75, Khatungany, EC 2 Mis. United Overseas (80) Lid.
Chittagong 3. Arsb Planttion Lt
4. Sangu Texties Lid.
M. A Sabur Chairman - | Chairman
Maxim Lid., Audit 1. Maxim Iniematonal Lid.
Taher Chamber,
10 Agrabad C/A, Managing Director
Chitageng 2. M. A Sabur & Com. Lid,
3. Arbes Textie Lid,
4. Maim Lid.
Director [ Shareholder
5. Packapges Eastern Lid.
6. Sparso Apparals Ltd.
7. Janala Insuranca Com. Lid.
8 Masco Shares & Securitles Lid.
Yumus Ahmed Director | 1. Shore ko Shore (Bangladesh) Lid,
ST8/A, C.0A Avenus, 2. Yunusco K. Tetiles Lid
Binakrabad, 3. STS Textile Lid,
Chiftagong: 4. LM Masinara Asia Limétsd
5. Adapt ID Bangladesh Lid
6. Yunusco Stone & Enginesring Lid.
7. Yunusco Propesties Lid
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Name and Address

Entities where they have interest

M. A Hashem
678 O.R. Nizam Road,
Hasirabad,

Chittagong.

Director

Chairman: Partex Group &

following Companies:
1. Star Parficle Board Mills Lid.
2. Star Vegetable oils Lid.
3. Fotoroma Lid.

4. Danish Condensed Milk (BD) Ltd,

5. Rubel Steel Milis Lid.

6. Russoll Steel Mils Ltd,

7. Corvee Maritime Co. Lid.

8. Amber Cotton Mills Lid.

8. Amber Pulp & Paper Mills Lid.

10, Partex Baverage Lid

11, Partex Real Estate Ltd,

12. Partax Fumniture Ind. Lid.

13. Parlex Lid.

14, Partex Knitwear Lid,

15, Partex Sugar Miis Ltd,

18. Partax Energy Ltd.

. Partex Rotor Spinning Mills Lid.

Danish Misk Ltd.

, Partex Plastic Ltd.

Partex Laminates Ltd.

Danish Foods Ltd.

Danish Dairy Firm Ltd,

Partex Spinning Mills Lid.

Partex Rotor Mils Ltd.

Partex Denim Lid.

Partax Bullders Lid,

Plastics Accessories Lid

Partex Foundry Ltd.

Parlex Paper Mills Ltd.

Mushroom Care Lid,

Pearl Feed Processing Lid.

Vita-Plus Fish Products Lid.

Jupiter Hatchery Ltd.

34. Tiger Ware Rod (Ro-rolling) Mils Ltd.

35. Janala Insurance Lid.

HRLBEBNERRBREEEES

Shabbir Ahmed

Managing Director
1. Farid Lavel & Acoessories Lid,
2. Sharafat & Brothers Lid,
Director

3. Kashfi Knitting Lid.
4. East End Automoblies

102

UCB Annual Report | 2009




Name and Address Designation | Entities where they have Interest |n.....m|
Kazi Enamul Hoque Director | Managing Director
AB. Industries Ltd
: 1. Allin One Lid_
[
ﬂmn’ e At 2. Allin One CNG Ltd.
Director
3. Anju Azhar Stone Link Lid.
4. A, B, Industries Lid,
Showkal Aziz Russell Direclor Managing Director
978 O.R. Nizam Road,
Nasirabad, 1. Amber Cotton Mils Lid.
Chittagong. 2. Partex Sugar Mills Lid.
3. Partex Energy Lid.
4. Partex Rolor Spinning Misis Lid,
5. Partex Denim Lid.
6. Partex Rolor Mills Lid.
7. Partex Spinning Mills Lid.
Director

1. Star Particks Board Ml Lid,
2. Star Vagelable ods Lid,

3. Fotoroma Ltd.

4. Danish Condensed Mk (BD) Lid.
5. Partex Fumiture Ind. Lid.

6. Corvee Maritime Co. Ltd.

7. Amber Pulp & Paper Mills Lid.
8. Partox Baverage Ltd,

9. Partox Real Estate Lid

10. Partex Apparels Ltd.

11. Partex Ltd.

12. Partex Knitwear Lid.

13, Danish Mik (BD) Ltd,

14. Partex Plastic Ltd,

15. Vegetax Lid.

16. Danish Foods Lid.

17. Danish Dairy Firm Lid,

18, Rubel Steel Mils Lid,

19. Partex Builders Ltd.

20. Plaslics Accessones

21, Partax Chemical Indusiries Ltd
22. Parlex Packing Lid.

23. Partex Paper Mills Lid.

24, Janata Insurance Co, Lid,

25, Partex Foundry Lid.

26, New Era Mk Processing Lid,
27, New Horzon Firms Litd,

28, Cosmos Proteins Lid.

29, Star Tissue Culturo Lid,
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I_Nauundmdm Designation | Entities where they have Interest Remarks
Riyadh Zatar Chowdhury Director
Housa No=-8, Road No:-2,
Kuishi RIA. Chittagong.
Mur Udsden Javed Direclor | Managing Director
Rd.-3, Holding No-1330/A,
O.R. Nizam Rd. 1. Nur Mohammed & Com. Ltd
Easl Nasirabad
3 Director
Chittagong.
2. Fish Preservers Ltd.
Dr. Aziza Karim Director 1. Taj Accassories (Pvi.) Lid.
Rd.-22, House-30,
CDA RIA, Agrabad,
Chittagang.
Selara Begum Director | 1. Kewality Stationeries Lid.
1, Motel Road, Cox's Bazar 2 Elita Prinfing & Packages Lid.
3. Janata Insurance Co. Lid.
4. Anchorage Trading Agent
5. Hotel Holy Day, Cox's Bazar

| zo0%




02 Sigrificant contracts whem Bank s a party and whensin Direclors have interest: NI
03. Shares issued W Dirsclors & o at discount: Nil
04. Retated party Transactions:

81 Nature of
| No. | Name of party Rolated by ctign | Amountin Lac
1.1 Kazl Malla Hague Direcior HEL 12
| 2. | Mis. Sun Shine C Director GG HYPQ) 18
| 3. | Mis. Sea Line Nylan : P_Loan
L Chmokee. GC (HYPO). LM il

05, Lending policies to related parbes;
Lending o related parSes is effecied as per requirements of Seclion 27 (1) of Bank Companies
Act"1B91.

06, Loan and advances o Directors and their related concem,

N Naturs of Amount

| o, | Mame of Party Reaind by transaction | inlac | Stats
1. | Kazi Naka Haqua Kazl Enamul Haqus HEL 1268] BL
2. | M5 Sun Shing Corp. | M. A Sabur CC [HYPO) 1836 UG
3 | Mis. Sea Line Nyl ; P, Loan
2 et L] Nuruddin Javed o Liet o 125145 | BL

“Lale Kazi Aminl Haque guaranior i the brother of Bank's Director Me. Kazi Enamol Hague *

07. Business other than banking business with any retated concam of the Directors as per Section 18(2) of
Banik Companies Act' 1891: Nil

08, Investments in the Securities of Direciors and thedr mlated concem: NIl

General:

1. Bank's share ot been utiized for acquiring any oiher direct o indirect businoss.

2. Mo amount was spent by the bank for compensaling any member of the board for special services
randared during e year

3. During the year under repod, Unied Commercial Bank Ld. did not place any of its assots undor
pledge as security to obiain any Eabililies.

4. Figures of provicus year have baen re-aranged whitever considened necessary o conform o
CUNTN YOS prosontalion

\:

Director Director

i

28 June, 2010.
Dhalca
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Highlights
on Overall Activities

‘wm I mwm |
Paid-up Capital 299,204,630 259,204,890
Total Capital 6,035002412 |  4.780.375.209
(Capital SurplusiDeficit) (509,009,445} 155,650,682
Total Assets 90,483,781,843 | B4.704,864 487
Total Deposits 77,730,401,067 | 54,485,266, 726
Total Loans & Advancas 61,692,218339 | 44,446,332,785
Total Contingent Liabilifies & Commamants 22,098,184,840 | 18,085,795 600
Credit Deposit Ratio (%) 79.37 8157
Percentage of Classified Loans againgt Tolal Loans and Advances 263 4,62
(Operating Profit 3,125,169,480 | 2,440,808 878
Profit afer Tax & Provision 932,897,890 784,745,570
[Amount of Classified Loans during the year 600,721,636 | 1,204,664,700
Classified Advance al the end of the year 1,622,305,000 | 2,051,360,000
Provision kept against Classified Loans 586,231,503 743,837 863
Provigion Surplus/{Deficit) 11,178,503 5,853,863
Cost of Fund (%) 1072 1132
Imevest Eaming Assats 74,778,140,020 | 52,998,967,072
Non-interest Eaming Assets 15,705,641.623 | 11,794,867 415
Return on investment (RON) (%) 1031 831
Return on Assets (ROA} (%) 1.03 118
Incorme from lnvestments 963,452,750 670,700,480
Eaming Per Share (Taka) (Basic) 311.79 256.59
Eaming Per Share (Taka) (Diluted) 52.10 27
Net Income Per Share (Taka) I 255.59
Price Eaming Ratio (Times) 1023 1248
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UNITED COMMERCIAL BANK LTD.

Fresh Balance Sheet

(As per Court Order dated 11.06.2008)
For the year ended December 31,2009

AUDITOR

M.J.ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
National Plaza (6th Floor)
1/G, Free School Street
Sonargaon Road
Dhaka- 1205
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BALANCE SHEET

As at December 31, 2009

Notes Amaount in Taka

PROPERTY & ASSETS
Cash L] 7,003,756,028 4,745,904.417
Cash in Hand (Inciuding Foreign Cumencies) 1,227 332119 | 800,123,740
Balance with Bangladesh Bank & Sonell Bank

{Including Foreign Cumoncles)

Balance With Other Banks & Financlal Institutions 04 2,418,277 292 4,248,401,025
In Bangladesh 1,762,187,822 | 3,783,803,7T9
Outside Bangladesh

Money at Call and Short Notica s 3,900,000,000 130,000,000
Investment [ 9,346,382,014 7,200,679,208
Govemment Securities 7879872964 6,151,499,848
Qthers 1 1,048,1
Loans and Advances L 61,602,218,339 44,445,332, 765
Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts atc. 60,487,087 484 | 42,300,890,811
Bilis Purchased and Discountad 1

Premises and Fixed Assots o 1,305,810,015 993,188,451
(Less Depreciation)

Other Assets L] 4,816,328,155 3,024,358,531
Non Banking Assets - -
Total Assets | 90,483,781 64,794,864 487
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

LIABILITIES

Borrowings From Other Banks, Financial

Institutions and Agents etc. 10 550,000,000 458,306
Deposlis And Other Accounts " T7,730,401,057 54,485,266,725
‘Currenl Deposits & Other Accounts

Bills Payable

Savings Bank Deposits

Term Deposita

Other Liabilities 12

Total Liabilities 315 __ 60,410,621,388
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Notes [ Amount In Taka |
CAPITAL / SHAREHOILDERS' EQUITY Decemiber 31, 2008 | | December 31, 2008
Paid up Capital (Note - a) 13 1,183,627,100 1,193,827.100
Proposed Ixsus of Bonus Shores for 2007 (50%) (Note-b) 586,913,500 596,013,500
Proposed lssus of Bonus Shores for 2008 (25%) (Note-c) 447 685,200 447 BB5.200
Proposed Issue of Bonus Shares for 2009 (30%) (Wote- b) 671,527,700 -
Statutory Reserve " 1,833.335,403 1,524,962.504
General Reserve 15 91.577.961 114,123,088
Assots Rovaluation Reserve 456,496,559 456,496,559
Revaluation Resarve (HTM & HFT) 414,103,342 25,777,568
Retalned Eaming 1% =

Tatal Shareholders " Equity
Total Liabilities and Sharsholders’ Equity |
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Contingent Lisbilities 7
Accaptances & Endorsaments 17
Latter of Guaranioes

Documentary Cred®t and Other Shor Term Trade Related Transacions

Forward Assels Purchised and Forward Deposits Placed - -
Undriran Note |ssuance and Revolving Undereriting Facilfes

Undrawan Formal Standby Facililies, Credit Lines and Other Commiments

Total off Balance Sheet Rems Includ Liabilities 22098.194840 __ 10,085,795,008

Haie :

This balance sheal is propanid afesh ko mantain continuily of order of the cour giving effect of Bhe following:

&, Increase in Share Copital due lo Borus Shores amounting Tk, 894622210 being 90% Bonus Dividend
approved for 2002, 2003, 2004 and 50% Borus Dividend approved for 2005 and 40% Bonus Dividend epproved
for 2006 in the AGM held on 07.06.2010.

b. Bonus Shares proposed for 2007 (50%) in the Board mesling held on 04.08.2008.

<. Bonug Shares preposed for 2008 (25%) in the Boasd meeting hedd on 28.06.2010,

d. Bonus Shares proposed for 2009 (30%) in the Board mesting heid on 28.06.2010,

Excopt for na changos have boan made inthg audited Balance Shoot dated 28.06.2010,

\ AN b6k AShgri
urmn?\ Director Diractor 7

The effect given in e Balance Sheet has been
examined and found comect.

Daled @ July 21, 2010 M. J.!BEDNIOD
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Profit and Loss Account

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Notes | Amount in Taka ]

OPERATING INCOME [Decomber 31, 2009] [Becomber 31, 2008]
Interest Income 18 6,965.321,635 5,749,293 660
Interest paid on Deposi and Bomowings, etc. 18 4, | 3,740,765, 703)|
Net Interest Income 2,617,086,773 2,008,527,368
Income from Imvesrment 20 863,452,758 670,700,488
bt ge and q 2 1,121,488,141 1,135,817.466
Other Operating Income 2 [ 490,015943 | 204 296118
Total Operating Income (a) 5,192,054,616 4,100,442,039
QPERATING EXPENSES
Salary and Alowances 23 1,313,708,004 1,132,146.806
Renl, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting elc. 24 247,991,001 121,028,330
Lagal Expensas 25 5,523,108 10,550.031
Postage, Stamps, Telegram, Telephone slc. 2% 51,768,676 34,788,235

Printing, o, w 95,204,988 B1.441.814
Chiel Execative’s Salary inchuding Other Feas 28 9,130,000 5,345,204
Director's Fee and Other Expenses il 3,580,806 3584025
Audilors Fees 225,000 226,000
Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assots 30 108,480,786 54,672.783
Other Expensas n 231,191,837 175,780,624
Total Operating Expanses (b) 2,066,885,136 1,659,543,161
Profiti{Loss) before Provision(c) = (a-b} 3,125,160,480 2,449,898,878
Provision for Loans & Advances a2 1,502.964,000 817,307,000
Provision for Diminution In Value of Investments = 89,892,000
Other Provisions 33 80, 287 79,685 000
Total Provision (d) 1/583,304,887 986,885,000
Total Profit before Income Tax (¢ -d } 1,541,864,403 1,463,013,878
Pravision for Incame Tax 34 608,966,503 _  GOB,268,308
Net Profit after Tax 932,807,800 TE4,745,570
Retained Eamings Brought Forward 24 457,584 -
Transfemed from General Resarve — 22545128 -
Balance Carrled Forward 978,800,568 TE4,745,5T0
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Hotes | Amount in Taks |
December 31, 2009

Balance Brought Forward 979,900,599 764,745,570
APPROPRIATIONS

Statutory Reserve (Under sec.24 of the Bank Companias Act 1691) 308,372,800 292,602,786
Proposed |ssue of Bonus Shares for 2008 (25%) (Note - a) - 447 685,200
Proposed Issue of Bonus Shares for 2009 (30%) (Note - &) 671,527,700 -
Genoral Reserve E e
Retained Eamings = Jﬂ_ﬁﬂ
Eamings per Share (EPS) 35 32.08 .16
Hote

8. Bonus Shares propsed for 2008 (25%) in the Board Mesting hetd on 28,06 2010.

b. Bonus Shares propsed for 2009 {30%) in the Board Meeling held on 28.06.2010.

\ Gk A Sk
= S — — s

The offoct given in the Profit & Loss Account has

been mcrined and found comscl
Lm_.[//_ﬂ__;i?_
Dated : July 21, 2010 M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Place ; Dhaka Charlered Accountants
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o0z |

(48!

Pakd up Blatutary Ganaral Propossd Retalned e Investmant
Particulars Capital Reserve Reserve lsued of Surplus | Revalustion | Revaluntion Totad
BonusSharss: Russrve Rusorve
Taka Taks Taka Taks Taks Taks Taka Taks

Baiance o st Jansey 01, 2008 TIELERT00  ISMSERSM 104123088 1OMLSEHT00  PAAGTSB4  dSBASBSSE  PBITISEG 4,384, 743089
Changes In Accouning Polisy - - - - - - - -
Fastated Balance 1ABMAITADD  1524BE2504 114120086  1OMLEATO0  DAMETSE4 ASEA06558  IETTTSEE  4,384,241089

o Revaluation of Properties . . - . . - - :
Derbct/Surphus on Reveluaion of Imvestnents . . s 4 : - 288,308,776 308,328,776
Other DeficSuplus . . " . - B
el Gains and Lossea not Recognized iv - . - -
Income Statemect - - - - - - - -
Mt Brofit for the ynar . 208,472 490 - . S - E 532,867 890
Proposed Bonus Sharss for 2006 (X1%) 2 s RRBBIN] ETLSILION (848062578 = " =
Apcropriation made during the year - - - -
Balance as at Decambar 31, 2008 10 doo] 4 1,577, 1780 - A141 765

notes 1 1040 form sutomunts.

Hots :
This staloment of s Equity ordes of i toowing:
& Borus Shares proposed for 2007 {50%] in the Board meating hakd on 04,06 2008
b ‘or 2008 (25%) hald o 26,06.201C.
& Bohus Shares
Excopl for above, no olher equily duted 28.05.2010.

% ‘} Bl

L : a . Cy .
D) At
7
Maraglng Directer Director Diractor Directof
Tha sftsct i camined and fo
~

L ,—,_.I

Datod : iy 21, 2010 o
s o M. J. ABEDIN & CO.

‘Lf Jaquiadag papua Jeak ayy 1o,

Aynb3 siapjoyareys ul saBuey) Jo JusLLAIRIS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S [ 28083510

1200 Caphtal
Authorined
10,000,000 orginary shises of Tk 100 sach
Issued Subscribed and Pald up Capltal
The sswed, subscribed and poid up copital of 1he bonk amounts

0 11,538.271.00 shares for Tk 100 each 1,1 100 1,183,827, 100

Break up of Issusd Subscribed and Paid up Capital

I 008 |
Particulars |Ilo.al Mo of Amaust | |
holers Shares in Taka

Spensonomaters 40,00 LTSHNE00  276.510,800.00 nn
Ganoral Publc (including NFfia)  90,842.00 BZIOTTO0  207,700.00 eag?
Govt. of of 20700 S, 1E8.00 B4.518,500.00 a2
11,138.08 1183827160 1,189,897 100.00 00,00

2008 ]

Pasticulars .ol Mo of Armousl | |
holder Shmres in Taka
Spensorromatn 4000 LTSHNE00  276.510,000.00 211
Gannral Publc (including MRSin)  90,042.00 BIIIHTTO0  820.307,700.00 sagr
‘Covt. of Peopiss Republic of B'desh 207.00 85 1EE 00 54518, 600,00 a2
11,1300 £ 2611 100.00 00,00
g 1, 2008
Mumber ef Numsber of Waiua of Sharea | %ot

— & I Shares {Fig in Taha) Lmu.-.m_l
140 800 Shares 0,033.00 SO0 BA024.100.00 T
501 to 5000 Sharea s4e.00 LISTA00 11575240000 @10
5001 10 10,000 Shama 0,00 355,905 00 05,800, 800.00 284
10,001 ko 20,000 Snarss 3500 515,739.00 51,573,000.00 432
20,001 12 30,000 Shares 19.00 4SS300  45.503.300.00 384
39,001 5 40,000 Shares 1000 IWAID0 ISEMIT000 299
42,001 12 50,000 Shares 700 W0 I03M10000 254
50,001 16 100,000 Sharn 2500 164018600 164.918,600.00 13.81
10,000,001 & above 18.00 L2607I100  EISOTHING 5244
11,1300 11,308371.60__1,183,897,100.00 100,00
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18.00

wam oft Slanc Snaot Furs
mmunu

mwmm -

an 1%
Statdory Reserve.

General Resorve
I-ﬂ Tranaferved 1o progosed issued of Bows Shares

35.00 Gamings per Share

%o
" Mnaging Director

Dated : July 21, 2010
Place : Dhaka

Fiat Proft Afer Tax
Mambers of Ovdinary Shares {Note)
Eamings per Shure (EPS)
biota ;

This prosunts |
Bumber of shares ssied a8 pec baancs sheat daled Jens 28, A1
Mamber of

1.193,827. 100

Preposad issus of Boaus Shans tor 2007 (S0%)
Proposed isue of Bos Shares for 2008 {(25%)
Froposed ssus of Bonus Shama lor 2008 {30%)

154,062 504 122388
08, 372859 262,602
I O
194, 123088 118,122,088
??.M‘IN i
p— %)
24,457 584 4 45T Sd
4,504 0 -
o OGO S
RS e—
@2.807 850 T, TASSTD
29,090,505 22,3845
26 Rl
2,002,048 2902048
by
8,546,223 8840223
5,000,135 50869,135
4,476 852 IM
BISZIT

—RER 2SS

2» 67@»— /\LQ,HJ,._.L

Nm/

Tha Whhmnnmm and found comact.

| 2009

J. ABEDIN & €O,

Chartered Accountants



Branch
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DHAKA DIVISION

58, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000
Phane: +B5-02-9555799, 9541054,

9568547-48 Mobile: Uﬂ'l‘m
Fax; +B8-02-9568548

SWIFT: UCBLBDDHPRE

E-mail: prbguchl.com

“MOULVIBAZAR BRANCH

471, and 5, M\"W m
Guibadan House, Dhaka

Phane; +88- WTJIHO?. 73"‘339-

THIBOT, 54974

Mabile: 01711-881047

Fax: »88-02-7311407

SWIFT: UCBLBDDHMBD

E-mafl: mibd@ucbl.com

ZINZIRA BRANCH
Tinpatty (13t Floor), Zinjira
Bazar,Zinjira, Dhaka-1310

Mabile: (1711-809732
E-mail: isp@uchl.com

HASNABAD BRAMCH

P.0: Hasnabad Thana, Nawabgon|
Dhaka-1321

Phane; +88-00- 0385456-84013
Mabile: 01711-881050

E-mafl: hsb@nuchl. com

MYMENSINGH BRANCH
17, Chata Bazas, Mymensingh.
Phone: +85-091-64345, 64346,

Mabile: OI?II-!BIW
E-mafl: mns@ischi.com

INGDI BRANCH
lel'ﬂl Bazer, Nﬁﬂm 1600
Phone: +B8-0621- 9463272
Mabile: 01711-809730
E-mail: mrp@uchl.com

*ELEPHANT ROAD BRANCH

25, Flephant Rd., Dhaka-1207
Phone: ~85-02-9657370, B621283,
9654622, 8615547, BE1067S, BE12540
PRBYX - +BE-02-B61594, 8621283
Mabile: 01199-803374

FAX; +8B-02-9664622

SWIFT: UCBLEDDHEPR

E-mail: epriguchl.com

* Autharissd broches for Foreign Trade

UCB Annual Report | 2009

NII&?. Mobile: 01711-B83764
Fax; =88-02-8312887
E-mail: mib@uchl.com

“BANGSHAL BRAMCH
32/3, Malitols Road
Horth

*HAWABPUR BRANCH
Hasina Yeasin Market

168, Nawabpur, (13t fir), Dhaka,

Phane: +B8-02-9566746, T1. 11“1.
T166489 Mobile: 01711-809723
Fax; =88-02-5564745

SWIFT: UCBLEDOHNWF

E-madl: nwpduchl,com

*MARAYANGON. BRANCH
10, 5. MM-!;W, Tanbazar,

Phane : +88-0671-7631623,
TEALE1E, TE41262, TEIS014
Mobile: 01713042050/ 01730076131
Fax: -88-0671-T643968

E-mail: .com

SWIFT: LCBLBDDHNGY

TAMGAIL BRARCH

|m-7l719 Masjid Read (15t Floor),
Phaoe: +88-0921-54327, 54307
Mabile: 01711-881051
Fax-0921-54327

E-mail: tgluchl.com

*KAWRAN BAZAR BRAMCH

11, Kawran Bazar , Titas Gas Bhaban
Kawran

Bazar, Dhaka
Phane: +85-02-8115757, M141572
[FAX +88-02- 9140581

Mobile: 01711-883738

E-mail: eom
SWIFT: UCBLBDDHKEZ, UCBLBDDHKBE

MOHAMMADPUR BRANCH
14/21, Block -A, .lﬂd Avernae
Mammedptr

Pharse: +83-02- 9“851? Br14661
Mobile: 01711-881048

Fax: +88-02-9124325

E-mail: mdp@uchl.com

“HAYABAZAR BRAMCH
9, Bashabari Lane {15t Floor}

Nayabazar, Dhaka
Phane : +88.02-7393379, 7396082,
7393123

1
Mabile: 01711-888359
Fax; +88-02-7392123
E-mail: nbaguchl.com

SWIFT: UCBLBDDHNEZ

“GULSHAN BRANCH
32, Guishan Morth C/A, Dhaka
Phone: +B8-07-BE74198, BEZ4G64,

R BRANCH
Boadl‘l&lucklﬂnhc‘bnt

Housing Estate, Dhal
Phore:; +88-02-8011755, BO15810
Mobite: 01711-881049
Fax: +B8-02-8015810
E-mail: mrp@uchl.com

MADHABDI BRANCH MARSINGDI

Union-Madhabdi, P.0-Madhabdi

PS E: Dist. Narsbngei
02-9446405

Mnblle‘ 01711-809731

E-mail: mdh@uebl.com

FARIDPUR BRANCH

85, Mujib Sarkar, Faridpur

Phone: +88-0631- 6492? 63355

Mobite: 01711-B83740

Fax-0631-63155.

E-mail: frd@ucbl.com

TONGI BRANCH

8, Charagali Market, Shajahan Mansion,
Torgi, Gazipur.

Phone: +88-02.9802332, 9815799

Mobile: 01711-881046
E-mail: tngduchl.com

?IIMM 7125064
FAX -+B8-02-T122154

Mobile: 01711882739

E-mail: nbh@uchl.com

“MOHAKHALI BRANCH
Meden Tower, 28, Mohakhali CrA,

Dhaka
Phone: «88-02-8813027, 9864883,

9834585

Mobile: 01711-881052

E-mail: mkh@uchl.com
SWIFT: UCBLBDDHMKH



mhl.el. C1819-249830, 01711-809720
E-mail: bulguchl.com

UTTARA BRANCI

RAIUK Couma ng

{1st floor), Plot # 71, Sector # ?
2

DHANMONDI BRANCH

“Mahar Green Summit” (13t floar)
Plat # 305 (Old) 43 (New)

Foad £ 27 (Oid) 16 (Now)

Fax- 9121483
E-mail: dhndmchl.com

DHOMIA BRANCH

1067, Hayapara (15t & 2nd floor)
Union-Shampur, P.5-Shampur
ﬂ\lh

- +B8-02- 7550151/ 7550152
Cell-01817-032572
E-Mail: dnb@uchl.com

GAZIPUR CHOWRASTA BRANCH

* BANAMI BRAKCH

Sharif Plaza (15t floor & 2nd floor)

39, Kamal Ataturk Avenue

Banani, Dhaka

Ted-88-02-9891877/ FEH16T4/ 9891667/
GBG31 66/ FEI0AIT

Cell-01730326159

E-Mall: bab@uchi, com

S\.uundh Super Market, Savar Bus Stand
Wiard N, 3, Savar Pourashava
Uparilia-Savar, Dhaks

Tel: 88-02-7744859

Cell- 01730318845 / 01811414262
E-Mail: sbd@uchl.com

HABINAGAR BRANCH

Haxd Mizam Plaza (15t floar)
Will-Dendabar,P.0-Savar Cantonment
P.5-Ashulia, Upazilla-Savar

Dist, Dhaka

Cel.ll 01730329716 / 01811418838
E-Mafl: nbsguchl.com

* Authorised bammches for Fareign Teode

CHASHARA BRANCH
Badhan mmm&mtkﬁlwl
1_“!5«. B.B. Road, Chashar;

rayangon
aumrmnm
E-Mail: chn@uchl.com

CORPORATE BRANI
Plot & CWS-(A)-1, m M.
Gulshan Avenue, Dist.
Call-01730326158/ Olm!IM
E-Mail: cob@uchi.com

HEW ESKATON BRAMCH
'uhq[mhnn {15t floar)

4, Hew Eskaton Road, Dhaka
TeL.: 8802 -83333286, B3
Cell-01730- 318847
E-Mail: nebauchl.com

CHITTAGONG DIVISION

*KHATUNGOM. BRANCH
Wmmm mm jan Lane
L

Phone: «B88-031-613777, 610785,
613774, 637029, 637027
Mobile: 01711-804132
Fax: +88-031-610786
PAEX 880014110154

-mail: ki Com
SR SR BDIS

*AGRABAD BRANCH

mm Plaza (it Floor), 923/4, Shelkh
Road, 1A, Chittagong.

mﬂ! +88-031-710706, 716020,

711054, 725097 PABX- +88-031-711053-5

Mobile: 01711-804129, 0171725136,

01730034763, Fax: B8-031-T11054

E-mail: aghuchl.com

SWIFT: UCBLBODHAGS

COX'S BAZAR BRAKCH

PO Bax. Noln Main Road,
Barabazas, Cox’s Bazar-3829
Phone: -BBUM\M!N bADL
Mobile:

CHOWMUHAN| BRANCH

50-268, Kalitola R, HallScra] it

Chowmuhani, Noakl

Phone: +88-0321- 521“ s2111
1-883741

=

E-mail: emh@uchl.com

MADUNAGHAT BRAMCH
::Mu, Po‘__l'l‘u M mqs:?
Phone: +88-031-670375
Mabfle: 01711-883744

E-mail: mdg@uchl.com

llmlmllﬂ!
P5-Rawzan, Chittagong-4346
Phone; «88-031-2571173, 2571215

Mobile: 01711-883743
E-mafl: npeduchl.com

: jor@uchl.com
SW|F|' UCBLEDDHJBR

BRANCH
125/117, Ralgon) (15t Fir.)
Chatipatty, Comilla-3500
Phone: «B8-081-85776, 76447
Mabile: 01711-809726
E-mail: Leom

70, T26240
Mabdle: 01711-881056
Fax: +88-001-725939
E-mail: kdm@uchl.com
SWIFT: UCELEDDHKDM

, Ctg-
: +B8- Illl ~453074, 657076,
Wl.e: 01711-281054
E-mafl: Leom

ml! 01711-888361
E-mail: cdp@uchl.com

LOHAGARA BRANCH
Liakat Hossain Market {15t floor)

MI;: O1195-T03298/01713-068480
E-mafl: thaguchl.com

Hossail +

RS -Fatickchari, Chittagong.
Phone: «B8-031-637003, 635033-15
Mabile: 01711-883745

E-mail: nzhi@uch!.com

LAKSHMIPUR BRANCH

63, Bancha Nagar

Masiid Road, Lakshimpur
Phone: +88-0381-55443, 61881
Mabile: 01711-883747

E-mail: kp@uchl.com

BRAHMANBARIA BRANCH

10907128 Court Road, Brahmanbaria
Phone: +88-0851-57650, 57688
Mabile: 01711-809733

E-mail: Leom

117

UCB Annual Report | 2009



118

UCB Annual Report

PORT BRANCH

Chittagong Port, 200, Strand Rd.
Samad Supar Mkt., No, 3, Jetty Gate,
Dabolmuring, Ctg

Phone; +88-001-711051, 711052
Mabile 01711-809729

Fax; -88-031-711051

E-mail: com

ANDERKILLA BRANCH

504, Anderkilla {lmam Mansion) Ctg
Phone: '8501!6146)‘1 612162
FAX-+B8-031-61

Mabile: mmums:

Cable: UNIANDER

E-Mail: ankguchl.com

MAIZDEE COURT BRARCH
1175-1176, Maizdee Court Main Rd,
Hoakhali,

Phane: +88-0321-61174, 61236
Mabile: 01711-883748

E-mail: bab&uchl.com

H‘.\Mle 711 331060

KAMAL BAZAR BRANCH

Kiabir Tower (15t Moor), Kamal Bazar,

Kalurghat Road, Chittagong

Phone; +88-001- 2571156, 2571271,
= -809T25

ttagong
Phone: +88-031-03022-56120
Mabile: 01711-883746

=mafl: ftkduchl.com

FEMI BRANCH
21, Stn. Road, Shaheed Hossaln Uddin
BMI Bitan, {15t Floor) Feni

Phone: +88-0331-74296, 61567
Mabile: 01711881065 Fax-0331-61567
E-mail: com

DHOHAZARI BRANCH
Hmﬂmhsmmm«mln
Arakan Road, Dohazari, Chandanaish

Chittagong
Phone: +88-031-635022, 62012644
Mabile: 01711-888357

-mafl: dhzduchl.com

MURADPUR BRANCH

Chittagong Shopping Complex
112129 w Mahalla Muradpur,
Ctg . Phone: +88-031-651375, 651376
Mabile: 01711-881055

E-mafl: mrd@uchl.com

* Autharised branches for Foreign Trade

| 2009

STATION ROAD BRAMCH

Abul Hossain market {1st flr.)
113, Stand Road, Katwali, Ch
Phone; «88-031-624145, 634152

Upa Zita: Raczan, Dist: Chittagong,
Mobile-01713068057

Phone-04434493930, 03026-56189,
03026-56190 E-mail ghr@ucbl.com

CHOKORIA BRANCH
Samabaya Market {1st floor)
rO: , Chakoria Pa X

RANGUNIA BRANCH

Haji Faiz Market (15t floor)
Uniion-Mariam 3
P.5-Rangunia, Chittageng
Cell-01819614109/ 01730329718
E-Mail: rghi@uchl_com

BRANCH
Complex {15t floor),

5A Shepping
Vill-Fatika, Union-Hathazar Sadar, RS-
Hathazari,

Ctg.
C.ﬂﬂlslﬂal;&w 01710329715
E-Mail: hhib@uchl. m

:mmmmmm«mmr.

u.pP & Dist. Cox's Bazar
Cell-01730318849/
01811418837

E-Mail: ebe@uchl com

3830/B, Bitan
D.T. Road, Pahartali,
Dist. Chittagong
Cell-01730318846/
01811415703

Email-

RAJSHAHI DIVISION
*BOGRA BRANCI

21, Jhawtols Pnshmmmiun,

Bogra- 5800

Phone: =88-051-65467, 63630,69527
Mobile: 01711-881066/ 01819814239
SWIFT: R

E-mail: bgrahuchl.com

DIMAJPUR BRANCH
Maldahpalty, Dinajpur-5200
Phone: +83-0531-63266,
63327,

', B4042
Mabile: 01711-436596
Fax-0531-63266
E-mail: dnj@uchl.com

*RANGPUR BRANCH
Shakid Shopping Complex Jah
Company More, Holding Mo, 19013,

Rangpur

Phane: +B8-0521-62851, 63730
Mabile: 01711-881061

Fax:+ B8-0521-62851

SWIFT: UCBLBDDHANG
E-mail: mj@uchl.com

RAISHAHS BRANCI
?WT! Miah Para {m Fr.)

HADGADN BRANCH

379, Tula Patty (13t fir),
Hacgaon-6500

Phone: +83-0741-62988, 62861
Residence: 62987

Mabile: 01711-809728

Fax: +88-0741-62988

E-mail: ngnBucbl.com

PABHA BRANCH
Al-Monsur Super Market (1t Floor),

: Dist- Serajgon]
Phone; +88- WS\ 623593, 64165
FAX-+B8-0751-62393
Mabile: 01711-888362
E-mail: srj@uchl.com

HATORE BRANCH
Undon- Hartshapur
Fatuapara

. Natore
Phone; +88-0071-66771, 66913
Mabile: 01711-809721
E-mafl: nirguctl.com

CHAPAIMAWABGOM.) Bl
45, c-mmﬂ i, cmlnamnpnj.




KHULNA DIVISION
“KHULKA BRARCH
Park

Mabile: 01711-881063
FT: UCBLBDOHKL
E-mail: kingucbl.com

+B8- 0421735402
Mabile: 01711-883758
E-mafl: jar@uebl.
KUSHTIA BRAHCH
4, Bar Waritala Road, Kushtia
Phone: +88-071-61991, 62533
Mobile: 01711-881058
E-mail: kst@uchl com

mall: jhrduchl.com

m. Kh'lthull,ﬂlM Hhulna
Phone: + 1-TIT224
Mobile: 01711-883762
E-mail: khj@uchl.com

CHUADANGA BRANCH
147, Barobazar,
Phone: «B8-0761-62515
Maobile: 01711-883763
E-mail: edg@uebl com

SYLHET DIVISION

; Sylhet-31
Phone: +88-0821 ?15070, FI3541.
713519

Mabile: 01711-809727

Fax +88-0821-715212

SWIFT: UCELBDDHSYL

E-mafl: syl@uchl.com

MOULVIBAZAR BRANCH

ow-sme
Maobile: 01711881059
E-mail: mbaguchl.com

* Authorised beonches for Foreign Trode

BISWANATH BRANCH

R.0. Ps. Biswanath, Dist. Sylhet
Phone: +88-038911-82063, 82059

Mobile: 01711-883750
E-mall: bba@uctd.com

AMBORKHANA BRANCH
Adrpart Road, Amborkhana,

Sylhet
Phone: +88-0821-T18181, 712631

Mebile: 01711-883751
T UMIAMEAR
E-mall: ambguchl.com

GOALABAZAR BRAKCH
RO Goalsbazar

£5 Balagon], Sylhet
Phone; +88-0379%- 187015
Mobile: 01711883752
Cable: UNIGOLA

E-mall: gob@uctl.com

SHERPLUR BRANCH

Union-Sadipus, PO, Aurangapur,
RS- Osmani Nagar (New), Sylhet.
86-03796800024

HOBIGOH. BRANCH

P.0 RS- Nabigon], Dist-Hobigon]

Phone: «88-038927-88105
Maobile: 01711-B83754
E-mail: nbj@uchl.com

BARDLEKHA BRANCH
RO& PS5 Barolekha

Dist. Moulvibazar

Phone: +88-08621-56140,

O37S7800032
Mobile: 01711-88375%
E-mail: brigucbl.com

SHlH.IlLM. UPOSHAHAR
View Complex [Znd Floor)

Shl.llilhl Upashahar, P.5-Kotwall
Dist. Sylhet

Phone: -B88-0821-2833299,

2832258, 721139,

Mobile : 01815412620/ 01730334185

E-mafl: ups@uchl.com

LAMA BAZAR BRANCH

Cell. 01811415698
E-mail : Ibbg@uchl.com

BARISAL DIVISION

BARISAL BRANCH

Nahar Market, 101, Sadar Road
Phone: +88-0431-55371, 64289
Mobite: 01711-336457

Fa: .ss-m--s:m

E-mail: bal@uchl.
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UCB United Commercial Bank Ltd.

Head Office: CWS[A)-1 Guishan Avenue, Dhaka-1212.

NOTICE OF 27th (TWENTY-SEVENTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FOR THE YEAR 2010 (ACCOUNTING YEAR 2009).

Notice is hereby given that 27th Annual General Meeting of United Commercial Bank Lid.
will be held on September 19, 2010 Sunday at 11.45 AM. at Radisson Water Garden Hotel,
Dhaka to transect the following business:

{1} To receive and adopt the fresh Balance Sheet & Audited Accounts for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and Report of the Directors and Audstors thereon,

{2} To approve 30% Stock Dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors.
{3) To elect Dirsctors,

{4} To appoint of Auditors and their remuneration for the Enancial year 2010,
(5) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Dated : August 22, 2010, (Mirza Mahmud Rafiqur Rahman)
Dhaka Company Secretary

Notas :

{i} The 'Record Date' has been fixed on August 08, 2010. Pleasa note that there will be no
transaction of Shares of United Commercial Bank Lid. in the Stock Exchanges on August
08, 2010.

{iiy A member efigible to attend the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend
an hisiher behalf. Proxy Form must be affixed with revenue stamp of Taka 10.00 and
submitied to the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the ime
fixed for the Annual General Mesting.

{iii} The Sharsholders whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company or
in the depository (CDBL) on the Record Date i e. August 08, 2010 shall be entitied to
attend the meeting.

{iv) Stock Dividend approved in 27th AGM will be computed on giving effect of Slock
Dividend approved in 26th AGM.

{v) Change of address, If any, should be notified to the related Depository Participant/
Registered Office of the Bank.



UCB United Commercial Bank Ltd.

Head Office: CWS(A)-1 Guishan Avenue, Dhaka-1212

NOTICE OF THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING.

MNoSce is haraby given thal an Extraordinary Ganeral Mealing of Unied Commaerdial Bank Lid. will ba hald
on September 15, 2010 Sunday at 11.00 AM. al Radisson Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka lo ransact lhe
folowing special businesses:

1. To approve:

(i) increase of the Authorized Capital 1o Taka 800.00,00,000¢- (Taka esghl hundred crore) from Taka
200,00,00,0004- (Taka two hundred crore) and

{ii} change in denomination of share value (Face Value) from Tk. 100,00 (Taka one hundred) to Tk. 10.00
(Taka lon) cach as wall as market lol from 5 (Five) shares lo 50 (Fily) shares of tha Bank through
amendment in the relevant clauses of the of and Articles of of the
Bank and adopt the following special resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Aulhonized Capdal of UCB be and is hereby incroased o Taka 600,00,00,
(Taka hundred

Amﬂ.mdhﬂmpmybemdmmmhmdaﬁ foliows:

CLAUSE VI OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Taka 800,00,00,000- (Taka eight
into 80,00,00,000 ordinary shares of Th.10 (Taka Ten} with the rights and privieges and conditions
atfeched

|
|
i

e Company and the law for the fime being in force.

THE FIRST PARA OF ARTICLE-4{f) OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
“The autharized share capitel of the Company shall comprise Ordinary Shares of Teka 600,00,00,000~
(Taka aight hundred cron) divided info 80,00,00,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 (Taka Ten) sach.*

2. To approve the amendment of Article no. 100 of the Arlicles of Association as follows through adopting
e following special resclusion;

“Resoived thal Arice no. 100 of the Articles of. iation of the UCE be o fofiows:
Article of Assoclation (Exisfing) Articie o {be as)
100. The Direcior shafl pach be entliod fo a foo of | 100 The Dieclor shal each be entdled fo a foe up-

TH. 500" (Taka five Hundired) for eoch meofing of | fo the maximum ki fised by Bangladesh Bank from
the Board attendiad by them. time o time for each mesting altendiad By them.

By ordar of the Board

Dated : August 22, 2010.
Dhaka L ur Rahman)
Company Secratary

Notes :

(i) The 'Record Date' has been fixed on August 08, 2010. Please nate that thers will ba no
transachon of Shares of United Commercial Bank Lid. in the Stock Exchanges on
August 08, 2010,

{§) Amember le to atiend the Annual General Mesting may appoint 8 to aftend

mhl&hum. mebeaﬁmedwimmenmmmpﬂhm.m“d
submitied to the Regisiered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before fhe
time fixed for the Annual General Meeting.

(W) The Shareholders whose names appear in the of Members of the Company or
in the depasitory (CDBL) on the Record Date i. e. August 08, 2010 shall be entitied to
atiend fhe meeting.

Change of address, if any, should be notified to the relaled Depository Participant/
il Registered Office dlh’e“éank. =
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UCB United Commercial Bank Ltd.

CWS(A)1, GULSHAN AVENUE, DHAKA-1212

PROXY FORM

I'we. of

being a Shareholder of United
Commercial Bank Ltd. hereby appoint Mr./Ms.
as my / our PROXY to attend on my / our behalf at the EGM, 25 AGM, 26 AGM & 27" AGM
of the Company to be held on September 19, 2010, Sunday at 11,00 AM, 1115 AM, 11,30 AM
& 1145 AM respectively at Radisson Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka and at any adjournment

thereof, As witness my/our hand this..........oo.o... LY — 2010

Signature of Sharcholder(s) Signature of PROXY
No, of Shares held Revenue

Folio No, Tskm. 1 O“Ipw

Or
Bowzo [ [ [ [[[[[[[[[[T]]]

Note: A member entitled to attend at the General Meetings may appoint @ PROXY to attend in histher behalf, The
Proxy Form, duly stamped, mist be deposited af the Registered Office of the Company ar least 48 hours
before the time for the meeting.

Signature Verified
Authorised Signatary

UCB United Commercial Bank Ltd.

CWS(A)1, GULSHAN AVENUE, DHAKA-1212

SHAREHOLDER / PROXY ATTENDANCE 5LIP

T hereby record my attendance at the EGM, 25™ AGM, 26™ AGM & 27" AGM of the Company
held on September 19, 2010, Sunday at 11.00 AM, 1115 AM, 11.30 AM & 11.45 AM
respectively at Radisson Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka.

Name of the Shareholder

No. of Shares

Faolio Ne.

BOIDNA LT LTI PP P PPrg

Name of the Proxy (if any)

Signature of SharcholderProxy Signature verified by
Notes 1 Please present shis Slip at the Reception Dest. Children and. will mot be aifowed







NOTE
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www.uchl.com

uce

United Commaercial Bonk Limited
Corporats Head Office

OWS (A)-1, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212

Tel : PABX :02 885 2500
E-mall : Info@uecbleom




